® 9260 E Stockton Blvd.
O-n e I Elk Grove, California 95624

Communications

March 2, 2015

Oregon Public Utility Commission
Attention: Filing Center

3930 Fairview Industrial Drive SE
Salem, OR 97302

RE: UM 1431 Compliance Letter — Order No. 10-067

Dear Commission:

In compliance with Appendix A, condition # 2 of the above referenced order, Frontier
Communications Northwest Inc is providing a copy of its Annual 10-K report filing and
inter-company receivables, payables and dividends report for the fourth quarter 2014.
The quarterly inter-company receivables, payables and dividends report is considered
confidential and should be treated as such. Pursuant to Order 09-197, the “Confidential”
document is being sent via US Mail in a sealed envelope with the proper labeling.

If you have any questions, please contact Renee Willer at (503) 629-2459 or
Renee.Willer@ftr.com or me.

Sincerely,

14

Joseph D. Chicoine

Manager, Compliance and Reporting
916-686-3588

joe.chicoine@ftr.com

Enclosures

cc: Renee Willer



Frontier Communications Northwest Inc.
Intercompany Receivables/Payables and Dividends
Fourth Quarter 2014

(Amounts in thousands, except per share amount)

Assets ( )=cr

Liabilities ( )=dr Balance
Intercompany Receivables/Payables Sep 30, 2014

Accounts Receivable - Affiliates
Notes Receivable - Affiliates
Interest Receivable - Affiliates
Accounts Payable - Affiliates
Notes Payable - Affiliates
Accrued Interest - Affiliates

Cash Dividends Declared 4Q14
Frontier Northwest to Parent

Parent to Shareholders (total)

Parent to Shareholders (per share)

Redacted

Activity
4Q14

Balance
Dec 31, 2014
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PART |

Item 1. Business

Frontier Communications Corporation (Frontier)his targest communications company providing sesvinainly to rural areas and small and medium-s i@eahs and cities in the United States . Frontret s
subsidiaries are referred to as the “Company,” *W&s" or “our” throughout this report. Frontier wancorporated in the state of Delaware in 193Rjimally under the name of Citizens Utilities Compaand
was known as Citizens Communications Company fré@02until July 31, 2008.

Our mission is to be the leader in providing comioations services to residential and busi nessomests in our markets. We are committed to deligeimovative and reliable products and solutionthvain
emphasis on convenience, serv ice and customefasaitdn. We offer a variety of voice, data, anded services and products on a standalone bagiasabundled or packaged solu tions. We belieaedbr
local engagement structure, 100% U.S.—based warkfand innovative product positioning will contineedifferentiate us from our competitors in therkess in which we compete.

Effective October 24, 2014, Frontier's scope ofrafiens and balance sheet capitalization changedrially as a result of the completion of the Coctiwait Acquisition, as described below . Historitiagncial
data presented for Frontier is not indicative @f fhture financial position or operating results Foontier, and includes the results of the Corinatb perations from the date of acquisition oridber 24, 2014.

Highlights for 201 4

In 201 4, we continued to improve our customeniteand revenue tr ends while strengthening marftial profile as follows:

TheConnecticut Acquisition

On October 24, 2014, the Company acquired the inegiroperties of AT&T Inc. (AT&T) in Connecticuthe Connecticut Acquisition ) for a purchase p¢é?2 billion in cash, excluding adjustments
for working capital. Following the Connecticut Adsjtion , Frontier now owns and operates the wirelbroadband, voice and video business and staefitidr network that provides servic es to
residential, commercial and wholesale custome@oinnecticut , making Connecticut our largest markie also acquired AT&T's U-verse video and DISttedlite TV customers in Connecticut.

In September 2014, the Company completed a registiebt offering of $77 5 million aggregate prirmtipmount of 6.250% senior unsecured notes due, 20211$775 million aggregate principal amount
of 6.875% s enior unsecured notes due 2025. Thep@oynused the net proceeds from the offering okthaotes, together with borrowings of $350 milliorder a term loan a greement and cash on
hand, to finance the Connecticut Acquisition .

BroadbandNet Additions

During 201 4 , we added approximately 507,200 neadtband subscribers (an increase of approxima#®ht) , bringing our total number of broadbanbssuibers to 2,373,900 as of December 31, 201
4 . Excluding 398,6 00 broadband subscribergbatable to the Connecticut Acquisition , we hadeled approximately 108,7 00 net broadband sudessri during 2014 and 220,9 00 net broadband
subscribers since 2012 . The netincrease indbaval subscribers contribute d to our improvedmae performance .

Investment In Our Robust Netwc

We continue d to invest in network speed and cépagisupport our goal of attracting additional tousers and  increasing broadband penetration0In42, our broadband availability increased by
over 1. 4 million new households, which include3 fillion new households attributable to the Corticeic Acquisition, and we are now able to offer dulband to over 7.8 million households as of
December 31, 201 4 . Since 2012 , Frontier receiviedal of $ 7 2 million from the first round dfe Federal Communications Commission’s (FCC) Canfeerica Fund (CAF) Phase | and $ 61 million
related to the second round of CAF Phase | to stifgpoadband deployment in unserved a nd underddrigsh-cost areas. We spent $ 5 6 million of tHesels on network expansion in 201 4 and $ 94
m illion to date, enabling broadband for 16,0 unserved and underserved households .
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« Revenue Trajectory arCustomer Metrics
Total residential revenue for 201 4 increase@b &8s compare d to 201 3. Total residential revéou2014 included $ 11 6 million of revenuesiatitable to the Connecticut Acquisition for therjod
from October 24, 2014 through December 31, 201Excluding the Connecticut operations, t otal restél revenue declined 3 % as compared with 2018 average monthly residenti al revenue per
customer during 201 4 improved by 3 % as comparéke prior year.

Total business revenue for 201 4 decreased a$&ompared to 201 3. Total business revenu20fb4 included $ 90 million of revenues attribuéatdl the Connecticut Acquisition for the periodnfro
October 24, 2014 through December 31, 2014 . uglkey the Connecticut operations, t otal businessmue declined 5 % as compared with 2013. Ourageemonthly business revenue per customer
during 201 4 improved by 1 % as compared to ti@ pear.

Our residential customer loss es, excluding tbaer@cticut operations , improved slightly in 2014We believe that this improvement in custonetemtion is principally due to investments in our
network, our local engagement strategy, improvesiaraer service and simplified products and pricingn ad dition to our increase in broadband stibers, we added approximately 201,300 net video
subscribers during 2014, substantially all ofchiwere attributable to the Connecticut Acquisitio See “ Customer Metrics " for additionaldrhation.

« FEinancial Profile
During 201 4 , we generated total revenue of $72  illion, including customer revenue of $ 4 ,263llion and regulatory revenue of $ 520 m illiem d net cash provided by operating activitie$ of
1,270 million . We have a well-balanced debturity schedule and we had available liquidity o$ 1.4 billion as of December 31, 201 4 , cosetiof cash and available credit on our $ 750 onilli
revolving credit facility.

Our operating results, prudent capital investmeants, expense management provide d a strong caslipéise and a solid financial platform for investingur business, servicing our debt and maintginin
our dividend payout in 2014 .

« Local Engagemer

On September 10, 2014, we, along with our stratpgitners DISH Network and CoBank , launched Acaés Best Communi ties (ABC) , a $10 million prizempetition to stimulate growth and
revitalization in small cities and towns across fmatprint. The ABC contest was designed to eldress the need for growth by identifying anesting in innovative ideas that small cities anarts
can use to build and sustain their local econoniibs. winning ideas , which will be announced in 201will then be available as a roadmap for gtofer all rural communities across the U.S. In
creating this contest, we emphasize our commitrestipporting sustained economic success in smalhwnities in the United States .

The Verizon Transaction

On February 5, 2015, the Company entered into aseagent with Verizon Communications Inc. (Verizém)acquire Verizon's wireline operations that pdesiservices to residential, commercial and whotesal

customers in California, Florida and Texas for achase price of $10.54 billion in cash (the VeriZinansaction). As of the date of the announcentbesse Verizon properties included 3.7 million woic

connections, 2.2 million broadband connections, admillion FiOS® video connections. The networiny acquired is the product of substantial capitaéstments made by Verizon and is 54% FiOS
enabled. Subject to regulatory approval, the @atisn is expected to close in the first half o180

Communications Services

As of December 31, 201 4 , we are the nation’stfolargest Incumbent Local Exchange Carrier (ILE@ith 3.5 million customers, 2.4 million broadbasdbscribers and 17,400 employees . Following
consummation of the Connecticut Acquisition , wnew operate as an ILEC in 2 8 states.

We conduct business with both residential and ssircustomers, and we provide the “last mile” ahewnications services to customers in these marketsng 201 4 , our customer revenue was $ 4,253
million, including residential revenue of $ 2,092limn and business revenue of $ 2,16 1 milliorAt December 31, 201 4 , we had 2,373,900 broadbabdcribers and 586,600 video subscribers . sewices
and products include:

« data and Internet servic
- wireline broadband services
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- data transmission services (e.g., DS1, DS3, OCNberiet, dedicated Internet Protocol)
- wireless broadband servic

- computer security and premium technical suppagt, (Frontier Secure)

- residential ancommerciaVoice over Internet ProtocolVolP ) service

« voice service:
« access services

« other services
- FiOS® video services
- Frontier TV powered by - v erse”
- satellite video service
- customer premise equipment
- directories

Company Strategies
The key elements of our strategy are as follows:

Lead with B roadband. We focus on broadband as the core growth coemtoof our service offering , either bundled witlr woice and/or video services, or on a standalmass . During 201 4 , we added
approximately 507,200 net broadband subscribefsichninclude 398,6 00 broadband subscriberthatable to the Connecticut Acquisition , bringiagr total number of broadband subscribers to 2%8XBas
of Dece mber 31, 201 4 . The increase in broadbabdcribers contribute d to our improved revenuéopeance .

We continue to expand and improve broadband avkijeand speed in our markets and view this inwesit as an opportunity to attract and retain atgremimber of customers and increase average revgeiu
residential and business customer. These capjpeinelitures include enhancing the existing outpidet by expanding fiber-based infrastructure tgioout our network, upgrading network hardware exypand
ing transport capacity of our middle-mile andediaackbone.

As of December 31, 201 4 , approximately 92 %hef households throughout our territories had aceesour wireline broadband products. See “Netwarkhitecture and Technology” for a table that
summarizes our broadband availability to the hoakishthrou ghout the Company’s territories . ldiidn, we have committed to federal and state leguy authorities to expand broadband availabilitgertain
areas and for expansion of broadband in unsenediagierserved areas. See “Regulatory EnvironmBegulation of our business.”

Drive R evenue P erformanceWe tailor our services to the needs of our resideand business customers in the markets we semteontinually evaluate the introduction of newl aamplimentary products
and services. We are increasing broadband marke¢ shrough innovative and simplified product paygs and promotions, and we expect to improve sphisa rates for broadband services. We provielEOS
“video services in parts of three states, Froftié powered by U-v ersé  video services in Ganticut and direct broadcast satellite servicemf@ISH in all of our markets . We have implemehseveral
growth initiatives, including new products and seeg, such as wireless broadband, satellite broatipasatellite video and “Frontier Secure” congpuecurity and premium technical support. We edglttinue to
focus on growing those products and services raviéw opportunities to offer new ones. Our mangttrategy includes the sale of voice, data addosservices as standalone offerings and bundiekbpas
and the selective use of promotions and incentitesirive market share through a variety of chésneNe believe these marketing strategies yietiieased revenue per customer, strong customéonslhips
and improved customer retention.

Kee p our C ustomers Our strategy includes engaging our markets atdbal llevel to ensure that we have a customer-dbages and service focus that differentiates us foor competitors. Our markets are
operated by local managers responsible for theomest experience, as well as the financial resolthése markets . We invest in infrastructureroupments and enhancements each year, recognimanghe
economic livelihood of the communities we serve affect opportunities to grow the business. Weiavelved in these communities to create a competadvantage through long-term customer loyaltye are
committed to providing best-in-class service thioug our markets and, by doing so, we expect toimmag retention of current customers and gain nestamers.  We continue to invest to provide piinual
customer experience to include enhanc ing our mestservice operations , efficiently provide s&zwo new customers , and timely service resahstior existing customers .
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Invest in Our Network. In 2014 , Frontier continued to expand the capaaityt capabili ty of its network. Frontier is in yeo of a three-year program to deploy next geti@maBroadband Remote Access
Servers throughout our network to facilitate thpamsion of broadband and increase broadband sgemeahsier continued to expand and upgrade its prenttthernet service offerings across its network @so
achieved Metro Eth ernet Forum 2.0 certificatiomivBn by the Connecticut A cquisition, Frontier upded its VoIP platform with next generation Cainfrol and VolP Application Feature servers, which
Frontier intends to leverage across the entirepfantand also provide the capability to reach cosrs outside its existing markets.

Improve Productivity and Operational Efficiency We continue to engage in productivity initiativesorder to maintain and improve our profit margivge focus on simplifying our processes, elimingtiadun
dan cies and further reducing our cost structurigevilmproving our customer service capabilities.

Based on current estimates and assumptions, weteixpachieve synergies with respect to the djmsacquired in the Connecticut Acquisitionrinpipally (1) by leveraging the scalability of oexisting
corporate administrative functions and informatieohnology and network systems , (2) by internagjztertain functions formerly provided by third-pyaservice providers and (3) operating the busimesse
efficiently . We estimate that our annualizedesgiies resulting from our operation of the Corticet operations versus its historical results wélhich approximately $200 million by the end of 2@k we
implement our targeted list of initiatives. As@&cember 31, 2014, we estimate d that approxim&tel§5 million of expected annualized synergiead been realized .

These future synergies are based on our curreimass and assumptions that, although we conslden treasonable, are inherently uncertain. Sigmifidbusiness, economic, competitive and regulatory
uncertainties and contingencies, all of which affécdlt to predict and many of which are beyond @ontrol, may affect these expected synergies .

Evaluate Strategic Initiatives W e selectively evaluate and may pursue straggfeisitions that would enhance shareholder vali@n October 24, 2014, the Company acquired ilrelime properties of AT&
T in Connecticut .  On February 5, 2015, the C anmypentered into an agreement with Verizon to aeguerizon’s wireline operations in California, Flte and Texas. We consider transactions thatelieve
present opportunities consistent with our overafliibess strategy , that complement or expangmatuct offerings or extend our geog raphic scapeustomer base. We will continue to adhere tosalective
criteria in any acquisition analysis.

Services

We offer a broad portfolio of high-quality commuaiions services for residential and business custein each of our markets. Our product portfaticlides voice services, Internet access, broadeaabled
services and video services. We offer these senhioth on a standalone basis and as bundlé@ges that are purposely designed to simplify enstopurchasing decisions and to provide the custavith
premium value . Periodically, w e offer selectimeentives and promotions to influence customersuchase or retain certain services. We areestdéfcally with skilled technicians and supervisor which
enables us to provide an array of communicationscss to meet our customers’ needs. Our calleresperations and field technicians are staffett W@0% U.S.-based employees .

Revenue Generation

We generate revenue primarily by providing: (1)adand Internet services and wireless data servigg$asic local and long distance voice wirelieevices to residential and business customers iirsenvice
areas; (3) network access to interexchange carfdersrigination and termination of long distanceice and data traffic; (4) sales of our own anddtigiarty video services; and (5) sales of custopnremise
equipment.

Data and Internet servicedVe offer a wide range of broadband services toresidential, commercial and carrier customers. deegial services include fiber-to-the-home andrfiteethe-node broadband, video
and VolIP products , as well as traditional coppesell broadband products . Commercial servicesdadithernet, Dedicated Internet, Multiprotocol Liabeitching (MPLS), Time Division Multiplexing ( T® )
data transport services and optical transport sesvi These ser vices are all supported by a Bélprdesk and an advanced n etwork o perationsec.eBuch services are generally offered on araonbasis and
the service is billed on a fixed monthly recurrigfgarge basis. Data and Internet services areajyigilled in advance.

We also offer our Frontier Secure suite of prodagtsed at managing the digital experience for aist@mers and designed to provide value and simplicimeet customers’ ever-changing needs. FnoSgeure
offers products and services to protect key aspeadggital life, including computer security, cldbackup and sharing, identity protecti on, equipmiesurance and 24/ 7 premium U.S.-based techsigaport.
These products and services are sold nationwigettjito consumers and small
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businesses, and wholesale through strategic pahipsrunder either a private brand or the Froi@&sure brand. We also provide premium technigapsrt and customer service to other companiescamtract
basis.

We offer wireless broadband services (using unfiedriViFi spectrum) in select markets utilizing natvs that we own or operate. Long-term contramsg@nerally billed in advance on an annual or semual
basis. End-user subscribers are generally bifleatlivance on a monthly recurring basis and busisesslleges and universities are billed on a mgnéturring basis for a fixed number of users.uHy, daily
and weekly casual end-users are billed by credit aathe time of use.

Voice servicesWe provide basic wireline services to residentral Business customers in our service areas. Wepadside data based VolP services and enhanceitegto our customers by offering a number
of unified messaging services , including call farding, conference calling, caller identificatiamjcemail and call waiting , all of which are cafmbf being managed via an Internet Portal . Althese local
services are billed monthly in advance. Long distanetwork service to and from points outside querating properties are provided by interconnectidth the facilities of interexchange carriers. rQeng
distance services are billed either as unlimitgdffinumber of minutes in advance or on a per minfi#tese basis.

We also offer packages of communications serviddsese packages permit customers to bundle thigie wervice with their choice of video and Intersetvices , and other product offerings .

Access servicesOur switched access services allow other carteetsse our facilities to originate and terminateitthocal and long distance voice traffic. Thesevises are generally offered on a month-to-month
basis and the service is billed primarily on a miseof-use basis. Switched access charges havebbsed on access rates filed with the FCC forstaes services and with the respective state regylagency
for intrastate services. On November 18, 2011 RB€ released the USF/ICC Report & Order (the 20idef) that, beginning in July 2012, requested wmtransition to terminating switched access rates
time to near zero by July 2017. The 2011 Order lesatompanies to recover part of the decline thindngreases in subscriber line fees charged to sesidential and business wireline voice custom&vkile
the FCC has asserted jurisdiction over these tettinip access rates, during the transition the @savgll continue to be based on tariffs filed withth the FCC and state regulatory agencies. Momédyrring
access service fees are billed in advance. M¢eraceive subsidies from state and federal aitit®based on the higher cost of providing wirelservice to certain rural areas that are inclideslir access
services revenue. Beginning in July 2012, the Comjeegan receiving federal subsidies for the depkayt of broadband in unserved and high- cost areas.

Video services. W e offer FIOS' video services on a limited basithe states of Indiana, Oregon and Washingtmsuant to franchises, permits and similar autlations issued by local franchising authorities .
In connection with the Connecticut Acquisition , aiéer Frontier TV powered by U-v erSe  to ourtamsers in Co nnecticut. We continue to offer kiggeTV video service to our customers under asray
relationship with DISH in all of our markets . W&eive from DISH, and recognize as revenue vaititn fees, other residual fees and nominal managg billing and collection fees.

Customer Premise EquipmentVe offer our small, medium and enterprise busimessomers a wide range of third-party communicatiequipment tailored to their specific businessiad®y partnering with
Mitel, Cisco, Avaya and other equipment manufaetire Equipment sales are most often sold in canjon with a variety of voice, data and Internefvices; however, equipm ent may also be sold stard
alone basis. We recognize revenue for these eguipsales in accordance with the contracts, andratgly from any related maintenance agreementerghly at time of installation and acceptance by o
customers.

Customer Metrics

Our Company, like others in the industry, utilizeporting metrics focused on units. Consistent with strategy to focus on the ¢ ustomer, we algizeiresidential and business customer metricg thhen
combined with unit counts, provide additional irfgtignto the results of our strategic initiativesdebed above.
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As of or for the year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Residential Customer Metrics:

Customers 3,214,83¢ 2,803,481 2,887,062
Revenue (in 000's) $ 2,092,251 $ 2,026,91C $ 2,128,85¢
Average monthly residential revenue per custo(® $ 61.11 $ 59.23 $ 58.33
Customer monthly chur 1.73% 1.69% 1.62%
Business Customer Metrics

Customers 304,736 270,799 286,106
Revenue (in 000's) $ 2,160,41% $ 2,183,02t $ 2,276,11¢
Average monthly business revenue per custc $ 661.15 $ 654.04 $ 639.13
Total customers 3,519,572 3,074,28( 3,173,16¢
Broadband subscribers 2,373,89¢ 1,866,67C 1,754,422
Video subscriber 586,616 385,353 346,627

® Calculation excludes the operations of MohaveutaliLimited Partnership , which was sold as ofiApr2013 .

During 2014 , we gained 445,300 customers, netpawpared to a loss of 98,900 customers, net, i3 208 a loss of 240,500 customers, net, in 201@lulling 526,9 00 customers attributable to the @ctiout
Acquisition , we lost 81 ,6 00 customers , net2014. We believe the improved customer reteritic®014 as compared to prior years is principallg @b our investments in our network, our localagement
strategy, improved customer service and simplifieztiucts and pricing.

Total residential revenue for 201 4 increase@5$nillion, or 3 %, as compared to 201 3. Totaldestial revenue for 2014 included $ 11 6 millisitributable to the Connecticut operations . Te¢aidential
revenue excluding the Connecticut operations dedlifi 51 million, or 3 %, as compared with 2013marily as a result of decreases in voice serviegenue and the sale of our interest in the Mohave
partnership , partially offset by increases in daevices revenue. We had approximately 3,214,80803,500 and 2,887,100 total residential custes as of December 31, 2014, 201 3 and 201pectsely.
Excluding 478,100 additional residential custosregtributable to the Connecticut Acquisition inl20w e lost approximately 66,800, 83,600 and 21®ésidential customers, net, during 2014, 20182012,
respectively, principally driven by declines in @eicustomers. O ur residential customer monthlyrchas 1.73 %, 1.69% and 1.62% for 2014, 201 32012 , respectively. Average monthly residentigkreie

per customer (residential ARPC) increased $ 1.883 %, to $ 61.11 during 2014 as compared to 20h8. overall increase in residential ARPC is due toigher per centage of the Company’s residential
customers that subscribe to broadband services-amdier Secure products, broadband customer nogré higher speeds and increases in our videdcssr. The Company expects continuing increases
residential data services revenue, primarily dribgrincreased broadband subscribers, increaseisléo gervices and increases in voice services teveprimarily from the full year impact of the Gmcticut
operations .

Total business revenue for 201 4 decreased $itBdn, or 1 %, as compared to 201 3. Total busineevenue for 2014 included $ 90 million attréthié to the Connecticut operations . Total busimegsnue
excluding the Connecticut operations declined $31rillion, or 5 %, as compared with 2013 , prindiipas a result of decreases in our voice serviesgnue and wireless backhaul revenue . We had
approximately 304,700 , 270,800 and 286,100 taiairtess customers as of December 31, 2014, 2012Gk#] respectively. Exclud ing 48,8 00 additidmasiness customers attributable to the Conndcticu
Acquisition in 2014 , we lost approximately 1400, 15 ,300 and 23,800 business customers, mehgd2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Averagathiyp business revenue per customer (business ARPC)
increased $ 7.11 , or 1 %, to $ 661.15 during 28% dompared to 201 3 . The overall increase imbss ARPC is primarily due to declining customeurts for our small business cus tomers that gemartwer
ARPC and the addition of certain medium and laigeescustomers acquired during the Connecticut &itipn .  On a comparable full year basis, t lerpany expects the declines in voice services rexand
wireless backhaul from business customers to coafim 2015, mitigated, in part, by increases iniess data services and video services revenue .

During 201 4 , the Company added approximately ZW¥ net broadband subscribers. Excluding 398,6r68dband subscribers attributable to the Connecticquisition, we added approximately 108,7 @ n
broadband subscribers in 2014. During 2013 and 20%2Company added approximately 112,250 and 23® broadband subscribers, respectively. The @agnpad 2,373,900 bro adband subscribers at
December 31, 2014. As of December 31, 201 4 , appedely 68 % of our residential broadband cust@amesubs cribed to a bundle of services. As of B 31, 201 4 , we were able to offer broadband to
approximately 7.8 million households, or 92 % af t5 million households in our markets . Theease in broadband subscribers contributed toropraved data services revenue performance . \iénce

to invest in network speed and capacity to support
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our goal of increasing broadband penetration andkenahare. We expect to continue to increase Inaredi subscribers in 201 5. W e offer FiOS  visexvices in three st ates, Frontier TV powered bydise
“in Connecticut and satellite video services throDgBH throughout our territories .  In addition,ev gained 201,300 video subscribers, net durfiig£, including 196,400 video subscribers attebié to the
Connecticut Acquisition . At December 31, 201w, had 586,600 video customers.

The following table sets forth total residentiaktamers by state a s of December 31, 201 4 :

State Residential custome Percentage of residential custom
Connecticu 494,41C 15.4%
West Virginia 319,191 9.9%
Indiana 271,843 8.5%
lllinois 265,057 8.2%
New York 257,944 8.0%
Ohio 239,378 7.4%
Washingtor 204,307 6.4%
Michigan 193,496 6.0%
Oregon 155,163 4.8%
Wisconsin 128,794 4.0%
Pennsylvani 120,393 3.7%
Minnesota 100,749 3.1%
North Caroling 99,093 3.1%
California 74,101 2.3%
Arizona 64,218 2.0%
Idaho 53,151 1.7%
South Carolin: 39,792 1.2%
Tennesse 37,338 1.2%
Other State®™ 96,418 3.1%

Total 3,214,83¢ 100.0%

Total business custom 304,73€
Total custome! 3,519,572

®Includes Nevada, lowa, Nebraska, Alabama, Utahrg@oMontana, Mississippi, New Mexico and Florida.
Network Architecture and Technology

Our local exchange carrier networks consist of leesttral office and remote sites, primarily equigpppéth digital and Internet Protocol switches. Tdside plant consists of transport and distrdutielivery
networks connecting our host central office witmoge central offices and ultimately with our cusessa We own fiber optic and copper cable, whictshzeen deployed in our networks and are the pyimar
transport technologies between our host and renesteal offices and interconnection points withestincumbent carriers.

Our fiber optic and copper transport system is bpaf supporting increasing customer demand fgh hiandwidth transport services. We routinely esbasur network and are currently upgrading withlétest
Internet Protocol Transport and routing equipmegonfigurable Optical Add/Drop Multiplexers (ROADNansport systems, Very High Bit-Rate Digital Satiber Line (VDSL) broadband equipment, an d
VolP switches. These systems will support advarsesdices such as Ethernet, Dedicated Internetiipdaocol Label Switching (MPLS) transport, andIPo The network is designed with redundancy artd-au
failover capability on our major circuits.
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As of December 31, 201 4 and 201 3, we had exphadebroadband availability to the householdsugtmut the Company’s territories as follows:

(In excess of) 2014 2013
6 Mbps 83% 76%
12 Mbps 74% 61%
20 Mbps 55% 48%

Rapid and significant changes in technology aresetqul to continue to occur in the communicationsigtry. Our success will depend, in part, on duilitp to anticipate and adapt to technological rfpas. We
believe that ou r existing network architecturetggy will enable us to respond to these ongoingrtelogical changes efficiently. In addition, wetieipate reducing costs through the sharing of peattices
across operations, centralization or standardizaifdunctions and processes, and deployment dihtdogies and systems that provide for greateciefities and profitability. In certain markets fvave begun
to offer broadband services with 1 gigabit downlspded capabilities .

Competition

Competition in the communications industry is irsenWe experience competition from many commurdoatservice providers, including cable operatofsriofy video, data and VolIP products, wirelessieesy
long distance providers, competitive local exchacaygiers, Internet providers, satellite video anoladband providers and other wireline carrierse Wlieve that as of December 31, 201 4, apprately 96 %
of the households in our territories could receiviee, data and /or video services from a competjtrovider.

As a result of competition and economic conditipasme of our customers may discontinue our sesviddese trends may continue and may result éntreied challenging business environment.

We employ a number of strategies to combat the etithe pressures and changes in customer behavied above. Our strategies are focused on piegeand generating new revenues through customer
retention, upgrading and up-selling services testéxg customers, new customer growth, win-back$ooher customers, new product deployment, and bpagiag our profitability and cash flow through
operational productivity improvements and prudexgital expenditures.

On the business side of our operations , we aneséxt on many of the same strategies and enhancenesuribed above as well as providing transpovices (wireless backhaul) to wireless cell towiersur
territories and expanding the number of peopléngetio and servicing our medium, enterprise andegawent customers with sophisticated products andces (e.g., IP PBX, E911 equipment, Etherne®, S|
trunking).

We are focused on enhancing the customer experterdifferentiate us from our competition. Our goitment to customer service is demonstrated by'@customer first” company philosophy, how we empower
our technicians and call center employees to sarstomers, 100% U.S.-based workforce, our expaodswmer service hours, shorter scheduling windowm-home appointments, call reminders and foliapy
calls for service appointments. Additionally, week to achieve our customer retention goals byrioffeattractive packages of value-added services.dndled services include broadband, voice, addov
offerings , including simplified messaging servideigher speed products and digital security presiuc

We are also focused on increasing sales of exigtinducts, including video and the Frontier Seqnaduct suite , along with selling higher speedérmofadband .  We had a total of 514,000 Fror8ieture
customers as of December 31, 201 4, or 22 %traioe of our broadband base , including thendly acquired Connecticut operations, as comptretb5,000 customers at December 31, 201 3, @625
penetration of our Frontier legacy broadband baséhe decline in our penetration percentage i28rimarily due to the recent addition of oum@ecticut customers, to whom we previously didaftgr these
services. Frontier Secure offers products and sesvio protect key aspe c ts of digital life, imtthg computer security, cloud backup and sharientity protection, equipment insurance and 24vemium U.S.-
based technical support. These products and ssrareesold nationwide directly to consumers andldmainesses, and wholesale through strateginestiips under either a private brand or the FeoiSecure
brand. Although we are optimistic about the oppuities to increase revenue and reduce customendher, customer attrition) that are provided lagte of these initiatives, we cannot provide assigabout
their long term profitability or impact on revenue.

We believe that offering multiple products and s=s to our customers, providing a single bill, lime payment capability , providing superior cusesmservice, and being active in our local commansitill
develop customer loyalty , which should help usegate new, and retain exist ing, customers .
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For additional discussion of our competitive sigés, see “Company Strategies” above.
Regulatory Environment

Some of our operations are subject to regulatiothby=CC and various state regulatory agencieten ailled public service or utility commission8Ve expect federal and state lawmakers to contimuevise the
statutes and regulations governing communicatiensces.

Regulation of our business

We are subject to federal, state and local requiaind we have various regulatory authorization®éw regulated service offerings. At the fedéeakl, the FCC generally exercises jurisdictionrawngerstate or
international telecommunications services and daeilities to the extent they are used to provideginate or terminate interstate or internatiosetfvices . State regulatory commissions geneedgrcise
jurisdiction over intrastate telecommunicationsvagss and the facilities used to provide, originatéerminate those services . Most of the les@hange companies that are operated by us oer@teumbent
carriers in the states in which they operate aectartified in those states to provide local tetegmnications services. In addition, local governme@®ften regulate the public rights-of-way necgssainstall and
operate networks, and may require service provigeabtain licenses or franchises regulating tbe& of public rights-of-way. Municipalities anchet local government agencies also may regulatr dithited

aspects of our business, by requiring us to olualite franchises and construction permits and ittedty building codes.

Many s tate regulatory agencies have substantiaismht over the provision by incumbent telephoompanies, like our company, of interconnection and-discriminatory network ac cess to competitive
providers. Under the Telecommunications Act of 198& “1996 Act” or the “Telecommunications Act”)state regulatory commissions have jurisdictioratbitrate and review interconnection disputes and
agreements between incumbent telephone compaikiesiur company , and competitive local exchangeera, in accordance with rules set by the FC@e FCC and State regulatory commissions also impose
fees on providers of telecommunications servicehiwiheir respective states to support state usaleservice programs. Many of the states in whieloperate require prior approvals or notificasiéor certain
acquisitions and transfers of assets, customemyoership of regulated entities.

T he FCC and certain state regulatory commissiionspnnection with granting their approvals of @aquisition of certain properties of Verizon Comieations Inc. in 2010 (the 2010 Acquisition), sfieci
certain capital expenditure and operating requirgmfor the territories acquired in the 2010 Aisijion for specified periods of time post-closifignese requirements focus primarily on certainteapivestment
commitments to expand broadband availability teast 85% of the households throughout the teiescacquired in the 2010 Acquisition with minimalownload s peeds of 3 Mbps by the end of 201 \®/e
are required to provide download speeds of 4 Mbps teast 75%, 80% and 85% of the households ghaut the territories acquired in the 2010 Acitjiois by the end of 201 3, 201 4 and 201 5, repely.
As of December 31, 201 3 and 2014 , we met our Feg@irement for these respective years, as disgugssve.

In addition, in certain states we are subject teraping restrictions such as rate caps and minimemice quality standards ( whereby the failureniet may result in penalties, including, in ondestaash
management limitations on certain of our subsid&in that state). We are also required to regentain financial information . At the federabel and in a number of the states in which we atpewe are
subject to price cap or incentive regulation plander which prices for regulated services are c&pfeme of these plans have limited terms andheaséxpire, we may need to re negotiate with varistates.
These negotiations could impact rates, serviceitguahd/or infrastructure requirements which coinfghact our earnings and capital expenditures. therostates in which we operate, we are subjecate of
return regulation that limits levels of earningsiaaturn s on investments. Approximately 15 % aftotal access lines at December 31, 201 4 ar@ie irisdictions under the rate of return regquiamodel. We
will continue to advocate for no or reduced regafatvith various regulatory agencies. In some afstates, we have already been successful in neglacieliminating price regulation on end-user m&y.

Frontier, along with all t elecommunications preesisl , is subject to FCC rules governing privacyeftain customer information. Among other thingmse rules obligate carriers to implement procedtoe
protect certain customer information from inapprater disclosure; obtain customer permission toags&ain information in marketing; authenticate onst¢rs before disclosing account information; anduaily
certify compliance with the FCC's rules. Althougtost of these regulations are generally consistéhtour business plans, they may restrict ouxilflitity in operating our business during the sfiedi periods,
including our ability to raise rates in a decliniryenue environment and to manage cash transtensdur subsidiaries in two states if we do not noeetain operating service criteria.
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Some legislation and regulations are, or couldhenfuture be, the subject of judicial proceeditggislative hearings and administrative proposalshallenges which could change the manner in wiiehentire
industry operates. Neither the outcome of ane$¢ developments, nor their potential impact orars be predicted at this time. Regulation camgk rapidly in the communications industry, anthsthanges
may have an adverse effect on us. See “Risk FaefRisks Related to Regulation—Changes in federatate regulations may reduce the switched accesgehevenues we receive.”

Recent and potential regulatory developments

The FCC, state regulators, and federal and stgtsldéors are currently considering a number oppsals for changing the manner in which eligibifity federal and state subsidies are determinadefisas the
amounts of such subsidies.

The FCC continues to finalize its Connect Amerieadr ( CAF ) Phase Il program, which is intendedtovide long-term support for broadband in hightcaeas that were unserved or underserved by a
competitor. The 2011 Order established that prage @arriers , such as Frontier, would have thet mgffirst refusal to accept support across thentugst footprint of their state in exchange for coitting to
provide broadband and voice services to those doeasterm of years. On December 18, 2014, th€ F&eased a Report and Order (the 2014 Order) finigh rules for the right of first refusal for pe cap
carriers, including increasing the broadband spmdsigiation to 10 Mbps download, extending the tefnfunding to six years, and providing flexibilitg meeting deployment obligations. In the 2014 éydhe
FCC indicated that it will provide the CAF Il offef support to the price cap carriers by stateairlye2015. At that time, potential CAF Il recipisrwill have the necessary information — in pattcuthe offers

will include how much support is available to eg@cbvider by state and which locations are eligtbléulfill the broadband deployment obligationso-decide whether to accept the CAF Il funding assbaiated
obligations or decline the CAF Il funding. Alsocaeding to the 2014 Order, the FCC will conducbanpetitive bidding process to distribute CAF Il dlimg in areas that were exempt from the CAF Il righfirst
refusal offer. Once finalized, the Company intetwlapply to the FCC for support under the 2014 ©rde

On November 18, 2011, the FCC adopted the 2011rOnathich changed how federal subsidies are catedland disbursed, with these changes being phadsslinning in July 2012. These changes transition
the Federal Universal Service High Cost Fund ( YSFwhich supports voice services in high-cost sreéa the CAF, which supports broadband deploynieritigh-cost areas. CA F Phase |, which was
implemented in 2012 to provide interim support whtie FCC developed CAF Phase Il, provided for ang)SF support for price cap carriers capped @2h 11 amount. In addition, in the first roundo#F
Phase |, the FCC made available for price cap B ECadditional $300 million in incremental higbost broadband support to be used for broadbaridydepnt to unserved areas. In 2012 and early 201,
received $7 2 million in CAF Phase | funds andiatiy recorded such funds as increases to CaslOdner liabilities in the balance sheet. The $iilfion in the first round of CAF Phase | suppartexpected to
enable an incremental 92,877 households for braatbarvice and was accounted for as ContributioAithof Construction . We are required to spefel first round of CAF Phase | funds to enable these
households no later than July 24, 2015. We spé@tiillion of the first round of CAF Phase | fusidn network expansion through December 31, 2@hébling 83,100 unserved households .

On May 21, 2013, the FCC released a Report andr@uetborizing a second round of CAF Phase | (thE320rder) . As part of the 2013 Order, the FCCaexied the areas eligible for funding to includestho
that lack service of 3 Mbps download and 768 kiggisad. In 2013 and early 2014, we received $6llomin the second round of CAF Phase | funds. &e required to spend the second round of CAFéPhas
funds to enable 101,714 households no later tharciMb4, 2017. The second round of CAF Phase | d&chicertain accompanying spending requirements fre Company, and our capital expenditur e plans
take this into account. We spent $ 3 1 milliontaf second round of CAF Phase | on network exparkiongh December 31, 2014 , enabling 80,900 ueseswmd underserved households .

In the aggregate, we spent $ 56 million of the GAfase | funds received on network expansion ancadpg during 2014 and $ 94 million in total thro@gcember 31, 2014, enabling and/or upgrading D&4,0
households .

The 2011 Order also reformed Intercarrier Compémrsawvhich is the payment framework that governa learriers compensate each other for the exchahigeeostate traffic, and it began a multi-yeans#ion

in July 2012, with the second step implementeduily 2013 and the third step in July 2014. The fitéors will move terminating traffi ¢ to a near zerate by 2017. Frontier expects to be able to recav
significant portion of those revenues through eseruates and other replacement support mechanidmes2011 Order has been challenged by certaifepart court and certain parties have also pettiothe

FCC to reconsider various aspects of the 2011 O@eMay 23, 2014, the U.S. Court of Appeals far 10" Circuit issued a decision denying all chalesntp the 2011 Order. Certain parties have condinoe
appeal that decision. Accordingly, we cannot prettie long-term impact at this time but believet tifie 2011 Order will provide a stable regulatagniework to facilitate our ongoing focus on theldgment of

broadband into our rural markets.
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Effective December 29, 2011, the 2011 Order requm®viders to pay interstate access rates fotetheination of VolP toll traffic. On April 25, 2@ the FCC, in an Order on Reconsider at ion, §ipecihat
changes to originating access rates for VolP traffould not b e implemented until July 2014. Tha 2@rder has been challenged by certain partiesumt and certain parties have also petitionedHB€ to
reconsider vari ous aspects of the 2011 Order.riEhénpact of the 2011 Order during the period fruty 2012 through December 2014 was insignificahe n et effect of this change to originating ascafter
July 1, 2014 is dependent upon the percentage i Vaffic.

Future reductions in our subsidy or switched acoessnues may directly affect our profitability arekh flows . Switched access and subsidy reverargiued to decline in 201 4 , as compared to20and are
expected to decline further in 2015 .

The FCC also has an ongoing proceeding considevimether to make changes to its regulatory regimeeigong special access services, including whetbemandate lower rates, change standards for
deregulation and pricing flexibility, or to requickanges to other terms and conditions. When andthese proposed changes will be addressed iwmkand, accordingly, we are unable to prediciirtifgact of
future changes on our results of operations.

Certain s tate regulatory commissions regulate sofibe rates ILECs charge for intrastate servigeduding rates for intrastate access serviced pgiproviders of intrastate long distance servicBise 2011
Order, however, removes much of the states’ authtriset terminating intrastate switched accetssrahis aspect of the 2011 Order has been clgaltehy certain parties in court. Certain states bave their
own open proceedings to address reform to intesiatess charges and other intercarrier compensatibstate universal service funds. Although 8€ fhas pre-empted state jurisdiction on most actesges,
many states could consider moving forward withrtpedceedings. We cannot predict when or how thesstters will be decided or the effect on our supsidswitched access revenues.

Regulators at both the federal and state levelSragto address whether VolP services are sulijebie same or different regulatory and intercac@npensation regimes as traditi onal voice tedaghThe FCC
has concluded that VolP and facilities-based braadhinternet access providers must comply withGmmunications Assistance for Law Enforcement Aadecision that the United States Court of Appéals
the District of Columbia Circuit has upheld. Th€E has also required VolP providers to provide enkd 911 em ergency calling capabilities. In th#12Qrder, the FCC has determined that VolP-origithat
traffic terminating on the Public Switched Telephddetwork is subject to interstate access ratedditidnally, the 2011 Order requires VolP provideyspay interstate terminating interconnection gkarand
requires all carriers terminating traffic to prozidppropriate call information, thus prohibitingealled “phantom traffic.” However, t he FCC deeld to address other VolP-related issues , arel RGC has
stated its intent to address open questions regathe treatment of VolP services in its ongoir@-Bnabled Services Proceeding.” Internet telephmay have an advantage in the marketplace overaditional
services if this service remains less regulated.

Current and potential Internet regulatory obligatits

In connection with our Internet access offerings,asuld become subject to laws and regulationeeysdre adopted or applied to the Internet , irinlyido-called “net neutrality” rules that are irded to preserve
the openness of the Internet . There is currently limited regulation applicable to these sersice

The FCC has classified wireline bro adband Inteaweess service (whether provided over cable ecoehmunications facilities) , mobile wireless dzhdroadband Internet access service and othesfofm
broadband Internet access services as “informatovices” not subject to mandatory common carriagelation. Specifically, the FCC has determirteat these information services are functionallggnated
with any underlying telecommunications component that there is no obligation to separate outaffet that transmission component subject to comeamiage regulation. As the significance of thieinet
expands, federal, state and local governments rasy laws and adopt rules and regulations, or ap$fing laws and regulations to the Internet (idahg Internet access services), and related rsadterunder
consideration in both federal and state legislative regulatory bodies. We cannot predict whettheoutcome of pending or future proceedings withe beneficial or detrimental to our competitivasipion.

In October 2009, the FCC issued a proposed rulemgdkbking at rules to “Preserve a Free and Opterriet,” (i.e., net neutrality) including a recafesiation of the legal classification of broadband aroposed
restrictions on broadband network management petiOn December 21, 2010, the FCC adopted an ongessing some regulations on Internet service ipierg. These regulations affect fixed and mobile br
oadband providers differently. These regulatiorsabee effective November 20, 2011, and we are inptiamce with these regulations. On January 144261 U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuacated
the portions of the FCC's rules that prohibitedcking and required non-discriminatory treatmenn @ay 15, 2014, the FCC adopted a Notice of Prapd&glemaking which sought comment on how it can
preserve the spirit of the vacated rules. The Naiso sought comment on what other regulatorpastihe FCC could take to implement “Open
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Internet” policies , in particular reclassifyingoadband as a Title Il Telecommunications servite fliture state of these regulations and theicetfe us is unknown.
Video programming
Federal, state and local governments extensivelylaée the video services industry. Our FiOS armhfier TV powered by U-v erse  video servic ease subject to, among other things, subscriberapyi
regulations; requirements that we carry a locabticast station or obtain consent to carry a localisiant broadcast station; rules for franchiseeveals and transfers; the manner in which progragkages are

marketed to subscribers; and program access reugts.

We provide video programming in certain of our neskin Oregon, Washington, Indiana and Connecfeusuant to franchises, permits and similar autfations issued by state and local franchising
authorities. Most franchises are subject to teatiim proceedings in the event of a material brefrchddition, most franchises require payment fshachise fee as a requirement to the grantiraudfority.

Many franchises establish comprehensive faciliied service requirements, as well as specific oustservice standards and monetary penalties fecompliance. In many cases, franchises are tebigrithe
franchisee fails to comply with significant prowiss set forth in the franchise agreement goversjrsgem operations. We believe that we are in canpé and meeting all material standards and regaints.
Franchises are generally granted for fixed termatdéast ten years and must be periodically redeviecal franchising authorities may resist gnagita renewal if either past performance or the geotve
operating proposal is considered inadequate.

Environmental regulation

T he local exchange carrier subsidiaries we opemaesubject to federal, state and local laws agdlations governing the use, storage, disposaraf,exposure to hazardous materials, the reldgsalotants
into the environment and the remediation of contatidon. As an owner and former owner of propesty,are subject to environmental laws that couldasepliability for the entire cost of cleanup at oninated
sites, including sites formerly owned by us, retgssl of fault or the lawfulness of the activity thasulted in contamination. We believe that ouerafions are in substantial compliance with appliea
environmental laws and regulations.

Segment Information

We currently operate in only one reportable segment

Financial Information about Foreign and Domestic Oprations and Export Sales

We have no foreign operations.

General

Order backlog is not a significant consideratiomim business. We have no material contractslmearacts that may be subject to renegotiatigorofits or termination at the election of the fealeyovernment.
Intellectual Property

We believe that we have the trademarks, trade namentellectual property licenses that are nexgdsr the operation of our business.

Employees

As of December 31, 201 4, we had approximatel$d employees , as compared to approximately 136ffloyees as of December 31, 201 3. We addedxpptely 2,400 employees in connection with the
Connecticut Acquisition , of which approximately0% ar e represented by unions . ApproximatéB00 of our total employees are represented lynen The number of employees covered by callect
bargaining agreements that expired in 201 4 , buelbeen extended and are still effective for 20is@pproximately 1,000 . The number of empésyeovered by collective bargaining agreementsetkgite in
201 5is approximately 1, 4 00 . We c onsiderrelations with our employees to be good.

13



FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE

Available Information

We are subject to the informational requirementthefSecurities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Exchakai®. Accordingly, we file periodic reports, prpstatements and other information with the Seiasriand

Exchange Commission (SEC). These reports, pratersients and other information may be obtainedidising the Public Reference Room of the SEC at E®lreet, NE, Washington, D.C. 20549 or by calling

the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In addition, the SE@taias an Internet site_( www.sec.gpthat contains reports, proxy and informationestagnts and other information regarding the Comamyother issuers

that file electronically.

We make available, free of charge on our websiie Amnual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reportsqamm 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amemdsn® these reports filed or furnished pursuant to

Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, as sammpracticable after we electronically file thekeEuments with, or furnish them to, the SEC. Théseuments may be accessed through our website at

www.frontier.comunder “Investor Relations.” The information postedinked on our website is not part of this repdVe also make our Annual Report available imged form upon request at no charge.

We also make available on our website, as notesleghur in printed form upon request, free of chame Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code ofrifassi Conduct and Ethics, Specific Code of Business

Conduct and Ethics Provisions for Certain Officemsd the charters for the Audit, Compensation, ldnchinating and Corporate Governance committeehi@fBoard of Directors. Stockholders may request

printed copies of these materials by writing t¢4i§h Ridge Park, Stamford, Connecticut 06905 AttentCorporate Secretary.

Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report on Form 10-K contains “forwasdKing statements ," related t o future, not pesents. F orward-looking statements address ouecteg future business and financial performance and

financial condition, and contain words such as &ty "anticipate,” “intend," "plan,” "believe,"&sk," "see," "will," "would," or "target.” Forwarkboking statements by their nature address matiatsare, t o

different degrees, uncertain. For us, particulareatainties that could cause our actual resulketmaterially different than those expressed infoward-looking statements include:

« risks related to the pending acquisition of propsrfrom Verizon, including our ability to completee acquisition of such operations, our abilitystcessfully integrate operations, our ability ealize
anticipated cost savings, sufficiency of the assetse acquired from Verizon, our ability to migraferizons operations from Verizon owned and operated systend processes to our owned and ope
systems and processes successfully, failure to mnteor obtain, or delays in entering into oraihing, certain agreements and consents necessapetate the acquired business as planned, fadwbtain
delays in obtaining or adverse conditions containeghy required regulatory approvals for the asitjoin, and increased expenses incurred due teitéesirelated to the transactic

« risks related to the recer-concludecConnecticut Acquisitiol, includingthe effects of unanticipateexpenses cliabilities and our ability to fully realize anticipated cost savin;

« our ability to meet our de bt and debt servicegailons ;

« competition from cable, wireless and other wireliaeriers and the risk that we will not respondadimely or profitable basi:

« our ability to successfully adjust to changes i ¢bmmunications industry, including the effectsesthnological changes and competition on our ebpitpenditures, products and service offerings;

« reductions in the number of our voice customerswhacannot offset with increases in broadbandailiers and sales of other products and services;

« our ability to maintain relationships with customezmployees or suppliel

« the impact of regulation and regulatory, invesfigaand legal proceedings and legal compliancesyisk

« continued reductions in switched access revenuesesult of regulation, competition or technolegstitutions
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« the effects of changes in the availability of fedemd state universal service funding or othesilies to us and our competitors;
« our ability to effectively manage service qualitydur territories and meet mandated service quairics;
« our ability to successfully introduce new produffeongs;
« the effects of changes in accounting policies acfices, including potential future impairment chargeshwigéspect to our intangible ass;

« our ability to effectively manage our operationgemting expenses, capital expenditures, debtcgerequirements and cash paid for income taxediguidity, which may affect payment of dividends ot
common sharet

« the effects of changes in both general and loca@mic conditions on the markets that we serve;

« the effects of increased medical expenses andgreasid postemployment expenses;

« the effects of changes in income tax rates, tas,laggulations or rulings, or federal or stateasgessment

« our ability to successfully renegotiate union caaots;

« changes in pension plan assumpti, interest rates, regulatorulesand/or the value of our pension plan assets, wéncid require us to make increased contributiorteégoension plan in 2015 and beyo

« adverse changes in the credit markets or in thegsgiven to our debt securities by nationallyradited ratings organizations , which could limitrestrict the ability, or increase the cost, ogficing to us ;

« the effects of state regulatory cash managementigea that could limit our ability to transfer basmong our subsidiaries or dividend funds up éptarent company;

« the effects of severe weather events or other alabumarmade disasters, which may increase our operatipgreses or adversely impact customer reveand

« the impact of potential information technology atalsecurity breaches or other disruptions .

Any of the foregoing events, or other events, caaldse financial information to vary from managetiseiorward-looking statements included in thisegp You should consider these important factasswell as
the risks set forth under Item 1A. “Risk Factoiis,"evaluating any statement in this report on FAG¥K or otherwise made by us or on our behalf. fidflewing information is unaudited and should lead in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statetseand related notes included in this report. HAte no obligation to update or revise these faiviaoking statements and do not undertake to do so.
Investors should also be aware that while we dojaaibus times, communicate with securities analystis against our policy to disclose to themestVely any material non-public information or eth
confidential information. Accordingly, investorsaid not assume that we agree with any statemergpart issued by an analyst irrespective of thetexut of the statement or report. To the extent téyports

issued by securities analysts contain any projestiforecasts or opinions, such reports are notegponsibility.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

Before you make an investment decision with respeeny of our securities, you should carefully sider all the information we have included in thisrm 10-K and our subsequent periodic filings vifie

SEC. In particular, you should carefully consitiee risk factors described below and the risks ameertainties related to “ Forward-Looking S tatets&, any of which could materially adversely affeur

business, operating results, financial conditiod tre actual outcome of matters as to which forwaodting statements are made in this annual rep@tie risks and uncertainties described belowrastehe only
ones facing our C ompany. Additional risks andestainties that are not presently known to us at the currently deem immaterial or that are not#jeeto us, such as general economic conditiorsy @iso
adversely affect our business and operations. fdllwving risk factors should be read in conjunatiwith the balance of this annual report, including consolidated financial statements and relatges included
in this report.

Risks Related to the Verizon Transaction
We may not consummate the Verizon Transaction oe terms or timeline currently contemplated or at.al

The consummation of the Verizon Transaction isesttip certain conditions, including (i) the absen€a court or other governmental order prohigitensummation of the transaction, (i) the recefpt
applicable regulatory consents, (iii) the abserfce material adverse effect on the business tocheiged from Verizon and (iv) other customary ahgsconditions. We can make no assurances thatefigon
Transaction will be consummated on the terms oeliire currently contemplated, or at all. We haxpemded and will continue to expend a significanbant of capital and management’s time and ressuwnoe
the Verizon Transaction, and a failure to consunentiz® Verizon Transaction as currently contemplatedt all, could have an adverse effect on osirimss, our results of operations and cash fldwsddition ,
we may choose to raise all or a portion of therfaiag required to complete the Verizon Transacpeior to the closing of such transaction. If we sfm and if the Verizon Transaction is ultimatelyt n
consummated or is delayed for a significant penbtime, we could be obligated to pay significanterest expense, dividends and other costs in ctipnewith the financing without achieving the erpel
benefits of the Verizon Transaction. The tradiniggof our securities could be adversely affedtéide Verizon Transaction is not consummated asecitly contemplated, or at all.

Our effort to combine our business and the businésde acquired from Verizon may not be successful.

The Company is devoting a significant amount ofetiand attention to the process of integrating {serations of our business and the business toduérad from Verizon, which may decrease the time
that management will have to serve existing custenagtract new customers and develop new serwvicssategies. The size and complexity of the aedlbusiness and the process of using our existngmon
support functions and systems to manage the achjirsiness after the acquisition, if not managetiampleted successfully by management, may rasiriterruptions of the business activities of @@mpany
that could have an adverse effect on the Compdgmess, financial condition and results of openat

We may not realize the cost synergies that are@péted from the Verizon Transaction.

The success of the Verizon Transaction will depémgart, on our ability to realize anticipated tegnergies. The Company’s success in realiziegetcost synergies, and the timing of this readimat
depends on the successful integration of our besiaed operations with the acquired business aerhtipns. Even if the Company is able to integthgeacquired businesses and operations succgsshufl
integration may not result in the realization o foll benefits of the cost synergies that Frontigmrently expects within the anticipated time feaar at all.

If the assets included in the business to be pursed from Verizon are insufficient to operate thecadred business, it could adversely affect the Ca@nyp's business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Pursuant to the securities purchase agreement texietu connection with the Verizon Transaction, iven will contribute to the acquired business dar@ssets and liabilities of its local exchange
business and related landline activities in Catifay Florida and Texas, including video, broadbamernet and switched long distance services peabith designated customers located in those stetesever,
the contributed assets may not be sufficient taatpeall aspects of the acquired business and ¢inep@ny may have to use assets or resources frorax@ting business or acquire additional assetwder to
operate the acquired business, which could cosEdmpany more than we anticipate.
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The Company'’s business, financial condition and uits of operations may be adversely affected follagvconsummation of the Verizon Transaction if th@ompany is not able to obtain requisite
consents or enter into certain agreements.

The products and services of the acquired busiaessurrently provided by Verizon to certain cuséosnpursuant to master agreements, together witr dterizon products or services. Pursuant to the
securities purchase agreement, we and Verizon juivly agreed to use our reasonable best effatssix months following the consummation of the i¥en Transaction to obtain any consents required to
separate from such master agreements and assfgartter the portion thereof related to the acqlibesiness. To the extent that the parties aralietto obtain any such required consent, suctrais will not
be assigned to us and we may not be able to estabtiirect relationship with such customers.

Regulatory agencies may delay approval of the VeniZ ransaction, fail to approve it, or approve it &8 manner that may diminish the anticipated bertsfof the Verizon Transaction.

Completion of the Verizon Transaction is conditidngon the receipt of certain government consepis;ovals, orders and authorizations. While weridtto pursue vigorously all required governmental
approvals and do not know of any reason why we @vook be able to obtain the necessary approvaistimely manner, the requirement to receive th@peavals before completion of the Verizon Transacti
could delay its completion. A lengthy delay in twmpletion of the Verizon Transaction could dirsmthe anticipated benefits and/or result in addéi transaction and financing costs, loss of reesror other
effects associated with uncertainty about the &etisn. In addition, until the Verizon Transactisncompleted, the attention of Frontier managemeay be unnecessarily diverted from ongoing busirzesl
regular business responsibilities.

Further, governmental agencies may decline to geaquired approvals, or they may impose conditimmgheir approval of the Verizon Transaction thatld have an adverse effect on the Company’s
business, financial condition and results of openat If certain governmental agencies declingramt any required approval for the Verizon Tratisa¢ the Verizon Transaction may not be consumchata
addition, conditions imposed by governmental agenai connection with their approval of the VeriZinansaction (such as service quality or capitpleexiiture requirements) may restrict the Compaaiity
to achieve anticipated synergies, revenues andficags.

The securities purchase agreement contains provisithat may discourage other companies from tryitagacquire Frontier.

The securities purchase agreement for the Verizamsaction contains provisions that may discoumagleird party from submitting a business combimagwoposal to us prior to the closing of the
Verizon Transaction that might result in greatelugao our stockholders than the Verizon Transacti®he securities purchase agreement providesshanay not sell all or substantially all of ousets unless
the buyer assumes in writing our obligations, idalg the payment of the purchase price, under ¢loarrties purchase agreement. This would repremergdditional cost for a potential third partylseg a
business combination with us.

Our stock price may be adversely affected if we anable to consummate the Verizon Transaction.

If the Verizon Transaction is not completed for aegpson, the trading price of Frontier's commortlstmay decline to the extent that the market potéhe common stock reflects positive market
assumptions that the Verizon Transaction will bepteted and the related benefits will be realizEdbntier may also be subject to additional riskeé Verizon Transaction is not completed, inchedi

« significant costs related to the transaction, sagkegal, accounting, filing, financial advisorydaintegration costs that have already been indusrewill continue up to closing. The Company emity
expects that it will incur approximately $450 nitli of operating expenses and capital expendituréstal related to acquisition and integration\dtiéis in 2015 and 201&ssociated with the Veriz
Transactior;

« significant interest expense and dividend costkheilincurred if Frontier completes the financirfigiebt and equity securities prior to closing;

« the market price of Frontier common stock couldidecas a result of sales of Frontier common stodke market due to the issuance of additionaitgecurities in connection with the financingtbé

Verizon Transaction or the perception that thesesszould occur; an
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« potential disruption to the business of Frontied distraction of its workforce and management team.
The pendency of the Verizon Transaction could acsaly affect the business and operations of Frontérd the acquired business.

In connection with the pending Verizon Transactismme customers of the acquired business may deldgfer decisions or may end their relationshifth Werizon prior to completion of the Verizon
Transaction or with the Company after the VerizoariBaction closes.

Risks Related to Our Business
We will likely face further reductions in voice ctmmers, switched access minutes of use, long distarevenues and subsidy revenues.

We have experienced declining voice customers,cheit access minutes of use, long distance revefedeval and state subsidies and related reveneesube of economic conditions, increasing
competition, changing technology and consumer hehgsuch as wireless displacement of wireline esmail use, instant messaging and increasing Lgel®), technology and regulatory constraints. Wik
likely continue to experience further reductionghe future. The se factors, among others, aedylito cause our local network service, switchevoek access, long distance and subsidy revenuesrtiinue to
decline, and these factors may cause our cashaeddsy operations to decrease.

We face intense competition.

The communications industry is extremely competitiVhrough mergers and various service expansiategtes, service providers are striving to provittegrated solutions both within and across
geographic markets. Our competitors include coitipetlocal exchange carriers, Internet servicevjuters, wireless companies, VolP providers and ea@oimpanies , some of whom may be subject to less
regulation than we are, that may provide servieespetitive with the services that we offer or irtep introduce. We also believe that wireless eanle telephony providers have increased their tpetiien of
various services in our markets. We expect thatpagition will remain robust. Our revenue and cisiv will be adversely impacted if we cannot reseour customer losses or continue to provide bigdity
services .

We cannot predict which of the many possible futehnologies, products or services will be imputria order to maintain our competitive positionvdrat expenditures will be required to develop and
provide these technologies, products or servi€us: ability to compete successfully will dependtha success of capital expenditure investmentsiirpooperties , in addition to our new marketinfpes, our
ability to anticipate and respond to various coritipetfactors affecting the industry, including hamging regulatory environment that may affectlmusiness and that of our competitors differentguwrservices
that may be introduced, changes in consumer prefese demographic trends, economic conditions aivihg strategies by competitors. Increasing cditipe may reduce our revenues and increase our
marketing and other costs as well as require isctease our capital expenditures and thereby dsereur cash flows.

W e may not realize the expected cost synergies fitte Connecticut Acquisition

The Company is devoting a significant amount ofetiand attention to the Connecticut operations aeqdiom AT&T . The success of the Connecticutéisition will depend, in part, on our ability to
reali ze anticipated cost synergies. Even thoughGbmpany has integrate d the acquired businessesperations successfully, this integration mayresult in the realization of the full benefits thie cost
synergies that Frontier currently expects withia #émticipated time frame or at all.

Some of our competitors have superior resourcesioliimay place us at a cost and price disadvantage .

Some of our competitors have market presence, eedig, technical, marketing and financial captedi substantially greater than ours. In addjtsmme of these competitors are able to raisealagit
a lower cost than we are able to. Consequentlyesufithese competitors may be able to develop aparel their communications and network infrastrregumore quickly, adapt more swiftly to new or egirey
technologies and changes in customer requiremiakis,advantage of acquisition and other opporesitiore readily and devote greater resources tménketing and sale of their products and servicas we
will be able to. Additionally, the greater brananme recognition of some competitors may requireoysice our services at lower levels in orderdtain or obtain customers. Finally, the cost adages of some
of these competitors may give them the abilityeduce their prices for an extended period of tiftleely so choose. Our business and results of ipesamay be materially adversely impacted if we rot able to
effectively compete.
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We may be unable to stabilize or grow our revenaes cash flows despite the initiatives we have iempénted.

We must produce adequate revenues and cash flaysathen combined with cash on hand and funds abailunder our revolving credit facility and otliierancings , will be sufficient to service our
debt, fund our capital expenditures, pay our tafes] our pension and other employee benefit otiiga and pay dividends pursuant to our dividenlicpoWe have experienced revenue declines in 2@hdt
201 3 as compared to prior years for our Fronégaty operations , and our recently acquired Cdimutoperations have experienced similar reveraatines . While w e have identified some potértiaas of
opportunity and implemented several revenue ingat w e cannot assure you that these opportanitiébe successful or that these initiatives wilbrove our financial position or our results geoations.

Weak economic conditions may decrease demand farsmuvices or necessitate increased discounts .

W e could be adversely impacted by weak economiditions or their effects . Downturns in the ecoryoand competition in our markets could cause sofreir customers to reduce or eliminate their
purchases of our basic and enhanced voice sertigeadband and video services and make it diffitulus to obtain new customers or retain existagtomers . In addition, if economic conditions depressed
or further deteriorate , our customers may delagiszontinue payment for our services or seek monepetitive pricing from other service providersy@ may be required to offer increased discountzder to
retain our customers , which could have a matedakrse effect on our business .

Disruption in our networks, infrastructure and infonation technology may cause us to lose customersir incur additional expenses.

To attract and retain customers, we must providiehle service. Some of the risks to our netwoik&astructure and information technology inclupleysical damage, security breaches, capacity
limitations, power surges or outages, software atefand other disruptions beyond our control, achatural disasters and acts of terrorism. Fiora to time in the ordinary course of business ewperience
short disruptions in our service due to factorshsas cable damage, theft of our equipment, inclémemther and service failures of our third-paryvice providers. We could experience more sigaift
disruptions in the future. We could also faceufisions due to capacity limitations if changes um oustomers’ usage patterns for our broadbandcssrvesult in a significant increase in capacitljzation, such
as through increased usage of video or peer-tofileesharing applications. Disruptions may cairgerruptions in service or reduced capacity fostomers, either of which could cause us to los¢oousrs
and/or incur additional expenses, and thereby aelieaffect our business, revenues and cash flows.

Our business is sensitive to the creditworth ine$®ur wholesale customer s .

We have substantial business relationships witeratbmmunications carriers for whom we provide iserv While bankruptcies of these carriers havehaot a material adverse effect on our business in
recent years, future bankruptcies in the indusbyld result in the loss of significant customers,veell as cause more price competition and an ase® allowance for doubtful accounts receivablechS
bankruptcies may be more likely in the future ibeemic conditions stagnate. As a result, our reesrand results of operations could be materiallyadversely affected.

A significant portion of our workforce is represeatl by labor unions.

As of December 31, 201 4 , we had approximatelyd@ employees. We added approximately 2,4 00 erepkbyn connection with the Connecticut Acquisitjoof which approximately 9 0 % are
represented by unions . Approximately 10,300wf dotal employees were represented by unionsaard subject to collective bargaining agreemehssof December 31, 201 4 , we had approximatel@@,0
employees covered by collective bargaining agreésrteat expired in 201 4 , but have been extendedaee still effective for 201 5 . Of the union-repented employees as of December 31, 201 4 ,ipately
1, 4 00, or 13 %, of the unionized workforce aowared by collective agreements that expire in 20dnd approximately 2,200 , or 21 %, of the uniedizvorkforce are covered by collective bargaining
agreements that expire in 201 6 .

We cannot predict the outcome of negotiations efdbllective bargaining agreements covering ourleyegs. If we are unable to reach new agreementnew existing agreements, employees subject

to collective bargaining agreements may engagériikes, work slowdowns or other labor actions, whéaould materially disrupt our ability to providersices. New labor agreements or the renewal istiegy
agreements may impose significant new costs owhish could adversely affect our financial conditiand results of operations in the future.
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If we are unable to hire or retain key personnelewnay be unable to operate our business successfull

Our success will depend in part upon the contirseglices of our management. We cannot guaran&etin key personnel will not leave or compete wish The loss, incapacity or unavailability for

any reason of key members of our management teafd bave a material impact on our business. Iritiadd our financial results and our ability to cpete will suffer if we are unable to attract, intg or
retain other qualified personnel in the future.

We may complete a future significant strategic tisaction that may not achieve intended results oultbincrease the number of our outstanding sharesamount of outstanding debt.

We continuously evaluate and may in the futurereinte addi tional strategic transactions , suchhasVerizon Transaction . Any such transactionld happen at any time, could be material to our
business and could take any number of forms, ifetydor example, an acquisition, merger or a sélall or substantially all of our assets.

Evaluating potential transactions and integratiogipleted ones may divert the attention of our memant from ordinary operating matters. The sucoésisese potential transactions will depend, in
part, on our ability to realize the anticipated wgtio opportunities and cost synergies through theeesssful integration of the businesses we acquitie eur existing business. Even if we are succgssf
integrating acquired businesses, we cannot assurehat these integrations will result in the reatiion of the full benefit of any anticipated grémdpportunities or cost synergies or that thesefitsrwill be
realized within the expected time frames. In dddijtacquired businesses may have unanticipateititiies or contingencies.

If we complete an acquisition, investment or otteategic transaction, we may require additionaricing that could result in an increase in the lmemof our outstanding shares of stock or the aggee
amount and/or cost of our debt , which may resuitni adverse impact to our ratings . The numbshafes of our stock or the aggrega te principaiiernof our debt that we may issue may be significauch as
for the Verizon Transaction . Moreover, the teohany debt financing may be expensive or adverisepact our results of operations.

Risks Related to Liquidity, Financial Resources anCapitalization
Volatility in asset values related to Frontier’s psion plan and/or changes in pension plan assumpsanay require us to make additional unanticipatedntributions to fund pension plan liabilities.

The Company made cash contributions of $83 miltimits pension plan in 2014, and expects to makeritwtions of approximately $ 100 million in 201. 5Volatility in our asset values , liability
calculations, or returns may require us to maketiadal contributions in future years.

Substantial debt and debt service obligations meyersely affect us.

We have a significant amount of indebtedness, whiobunted to $ 9.8 billion at December 31, 201 ¥We have access to a $750 million revolving créatitlity and may also take on additional long-
term debt and working capital lines of credit toemfeiture financing needs, subject to certain ig&ins under the terms of our existing indebtednes

The potential significant negative consequencesurfinancial condition and results of operatiamsttcould result from our substantial debt include:

« limitations on our ability to obtain additional dedr equity financin¢ on favorable terms or at ¢;

« instances in which we are unable to meet the caoisrentained in our debt agreements or to genesate sufficient to make required debt paymentsclwbircumstances have the potentie
accelerating the maturity of some or all of ourstannding indebtednes

« the allocation of a substantial portion of our cietv from operations to service our debt, thusuedg the amount of our cash flow available foresthurposes, including operating costs, ce
expenditures and dividends that would otherwiserawp our competitive position, results of operasion stock price

« requiring us to sell debt or equity securitiesmsell some of our core assets, possibly on unéblerterms, to meet payment obligatic
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« compromising our flexibility to plan for, or reatt, competitive challenges in our business anda:¢imemunications industry; and

« the possibility of our being put at a competitivisadivantage with competitors who do not have ashnuebt as we do, and competitors who may be in ee favorable position to acct
additional capital resource

In addition, our senior notes are rated below “steent grade” by independent ratings agenciess ddm result in higher borrowing costs for us. &&enot assure you that these rating agencies atill n
lower our current debt ratings, if in the ratingeagies’ judgment, such an action is appropriatdowtering of a rating may further increase our fatborrowing costs and reduce our access to capital

We cannot assure that we will be able to continwgyimg dividends.

On December 11, 2014, our Board of Directors apgioa 5% increase over the 2014 dividend rate irptaened quarterly cash dividend rate , commenuiitg the dividend for the first quarter of
2015. On an annual basis, this plan would incrézselividend from $0.40 to $0.42 per sharelowever, the amount and timing of future dividgrayments is subject to applicable law and wilhizle at the
discretion of our Board of Directors based on fexguch as cash flow and cash requirements, capipainditure requirements, financial condition atter factors.

We have a significant amount of goodwill and othietangible assets on our balance sheet. If our gadll or other intangible assets become impairect may be required to record a non-cash charge
to earnings and reduce our stockholders’ equity.

Under generally accepted accounting principlesngible assets are reviewed for impairment on ana@rbasis or more frequently whenever eventsrougistances indicate that their carrying value may
not be recoverable. The Company monitors relecantimstances, including general economic conditi@mterprise value EBITDA multiples for other fullZEC properties, the Company’s overall financial
performance, and the market prices for the Compgangimmon stock, and the potential impact that cbsrig such circumstances might have on the valatfche Company’s goodwill or other intangible
assets. If our goodwill or other intangible assetsdetermined to be impaired in the future, wg ti&required to record a non-cash charge to egsrinring the period in which the impairment isedetined,
which would reduce our stockholders’ equity.

Risks Related to Regulation
Changes in federal or state regulations may reduce the switdleecess charge revenues we receive.

A portion of Frontier’s total revenues ($ 201 naitli or 4 %, in 201 4 and $ 235 million, or 5 %,201 3 ) are derived from switched access chargieshyaother carriers for services we provide in
originating and terminating intrastate and inteestang distance traffic. As a result, Frontiepeats a portion of the Company’s revenues will itnre to be derived from switched access chargesIpathese
carriers for services that the Company will provideriginating and terminating this traffic. Thenaunt of switched access charge revenues thatdhgény will receive for these services is reguldtgdhe FCC

and state regulatory agencies and is expectedctmelén 201 5 .

On November 18, 2011, the FCC adopted the 2011rQegrrding Intercarrier Compensation, which is plagment framework that governs how carriers corsgeneach other for the exchange of
interstate traffic . The 2011 Order began a muggrytransition in July 2012, with the second steplémented in July 2013 and the third step in 201¥4 . The transition will move terminating traffica near zero
rate by 2017. Frontier is permitted to recoveigaificant portion of those revenues through eneruates and other replacement support mechanssdstionally, the 2011 Order requires VolP provisléo pay
interstate terminating interconnection charges raagires all carriers terminating traffic to prosidppropriate call information, thus prohibitingcadled “phantom traffic”. The reform of the Unisal Service
Fund shifts the existing High-Cost portion of thuad from supporting voice services to supportingadband deployment in high-cost areas. The 20HkrQureempts the states with regard to the regulatf
intrastate terminating access rates. The 2011rOwaebeen challenged by certain parties in coultcrtain parties have also petitioned the FCfeé¢onsider various aspects of the 2011 Order. Aliogly, we
cannot predict the long-term impact at this timellieve that the 2011 Order will provide a staigigulatory framework to facilitate our ongoing fiscon the deployment of broadband into our ruraketa.

The FCC also has an ongoing proceeding considevimgher to make changes to its regulatory regimesigung special access services. When and how threg®sed changes will be addressed is
unknown and, accordingly, we cannot predict thedotpf future changes on the Company’s resultpefations.
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Certain states also have their own open proceedingddress reform to intrastate access chargesthed intercarrier compensation and state univeesaice funds. Although the FCC has pre-empted
state jurisdiction on most access charges, mamgsstauld consider moving forward with their pradiegs. We cannot predict when or how these matters willéeided or the effect on the Company’s subsidy
or switched access revenues. However, future tieshscin the Company’s subsidy or switched accessrues may directly affect the Company’s profligband cash flows as those regulatory revenuesato
have an equal level of associated variable expenses

We are reliant on support funds provided under fedkeand state laws.

A portion of Frontier's total revenues ($ 319 nailli or 7 %, in 201 4 and $ 317 million, or 7 %20l 3 ) are derived from federal and sta te siigsifor rural and high- cost s upport, commonfemed
to as USF . Future reductions in the Company’'ssisiybrevenues may directly affect the Company'sfifbility and cash flows. The FCC's 2011 Orderthanged how federal subsidies are calculated and
disbursed, with these changes being phased-in miegiin July 201 2 . These changes transitioniB€& , which supports voice services in high-costsy to the CAF, which supports broadband deployinen
high-cost areas. CA F Phase |, which was implenteime2012 to provide interim support while the F@éveloped CAF Phase I, provided for ongoing USppsut for price cap carriers capped at the 2011
amount. In addition, the FCC in the first round3XF Phase | made available for price cap ILECsdditnal $300 million in incremental high - cosbhdband support to be used for broadband deplaytoen
unserved areas. In 2012 and early 201 3, weveste a total of $72 million in CAF Phase | furaisd initially recorded such funds as increasesashGind Other liabilities in the balance sheete $A2 million
in the first round of CAF Phase | support is expddb enable an incremental 92,877 householdséadband service and was accounted for as Coriaitsuin Aid of Construction. We are requiredspend the
first round of CAF Phase | funds to enable theseskbold s no later than July 24, 2015. We speftt Siflion on the first round of CAF Phase | funds metwork expansion during 2014 and $ 63 millionthafse
CAF Phase | funds to date through December 31,,284abling 83,100 unserved households.

On May 21, 2013, the FCC released the 2013 Ordiéwodring a second round of CAF Phase | . As pathe 2013 Order, the FCC expanded the areaiblelifpr funding to include those that lack
service of 3 Mbps download and 768 kbps upldad2013 and early 2014, we received $6 1 milliortiea second round of CAF Phase | funds . We areined)to spend the second round of the CAF Phase |
funds to enable 101,714 households no later thawhvie4, 2017. The second round of CAF Phase | dedicertain accompanying spending requirements ihenCompany, and our capital expenditure plans tak
this into account. We spent $ 31 million of theasetround of CAF Phase | funds on network expandioing 2014, enabling 80,900 unserved and undezddrouseholds.

Federal subsidies representing interstate acceg®suhigh- cost loop support and local switchémgport represented $ 162 million, or 3 %, of Feats total revenues in 201 4 and $ 167 million4d¥o,
of Frontier's total revenues in 201 3 . State #libs represented $ 32 million, or 1 %, of Frongidotal revenues in 201 4 and $ 32 million, or %201 3 . Surcharges to customers (local, lastadce and
interconnection) to recover universal service fandtribution fees which are remitted to the FCC sembrded as an expense in “ Network related exggehgepresented $ 125 million, or 3 %, of Frarsi¢otal
revenues in 201 4 and $ 118 million, or 2%, in 301 As a result, a significant decrease in thessigies, or in our ability to recover such feesjld have a material adverse effect on our busioesssults of
operations.

Our Company and our industry will likely remain higy regulated, and we could incur substantial corigaice costs that could constrain our ability to cpete in our target markets.

As an incumbent local exchange carrier, some ofé#reices we offer are subject to significant ragiah from federal, state and local authoritiefiisTregulation could impact our ability to change o
rates, especially on our basic voice services amdocess rates, and could impose substantial ¢éamepl costs on us. Regulation could constrainability to compete and, in some jurisdictions, mestrict our
ability to expand our service offerings. In adufiti changes to the regulations that govern oumbassi (including any implementation of the 2011 ©mfethe 2013 Order) may have an adverse effeatun
business by reducing the allowable fees that we chayge, imposing additional compliance costs, ceduthe amount of subsidies or otherwise chandtiegnature of our operations and the competitiooun
industry. At this time it is unknown how these riegions will affect Frontier's operations or abjlito compete in the future. This and other FC@makings and state regulatory proceedings, incutinse
relating to intercarrier compensation, universavise and broadband services, could have a sukmtadierse impact on our operations.

In addition, in connection with our Internet accefferings, we could become subject to laws andlegpns as they are adopted or applied to theriete including so-called “net neutrality” rulésat are

intended to preserve the openness of the Interfieére is currently only limited regulation applite to these services. As the significance of titerhet expands, federal, state and local govertsmeay pass
laws and adopt rules and regulations, or applytiegisaws and regulations to
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the Internet (including Internet access servicas)l related matters are under consideration in featéral and state legislative and regulatory bedi&e cannot predict whether the outcome of pendinfuture
proceedings will prove beneficial or detrimentabte competitive position.

We may not be able to deploy or upgrade broadbagntise to the unserved and underserved locationthwhe CAF funds received.

In 2012 and early 2013, we received $72 milliomfrthe first round of CAF Phase |, which supportsalband deployment in high-cost areas. If weuaable to deploy to the 92,877 unserved locations
with the CAF funds received to date in accordanitk the FCC rules by July 2015, then the Companyld/aeed to incur additional capital expendituresefund a portion of the CAF funds received in 2@hd
2013 to the FCC.

In 2013 and early 2014, we received $6 1 millionttie second round of CAF Phase | funding to endblik714 households by March 2017. The second rafifdAF Phase | includes certain
accompanying spending requirements from the Compary our capital expenditur e plans take this @ount.

Risks Related to Technology
W e may be unable to meet the technological needsxpectations of our customers, and may lose cuostes as a result.

The communications industry is subject to significehanges in technology and r eplacing or upgadim infrastructure to keep pace with such teabgiokl changes could result in significant capital
expenditures. If we do not replace or upgraderteltiyy and equipment as necessary , we may beeaitmbbmpete effectively because we will not be ablmeet the needs or expectations of our cuskomer

In addition, enhancements to product offerings thirdmanagement of broadband speed and capacigsissay influence our customers to consider otheicgeproviders, like cable operators or wireless
providers. We may be unable to attract or retaw rustomers from cable companies due to theirogepnt of enhanced broadband and VolP technoltgyddition, new capacity services for wireless
broadband technologies may permit our competiisffer broadband data services to our customeosigfnout mo st or all of our service areas. Anyiltesy inability to attract new or retain existicgstomers
could adversely impact our business and resultopefations in a material manner .

Our services could be adversely affected and we tagubject to increased costs and claims in conioecwith Internet and systems security and malio®practices.

We use encryption and authentication technolognbed from third parties to provide secure transimisof confidential information, including our bosss data and customer information. We also rely
on employees in our network operations centers denters, call centers and retail stores to foldaw procedures when handling such informationy Anauthorized access, computer viruses, accidental
intentional release of confidential informationather disruptions could result in increased caststomer dissatisfaction leading to loss of custsraed revenues, and fines and other liabilities.

In addition, our Company or our customers usingreiwork to access the Internet may become viaiimalicious and abusive Internet activities, inahgdunsolicited mass advertising (“spam”), peer-to-
peer file sharing, distribution of viruses, wornmslather destructive or disruptive software. Thestivities could adversely affect our network,ufein excessive call volume at our call centerd damage our or
our customers’ equipment and data.

The Company maintains security measures , disastevery plans and business continuity plans farbusiness. However , the Company’s informatiartht®logy networks and infrastructure may
nonetheless be vulnerable to damage, disruptiosBuddowns due to attack by hackers or breachgsipgee error or malfeasance, power outages, compiiteses, telecommunication or utility failuregsgems
failures, natural disasters or other catastrophénts. Any such events could result in legal claimproceedings, liability or penalties , disruptio operations, misappropriation of sensitive ddemage to the
Company'’s reputation and costly response measwtesh could adversely affect the Company’s busin&bgre can be no assurance that such disruptiomssappropriations and the resulting repercussidiis
not be material to our results of operations, faiancondition or cash flows.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Iltem 2. Properties
Our principal corporate offices are located in éghpremises at 3 High Ridge Park, Stamford, Commgd6905.
Our principal operations support offices and cafiter support offices with over 200 employees areently located in the following leased or ownedrpises :

« 1398 South Woodland B Ivd., DeLand, Florida 327128ased)

« 805 Central Expressway South , Allen, Texas 75Q&2aged)

« 8001 W. Jefferson Blvd., Frt Wayne, Indiana 468C(Leased’

« 1500 MacCorkle Avenue, Chleston, West Virginia 2530(Leased;
« 198 East 1600 South Street, Provo, Utah 84606 @dhas

« 1800 41" Street, Everett, Washington 98203 (Leased)

« 350 George Street, New Haven, Connecticut 0651 Ingaly

« 1225 Jefferson Road, Rochester, New York 14623gga)

« 14 Classic Street, Sherburne, New York 13460 (Lease

« 95 North Fitzhugh Street, Rochester, New York 14@vned)

« 1300 Columbut-Sandusky Foad North, Marion, Ohio 43302 (Owne
« 40 Brainard Road, Hartford, Connecticut 06114 (el

« 14450 Bur nhaven Drive, Burnsville, Minnesota 55806ased)

« 3441 West Henrietta Road, Rochester, New York 14628sed)

« 100 Communications Drive, Sun Prairie, WisconsiB%B(Leased)
« 100 CTE DriveDallas, Pennsylvania 186 (Leased;

In addition, we lease and own additional spaceuinaperating markets throughout the United Staiesperations support and call center support.

Our network properties include: connecting linesueen customers' premises and the central officesstral office switching equipment; fiber optindamicrowave radio facilities; buildings and larahd
customer premise equipment. The connecting limeduding aerial and underground cable, conduitepolvires and microwave equipment, are locatedutrigostreets and highways or on privately ownetila
We have permission to use these lands pursuaocabgovernmental consent or lease, permit, frasgcldasement or other agreement.

The plants and properties (owned or leased) opgblteis and our subsidiaries are maintained in goodition and are believed to be suitable and @akecfor our present needs.

Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings

See Note 18 of the Notes to Consolidated Finaigte@tements included in Part IV of this report.

We are party to various legal proceedings (inclgdimdividual, class and putative class actionsjimgiin the normal course of our business covesimgde range of matters and types of claims inclgdbut not
limited to, general contracts, billing disputeghts of access, taxes and surcharges, consuntecfion, trademark and patent infringement, empleymregulatory, tort, claims of competitors anspdites with
other carriers. Litigation is subject to uncertgiand the outcome of individual matters is notdizeable. However, we believe that the ultimatohetion of all such matters, after consideringiiasice coverage
or other indemnities to which we are entitled, wilit have a material adverse effect on our findmpmaition, results of operations, or our cash ow

ltem 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART Il

Iltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Relted Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Eiity Securities

Our common stock is currently traded on the NASDBIQbal Selec t Market under the symbol FTR. The amand timing of dividends payable on our commimels are within the sole discret ion of o ur Board
of Directors. On December 11, 2014, our Board o&Etbrs approved a 5% increase over the 2014 dididate in the planned quarterly cash dividend, maenmencing with the dividend for the first quané
2015. On an annual basis, this plan would incrézeselividend from $0.40 to $0.42 per shar€ash dividends paid to shareholders were $ 40iomind $400 million in 201 4 and 201 3 , respegifi. There
are no material restrictions on our ability to pyidends.

A portion of the dividends is classified as totedinary dividends and represents qualified dividgrahd a portion of the dividends is classifieth@s-dividend distributions and represents a retdicapital.

The following table indicates the high and low &attay sales prices per sh are , as reported BYAISAQ Global Select Market, and sets forth dividepaid per share during the periods indicated.

2014 2013
High Low Dividend High Low Dividend
First Quarte! $ 574 $ 440 $ 0.10 $ 468 $ 371 $ 0.10
Second Quarte $ 6.10 $ 541 $ 0.10 $ 443 $ 380 $ 0.10
Third Quartel $ 724 % 562 $ 0.10 $ 476 $ 391 $ 0.10
Fourth Quarte $ 715 $ 562 $ 0.10 $ 502 $ 416 $ 0.10

As of February 1 3, 201 5, the approximate nunabeecurity holders of record of our common staels 472,330 . This information was obtained fromteansfer agent, Computershare Inc.
STOCKHOLDER RETURN PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following performance graph compares the cutiveldotal return of our common stock to the S&R Slock Index and to the S&P Telecommunication Besvindex for the five-year per iod commencing
December 31, 2009 .

COMPARISON OF FIVE YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among Frentier Communications Corporation, the S&P 500 index,
and the S&P Telecommunication Services index

8250
5200
$150

$100 g

§50

$0 . . L . .\
12109 12110 121 1212 12113 12114
—&— Frontier Communications Corporation  — -—- 53P500Index -~ S&P Telecommunication Services

The graph assumes that $100 was invested on Dec@&hb2009 in each of our common stock, the S&P Sk Index and the S&P Telecommunication Senvicdex and that all dividends were reinvested.
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INDEXED RETURNS

Base Years Ending

Period
Company / Index 12/09 12/10 12/11 12/12 12/13 12/14
Frontier Communications Corporation 100 138.98 82.24 74.99 89.51 136.94
S&P 500 Index 100 115.06 117.49 136.30 180.44 205.14
S&P Telecommunication Services 100 118.96 126.42 149.56 166.71 171.70

The foregoing performance graph and related infarorashall not be deemed “soliciting material” oo be “filed” with the SEC, nor shall such informati be incorporated by reference into any futurindis
under the Securities Act of 1933 or the SecurHieshange Act of 1934, each as amended, excepe &xthnt we specifically incorporate it by refereimto such filing.

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES, USE OF REEEDS FROM REGISTERED SECURITIES

There were no unregistered sales of equity seesritiring the fourth quarter of 201 4 .

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Period Total Number of Shares Purchas Average Price Paid per Sh:

October 1, 2014 to October 31, 2C

Employee Transactiort$ - $ R
November 1, 2014 to November 30, 2(

Employee Transactior® 1,896 $ 6.57
December 1, 2014 to December 31, 2

Employee Transactiori$ - $ -
Totals October 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014

Employee Transactior® 1,896 $ 6.57

@ Includes restricted shares withheld (under the seofngrants under employee stock compensation Jptansffset minimum tax withholding obligations thaccur upon the vesting of restricted shares. Chepany's stock
compensation plans provide that the value of shaitbdeld shall be the average of the high and polwe of the Company’s common stock on the dateelerant transaction occurs.
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The following tables present selected historicalsmidated financial information of Frontier foretiperiods indicated. The selected historical clifested financial information of Frontier as of afwd each of the
five fiscal years in the period ended December2®1L, 4 has been derived from Frontier's historicaisolidated financial statements. The selectemiiial consolidated financial information as ofd@enber 31,
201 4 and 201 3 and for each of the three yearsceBecember 31, 201 4 is derived from the auditstbtical consolidated financial statements of Fiemincluded elsewhere in this Form 10-K. Theestdd
historical consolidated financial information as¥cember 31, 201 2 , 201 1 and 20 10 and for ehtte years ended December 31, 201 1 and 20 déried from the audited historical consolidatetaficial

statements of Frontier not included in this ForrK10

(8 in thousands, except per share amou

Revenue

Net income?®@®®

Net income attributable to comm
shareholders of Fronti€®®®

Net income attributable to comm
shareholders of Frontier per basic
Sharetzv (3) (@) (5)

Net income attributable to comm
shareholders of Frontier per dilut
Sharetzv (3) (@) (5)

Cash dividends declared (and paid) per
common shar

Total asset
Long-term deb
Total shareholders' equity of Frontier

@

acquisition on July 1, 201(
2

3

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
$ 4,772,49C $ 4,761,57¢ $ 5,011,85¢ $ 5,243,04% $ 3,797,67¢
$ 132,892 $ 115,47¢ $ 153,314 $ 157,608 $ 155,717
$ 132,892 $ 112,83t $ 136,636 $ 149,614 $ 152,672
$ 013 ¢ 011 $ 014 $ 0.15 $ 0.23
$ 013 ¢ 011 $ 013 $ 0.15 § 0.23
$ 0.40 $ 0.40 $ 040 $ 0.75 $ 0.875

As of December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
$ 18,974,03( $ 16,635,48¢ $ 17,733,631 $ 17,448,31¢ $ 17,888,101
$ 9,485,61¢ $ 7,873,661 $ 8,381,947 $ 8,224,392 $ 8,005,68¢
$ 3,657,677 $ 4,055,481 $ 4,107,59€ $ 4,455,137 $ 5,196,74C

Operating results include activitifor the Connecticut operations from the date ofrtaequisition from AT&T on October 24, 2014 afor theproperties acquired from Verizon 2010 from the date ctheir

Operating results include the pre-tax impacteés on retirement of d ebt or exchanges of de®t@&0) million ($99 million, or $0.10 per shareteaftax), and $90 million ($5fillion, or $0.06 per shai
after tax) for 201:and2012, respectively
Operating results include pre-tax acquisition emelgration costs of $ 142 million ($ 91 milliorr, $ 0.09 per share, after tax), $10 million ($@lion, or $0.01 per share, after tax), $8dlion ($51 million, ol

$0.05 per share, after tax), $143 million ($87 imil| or $0.09 per share, after tiand$137 million ($8€million, or $0.13 per share, after tax) for 24, 2013, 2012, 2011 and 2C10, respectively

(4)

Operating results include [-tax severance costs $ 2 million ($ 1 million after tax),$ 12 million ($7 million, or $0.01 per share, after ta$B2 million ($20 million, or $0.02 per she, after tax), $1

million ($10million, or $0.01 per share, after teand$10million ($6 million, or $0.01 per share, after tax) for 24, 2013, 2012, 2011 and 2C10, respectively

(5,

Operating results include pre-tax pension settig¢roests of $ 44 million ($27 million, or $ 0.03rhare, after tax) for 201 3 .
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Item 7. Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations
(a) Results of Operations

Effective October 24, 2014 , the Company's scopepafrations and balance sheet capitalization cltamgeerially as a result of the completion of then@ecticut Acquisition . Historical financial angerating

data presented for Frontier is not indicative afifa results and includes the results of the Cdime@perations that were acquired in the Congat#cquisition from the date of acquisition on Glwer 24, 2014 .
The financial discussion below include s a compaeaanalysis of our results of operations on adhisal basis for our Frontier operations as of &ordt he years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 abd 20

Unless otherwise noted, the variance explanatitsmusised below are ba sed upon an analysis ofahé fnancial data for Frontier legacy operatioesc{uding the Connecticut operations) in comparison
2013.

Prior period amounts for o ther operating expeisa® been revised from the previously discloseduamsoto r eflect the disaggregation of other opegagéxpenses into n etwork related expenses afithg, e
general and administrative expenses. There hasrimeehange to t otal operating expense as a mfsthiis reclassification.

REVENUE

Revenue is generated primarily through the prowisib voice services, data services, video servinesyork access, carrier services and other Intesewvices. Such revenues are generated throtigér ei
monthly recurring fee or a fee based on usagererghue recognition is not dependent upon sigmifigadgments by management, with the exceptiondgtarmination of a provision for uncollectible amés .

Revenue for 201 4 increased $ 11 million to &2, million as compared to 2013. Excluding addaiorevenue of $ 216 million attributable to the @ecticut operations, our revenue for 2014 decre&szeb
million, or 4 %, as compared to 2013. This declm@014 is primarily the result of decreases incedgervices revenues and lower switched and nanbked access revenue, partially offset by an irseréa data
services revenue, each as described in more detail.

Total company s witched access and subsidy reveh$e520 million represented 11 % of our revenwes2014. Switched access revenue was $ 201 milid&014, or 4 % o f our revenues, down from $235
million, or 5% of our revenues, in 2013. Subsidyerue was $ 319 million in 2014, or 7 % of our maves , which increased slightly from $317 millionor 7% of our revenues, in 201 3. We expectiniag
revenue trend s in switched access revenue toncenin 2015 .

Revenue for 2013 decreased $ 250 million, or 584 4,762 million as compared to 2012. The dedlin2013 was primarily the result of decreases iit&voevenues and lower switched and nonswitcheesacc
revenue, partially offset by an increase in dataises revenue, each as described in more detawbédditionally, wireless revenue decreased 2$million in 2013 due to the sale of our Mohavel@ar
Limited Partnership (Mohave) interest on April D13.

During 2014, we gained 445,300 customers, netpagpared to a loss of 98,900 customers, net, in 20i3a loss of 240,500 customers, net, in 2012lublitg 526,9 00 customers attributable to the Coticet
Acquisition , we lost 81 ,6 00 customers , ne2014 . We believe the improved customer reteritid®®014 as compared to prior years is principéllg to our investments in our network, our locajagement
strategy, improved customer service and simplifiextiucts and pricing.

Total residential revenue for 201 4 increase@5$nillion, or 3 %, as compared to 201 3. Totaldestial revenue for 2014 included $ 11 6 milliohrevenue attributable to the Connecticut operatidrotal
residential revenue for our Frontier legacy operatideclined $ 51 million, or 3 %, as compared 213, primarily as a result of decreases in veemices revenue and the sale of our interestarivtbhave
partnership , partially offset by increases in daevices revenue . We had approximately 3,214,20803,500 and 2,887,100 total residentialarnsers as of December 31, 2014, 201 3 and 20kbecévely.
Excluding 478,100 total residential customers lattidble to the Connecticut Acquisition in 2014we lost approximately 66,80 0 , 83,600 and 216 f&fdential customers, net, during 2014, 2013 &@iP2
respectively, principally driven by declines in eeicustomers. O ur residential customer monthlyrcheas 1.73 %, 1. 6 9 % and 1.62% for 2014, 2@h@ 2012 , respectively. Average monthly resi@gnti
revenue per customer (residential ARPC) increask®@®, or 3 %, to $ 61.11 during 2014 as comp&re&tD13. The overall increase in residential ARB@Le to a higher percent age of the Company'destal
customers that take broadband services, Frontienr8eroducts, broadband customer migration todrigpeeds and certain pricing actions. The Compapgcts continuing increases in data services teyen
primarily driven by increased broadband subscribend continuing declines in voice services revenue

Total business revenue for 201 4 decreased riili@n, or 1 %, as compared to 201 3. Total businevenue for 2014 included $ 90 million of rexeattributable to the Connecticut operations. Mutainess
revenue for our Frontier legacy operations declined
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$ 113 million, or 5 %, as compared with 2013 , gipally as a result of decreases in our voice sesvievenue and wireless backhaul revenue . \Wayaroximately 304,700 , 270,800 and 286,100 tmiainess
customers as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 26%gectively. Excluding 48,8 00 total business custs attributable to the Connecticut Acquisitior2®14 , we lost approximately 14,9 00 , 15,306 a
23,800 business customers, net, during 2014, 204212, respectively. Average monthly businesemae per customer (business ARPC) increased $ 6111 %, to $ 661.15 during 201 4 as comparedto 2
3. The overall increase in business ARPC is piilgndue to declining customer counts for our snhaisiness cus tomers that carry a lower ARPC. Thepaoy expects the declines in voice services rexend
wireless backhaul from business customers to coatim 2015, mitigated, in part, by increases imdatrvices revenue .

During 201 4 , the Company added approximately WY net broadband subscribers. Excluding 398, broé@dband subscribers attributable to the Connecticquisition , we added approximately 108,7n@®
broadband subscribers in 2014. During 201 3 an@ 2@he Company added approximately 112,250 ardDR3, net broadband subscribers, respectively.fA3cember 31, 201 4, approximately 68 % of our
residential broadband customers subs cribecbtmdle of services. As of December 31, 201 4 , weevable to offer broadband to approximately 7 Banihouseholds, or 92 % of the 8.5 million housiels in

our markets. The increase in broadband subscritmersibuted to our improved data services reveredopmance . We continue to invest in networkespand capacity to support our goal of increasing
broadband penetration and market share. We expeontinue to increase broadband subscribers ir5201

Management believes that customer counts and avenagthly revenue per customer are important fadtoevaluating our trends. Among the key servigeprovide to residential customers are voiceismry
data service and video service. We continue tocegpthe potential to provide additional service®tm customer base, with the objective of meetith@faour customers’ communications needs. For hess
customers we provide voice and data services, Bssva broad range of value-added services.

I n the section “ Revenue and Customer Relatediddet below is a table that presents customer tnaverage monthly revenue per customer and cestohurn. It also categorizes revenue into custome

revenue (residential and business) and regulatwgnue (switched access and subsidy revenue)dddime in the number of customers was partialfgaifby increased penetration of additional higleeenue
generating products sold to both residential argir@ss customers, which has increased our averagthiy revenue per customer.
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REVENUE AND CUSTOMER RELATED METRICS

($.in thousand) 2014 2013 2012
Frontier Legac)
Consolidatec Connectiu $ Increast % Increast $ Increast % Increast
Amount Operations Amount Decrease Decrease Amount Decrease Decrease Amount
Voice servicet 1,950,93¢ $ 74,039 $ 1,876,89¢ $ (167,732 )% 2,044,631 $ (198,001 9)% 2,242,632
Data and Internet servic 1,947,967 88,468 1,859,49¢ (6,962 0)% 1,866,461 61,110 3% 1,805,351
Other 353,75¢ 44,098 309,661 10,818 4% 298,843 58,152 (16)% 356,995
Customer revenu 4,252,66¢ 206,605 4,046,05¢ (163,876 @)% 4,209,93¢ (195,043 @)% 4,404,97¢
Switched access al
subsidy 519,82€ 9,091 510,735 (40,906 ™% 551,641 55,234 9% 606,875
Total revenut 4.772,& $ 215‘% $ 4,556,79¢ $ (204,72 @)% 4,761,57¢ $ (250,277 5)% 5,011,852
2014 2013 2012
Frontier Legac)
Consolidatec Connectiu $ Increast % Increas¢ $ Increast % Increast
Amount Operations Amount Decrease Decrease Amount Decrease Decrease Amount
Residentia 2,092,251 § 116,485 $ 1,975,76€ $ (51,144 3)% 2,026,91C § (101,949 (5)% 2,128,85¢
Busines¢ 2,160,412 90,120 2,070,298 (112,732 )% 2,183,02¢ (93,004 @)% 2,276,11¢
Customer revenu 4,252,66¢ 206,605 4,046,05¢ (163,876 (@)% 4,209,93¢ (195,043 @)% 4,404,97¢
Switched access al
subsidy 519,82€ 9,091 510,735 (40,906 ™% 551,641 55,234 9% 606,875
Total revenue 4,772,490 $ 215,% $ 4,556,79: $ (204,7% @)% 4,76157¢ $ (250,277 (5)%
As of or for the year ended December
2014 % Increase (Decreas % Increase (Decreas
Customers"” 3,519,572 14% 3,074,28( 3% 3,173,16¢
Residential customer metrics:
Customers” 3,214,83€ 15% 2,803,481 @)% 2,887,062
Average monthly residential
revenue per customét $ 61.11 3% 59.23 2% $ 58.33
Customer monthly churn 1.73% 2% 1.69% 4% 1.62%
Business customer metrics
Customer:” 304,736 13% 270,79¢ (5)% 286,106
Average monthly busine:
revenue per custom $ 661.15 1% 654.04 2% $ 639.13
Broadband subscribe” 2,373,89¢ 27% 1,866,67C 6% 1,754,422
Video subscriber” 586,616 52% 385,352 11% 346,627
Switched access minutes of use (in millio 15,193 8)% 16,498 (10)% 18,292
(1) Reflects 478,100 48,80Mbes and 526,900 total atblaito the C ticut Acq 1 as of Octobér, 2014.
(2 Calculation excludes the of imited (Mohave), which was sald/erizon Wireless on April 1, 2013.
(3  Reflects 398,600 and 196jde6 i to the C i ion as of October 24, 201
Note: As stated in our report for the quart eryipd ended March 31, 2014 , prior period reveme @rtain operating statistics have been revisad the previously disclosed a mounts to of certain to business and the related impa

average monthly revenue per customer amounts.
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Voice Services

Voice services revenues for 2014 decreased $ 16i8mir 8 %, as compared with 2013, primarily doeb150 million , or 9%, in lower local and enhadcservices revenue. This decrease is primarilytaltiee
continued loss of voice customers and, to a lessnt, decreases in individual features packaemsially offset by increased local voice chargesesidential a nd business end users . Longrdistaervices
revenue decreased $ 1 7 million, or 5 %, primatilg to an 8 % decrease in minutes of use drivéfiewegr customers, partially offset by increased cesbvery surcharge rates.

Voice services revenue s for 2013 decreased $ 18i8rmor 9 %, as compared with 2012, including38Imillion , or 8%, in lower local and enhancedvimss revenue. This decrease was primarily duéeo t
continued loss of voice customers and, t 0 a lessgent, decreases in individual features packgmesally offset by increased local voice chargesesidential and business end users to the epégntitted by the
2011 Order. Long distance services revenue desteg§0 million, or 14 %, primarily due to lowermates of use driven by fewer customers and theatiar to bundled packages.

Data and Internet Services

Data and Internet services revenue s for 2014 deete$ 7 million as compared with 2013 . Datalatetnet services includes nonswitched accesswtevéom data transmission services to other garead

high-volume business customers with dedica ted-bagiacity Internet and Ethernet circuits. Theseswdtched access revenue s decreased $92 milidr) % , primarily due to lower monthly recurricigarges
attributable to a reduction in wireless backhaul ather carrier service revenues. These decreamesmostly offset by increases in d ata servicesmee s of $ 85 million, or 9 %, primarily duea®% inc rease
in the total number of broadband customers andssaf Frontier Secure products. We expect wirelesa usage to continue to increase, which may dnizeneed for additional wireless backhaul capaEigspite

the need for additional capacity, we expect to iooetto experience declines in wireless backhawdmrae in 201 5 , as our carrier partners migratéthernet solutions at lower price point s andaiercustomers
migrate to our competitors .

Data and Internet services revenue s for 2013 ase $ 61 million, or 3 %, as compared with 2012taDservices revenue increased $ 85 million, of4l(rimarily due to a 6% increase in the number of
broadband customers and sales of Frontier Secadeigts. These increases were offset by a $ 24omilér 3 %, decrease in nonswitched access reyenimarily due to a reduction in wireless backhaul

Other
Other revenue s for 201 4 increased $ 11 mill@m4 %, primarily due to lower bad debt expensixt are charged to other revenue and increasstdroer premise equipment revenue s , partiallyeofy
lower wireless revenue associated with the satewfinterest in the Mohave partnership and lovikatory services revenue s .

Other revenue s for 2013 decreased $ 58 milliori,6o%, primarily due to lower wireless revenue soagted with the sale of our interest in the Ma@hpartnership , lower directory services revenuarsl the
reduction in FiOS video service customers , pHytbffset by lower bad debt expenses.

Switched Access and Subsidy

Switched access and subsidy revenue for 201 4reased $41 million, or 7 %, to $ 511 mi llion,csmpared to 2013. Switched access revenue dedrga8amillion, or 16%, and subsidy revenue decre:§8e
million in 2014. The decrease in switched accessmee was primarily due to the impact of a declimminutes of use related to access line losseédhe displacement of minutes of use by wirelessather
communications services combined with a reductios b the impact of the lower rates enacted by-(B€'s intercarrier com pensation reform in July 20The decrease in switched access revenues alsdéa
the impact of disputes with carriers and customedits. The 2011 Order provided for the graduahiglation of terminating traffic charges by 2017. Wave been able to recover a significant portiothese lost
revenues through end user rates and other replacsugport mechanisms, a trend we expect will cortithrough 2015.

Switched access and subsidy revenue for 2013 dexte®55 million, or 9 %, as compared with 2012it@wed access revenue accounted for $ 48 milbod,7 %, of this decrease , primarily due to thpawt of
a decline in minutes of use related to accessldisges and the displacement of minutes of use bslesis, email and other communications servicesbzwed with a reduction due to the impact of thedowvates
enacted by the FCC's intercarrier compensationrmefo These decreases in switched access reverregartially offset by the impact of disputeshnéarriers and lower customer credits. Subsidymeges
decreased $8 million, or 2%, primarily due to tbeér contribution factor for end user USF in 2013.

T he FCC has announced its CAF |l model developraedtCAF Il funding could be implemented during 20WWe cannot determine whether we will accepefuse any funding under the CAF Phase Il support
programs until all obligations associated with fineding have been determined.
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OPERATING EXPENSES

NETWORK ACCESS EXPENSES

($.in thousand) 2014 2013 2012
Frontier Legacy
Consolidatec Connecticu $ Increast % Increast $ Increast % Increast
Amount Operations Amount Decrease Decrease Amount (Decrease Decrease Amount
Network access expens $ 465,395 § 38570 $ 426,825 § (4,248 (1)% $ 431,073 § (10,515 (2)% $ 441,588

Network access expenses include access chargesttardthird-party costs directly attributable toyiding access to customer locations from our netvemd video content costs. These costs excludeonlet
related expenses, depreciation and amortizatiaheerployee related expenses.

Network access expenses for 201 4 de creasedifiieh, or 1 %, primarily due to lower reciprocedmpensation costs that are recorded in networéssoexpenses, partially offset by higher joint pates and
an increase in network access expenses relateghertbroadband subscriber counts.

Network access expenses for 2013 decreased $ lidnndr 2%, primarily due to lower long distanc@rigage costs, reduced content costs related terféi0S® video service customers and a reducti@osts
for our originating traffic associated with the ilamentation of the 2011 Order effective with thecsel half of 2012.

NETWORK RELATED EXPENSES

($.in thousand) 2014 2013 2012
Frontier Legacy
Consolidatec Connecticu $ Increas¢ % Increast $ Increas¢ % Increast
Amount Operations Amount (Decrease Decrease Amount (Decrease Decrease Amount
Network related expens $ 1,118,427 § 51,531 $ 1,066,89¢ $ (16,659 )% $ 1,083,555 $ (50,137 (4)% $ 1,133,692

Network related expenses include certain experssscimted with the delivery of services to custanaerd the operation and maintenance of our netwsaidt) as facility rent, utilities, maintenance atiter costs,
as well as salaries, wages and related benefitgiassd with personnel who are responsible fordilevery of services, operation and maintenanceuofnetwork .

Network related expenses for 2014 decreased $lidmm or 2% , primarily due to lower allocatedsts for certain benefits, including pension &REB expense (as discussed below) , and reducediatisn
and repair costs, partially offset by increasedtfend facilities costs.

Network related expenses for 2013 decreased $ lOmbr 4 %, primarily due to the full year imgecom the elimination of redundant informationheology costs associated with the completion ofstrems
conversion related to the 2010 Acquisition andltineer contribution factor for end user USF in 20@8rtially offset by increased fleet costs .

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

($.in thousand) 2014 2013 2012
Frontier Legac)
Consolidatec Connecticu $ Increast % Increast $ Increast % Increast
Amount Operations Amount (Decrease Decrease Amount (Decrease Decrease Amount

Selling, general an
administrative expenst $ 1,088,18C § 29,798 $ 1,058,38z $ 869 0% $ 1,057,51: § (43,348 @)% $ 1,100,861

Selling, general and administrative expenses (S@&penses) for 2014, which include the salaries,ewamnd related benefits and the related costsrpbrate and sales personnel, travel, insurancenetmork
related rent, advertising and other administratieenses, increased $1 million . This increasepsiasarily due to higher agent commission costs;tamithl compensation costs related to our new pastrip with
Intuit, and an increase in certain litigation ressrin the first quarter of
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2014, mostly offset by lower allocated costs fataie benefits, including pension and OPEB expdasaliscussed below) , and lower facilities costs.

SG&A expenses for 2013 decreased $ 43 million, &b,4primarily due to lower costs for compensatiesuiting from lower average employee headcouniveicseverance costs and lower advertising costs,
partially offset by higher agent commission costs .

Pension and OPEB Costs

Pension and OPEB costs for the Company are alldeatsts and included in network related expensdsS@&A expenses. Pension and OPEB costs, exclutimgnpact of pension settlement costs, for 2014,
2013 and 2012 were approximately $59 million, $7Bion and $66 million, respectively. Pension an®EB costs include pension and OPEB expense of $lidrm$97 million and $82 million, less amounts
capitalized into the cost of capital expenditure$b million, $19 million and $16 million, respaatly.

Based on current assumptions and plan asset valigesstimate that our 2015 pension and OPEB custilf were $74 million in 2014, excluding the impaf amounts capitalized into the cost of capital
expenditures) will be approximately $ 85 million&d 05 million, excluding the impact of amountsitaljzed into the cost of capital expenditures.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

($.in thousand) 2014 2013 2012
Frontier Legacy
Consolidatec Connecticu $ Increast % Increas¢ $ Increast % Increas¢
Amount Operations Amount Decrease Decrease Amount (Decrease Decrease Amount
Depreciation expens $ 835470 $ 38,018 $ 797,452 § (44,003 )% $ 841,455 § (3,186 ©% 3 844,641
Amortization expens 303,472 19,985 283,487 (44,558 (14)% 328,045 (94,121 (22)% 422,16€
$ 1,138.94z $ 58,003 $ 1,080,93¢ § (88,561 (8)% $ 1,169,50C § (97,307 ®)% $ 1,266,807

Depreciation and amortization expense for 201 ecrehsed $ 89 million, or 8 %, primarily due te #itcelerated method of amortization related tatistomer base that was acquired in the 2010 Aitiguisind
changes in the remaining useful lives of certaianplassets and a lower net asset base. We amtiaifepreciation expense of approximately $ 960iamito $ 980 million and amortization expense of
approximately $ 345 million for 2015 , includindudl year associated with the Connecticut operation

Depreciation and amortization expense for 2013edemd $ 97 million, or 8 %, primarily due to theelerated method of amortization related to theéatuer base that was acquired in the 2010 Acquisiiod
accelerated amortization for certain softwareri&es in 2012 .

PENSION SETTLEMENT COSTS

($in thousands 2014 2013 2012

Pension settlement cot $ - 8 44,163 $ -

Our pension plan contains provisions that proviegain employees with the option of receiving & nlp sum payment upon retirement. We record thagments as a settlement only if, in the aggredhss;
exceed the sum of the annual service and intemests dor the plan’s net periodic pension benefgtc®uring 2013, lump sum pension settlement paysnenterminated or retired individuals exceedesl th
settlement threshold and a s a result, the Compasyrequired to recognize a non-cash settlememgehaf $44 million . This non-cash charge wasuiegl to accelerate the recognition of a portiorthaf
previously unrecognized actuarial losses in thesjpenplan. The amount of any future non-cashesettht charges will be dependent on the level oplsam benefit payments.
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ACQUISITION AND INTEGRATION COSTS

($.in thousand) 2014 2013 2012
$ Increast % Increast $ Increast % Increase
Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount

Acquisition anc
integration cost $ 141,605 $ 131,952 NM $ 9,652 $ (72,085 (88)% $ 81,737

NM — Not Meaningful

During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company Ipetgaincur a cquisition and integration costs immection with the Connecticut Acquisition tleldsed on October 24, 2014. Acquisition costs idellegal,
financial advisory, accounting, regulatory and ottedated costs. Integration costs include expeimssred to integrate the network and informatiechnology platforms and to enable other integraitiitiatives.
In 2014, the Company incurred $ 15 million in asifion costs and $ 127 million of in tegration somtlated to the Connecticut Acquisition. In 20th® Company incurred $10 million of acquisition tsoelated
to the Connecticut Acquisition. | n 2012, the Compincurred $82 million of integration costs in o@ation with the 2010 Acquisition . All integrati@etivities related to the 2010 Acquisition werengeted as
of the end of 2012. In 2014, w e also investedl&rillion in capital expenditures related to @ennecticut Acquisition .

GAIN ON SALE OF MOHAVE PARTNERSHIP INTEREST

(8 in thousands 2014 2013 2012

Gain on sale of Mohave partnership inte $ - 8 14,601 $ -

On April 1, 2013, the Company sold its/3% interest in the Mohave partnership , in whichrfiier was the General Partner. The Company redgiveceeds on sale of $18 million and recognizgdia on sale
of $15 million.

INVESTMENT AND OTHER INCOME , NET / LOSSES ON EARLY EXTINQUISHMENT OF DEBT /
INTEREST EXPENSE / INCOME TAX EXPENSE

($.in thousand) 2014 2013 2012
$ Increast % Increast $ Increast % Increase
Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount

Investment and otht

income, ne $ 38,996 $ 29,819 325% $ 9,177 $ (10,955 (54)% $ 20,132
Losses on earl

extinguishment of det $ -8 (159,780 (100,% $ 159,78C $ 69,417 7% $ 90,363
Interest expens $ 695,500 $ 28,102 4% $ 667,398 $ (20,587 (3)% $ 687,985
Income tax expens $ 30544 §$ (16,698 (35)% $ 47,242 $ (28,396 (38)% $ 75,638

Investment and Other Income, Net

Investment and other income , net for 201 4 iasee $ 30 million primarily due to a $25 milligain on the sale of our minority interest in aeléss partnership and a $ 12 million gain onstile of an
intangible asset not part of our operations .

Investment and other income , net for 2013 dectediskl million primarily due to an investment gai$10 million in 2012.

Losses on Early Extinguishment of Debt

During 2013, we recognized a loss of $ 160 millam the early extinguishment of debt in connectidth various debt tender offers, privately negtiatransactions and open market repurchasesethisited in
the retirement of $1,002 million in senior notes.

Similarly, in 2012 we recognized a loss of $90 imillon the early extinguishment of $ 713 millionsienior notes.
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Interest expense

Interest expense for 201 4 increased $ 28 mijllaw 4 %, primarily due to interest on the $1.Kids debt financing completed in September andobet 2014, as well as $23 million in commitmentsféer the
Bridge Facility (as defined below) related to then@ecticut Acquisition , partially offset by thealer average debt levels during the first nine msmththe year resulting from the refinancing atitas and early
retirements in 2013. Our composite average borrgware as of December 31, 201 4 was 7.62 %.

Interest expense for 2013 decreased $ 21 millio8, %, primarily due to lower average debt levelsuiting from the debt refinancing activities amdlle retirements, partially offset by the registerkebt offering
of $750 million of senior unsecured notes due 202ur composite average borrowing rate as of Déeer81, 2013 was 7.95 %.

Income tax expense
Income tax expense for 201 4 decreased $ 1iomilbr 35 % , and our effective tax rate was’1.as compared with 29.0 % for 201 3 and 33.0 #26d 2. The decrease was pri marily due to agham
deferred taxes arising from the inclusion of then@&cticut operations in the state unitary filings .

Income tax expense for 2013 decreased $ 28 miltioB8%, primarily due to lower pretax income irl3Q Income taxes for 2013 reflect the impaca &7 million net benefit resulting from the adjustmof
deferred tax balances, a $5 million benefit fromeil research and development credits and a $@midenefit from the net reversal of reservesuocertain tax positions, partially offset by thepimet of a n
expense of $5 million resulting from the settlemefithe 2010 IRS audit, as well as an expens8afillion resulting from non-deductible transacticosts.

We paid $ 70 million, $ 94 million and $5 milfidn net cash taxes in 201 4, 201 3 and 2012 entisely. Our 201 4 cash taxes paid reflect ecctiretinued impact of bonus depreciation in accotdanith the
Tax Increase Prevention Act of 2014 .  Absentlagislative changes in 2015 , we expect that osh ¢ax payments will be in the range of approxiyeel 75 million to $ 200 million for 2015.

Net income attributable to common shareholders abRtier
Net income attributable to common shareholdersrofifier for 201 4 was $ 133 million, or $ 0.1 & phare, as compared to $ 113 million, or $0.#&rlspare, in 201 3 and $ 137 million, or $0.1 4gjere, in
2012.
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(b) Liquidity and Capital Resources

Analysis of Cash Flows

As of December 31, 201 4 , we had cash and cashadepts aggregating $ 682 million . Our primagurce of funds continued to be cash generated @penations. In 201 4 , we used cash flow from
operations, cash on hand and debt issuance protequincipally fund all of our cash investing afidancing activities, primarily the Connecticut Aydsition , capital expenditures, dividends arebtd
repayments.

As discussed below, on September 17, 2014, the @oynpompleted a registered debt offering of $77fianiaggregate principal amount of 6.250% seniwsacured notes due 2021, and $775 million aggregate
principal amount of 6.875% senior unsecured notes 2D25. The Company used the net proceeds fronofteeng of the notes, together with borrowings&#50 million under the 2014 CoBank Credit
Agreement, as defined below, and cash on handandie the Connecticut Acquisition , which closedOctober 24, 2014.

At December 31, 201 4 , we had a working capitficidleof $ 26 million , as compared to a workingpital surplus of $317 million at December 31, 20The decline in working capital is primarily dtea
reduction in cash and cash equivalents of $ 19Bomitelated to financing the Connecticut Acquisitiand an increase in current liabilities of $ 2diion .

Cash Flows provided by Operating Activities

Cash flows provided by operating activities dealii$e226 million, or 15 %, in 201 4 as compare@@& 3. The decrease was primarily the resuliigiier acquisition and integration costs and loadjusted net
income before depreciation and amortization dugidg 4 .

We paid $ 70 million in net cash taxes in 201 £ampared to $ 94 million and $5 million in net caakes in 201 3 and 2012, respectively. Our 20aghdaxes paid reflected the continued impact afibo
depreciation in accordance with the Tax Increagedhtion Act of 201 4 .  Absent any legislativebes in 201 5, w e expect that our cash tax patgweill be in the range of approximately $ 175limil to $
200 million for 201 5.

During 201 3 , the Company contributed four reshiesproperties with a fair value of $ 23 millianits qualified defined benefit pension plan. Tlemgion plan obtained independent appraisals oprtheerties
and, based on these appraisals, the pension mlardesl the contributions at their fair value.

In connection with the Connecticut Acquisition e tBompany recognized $ 142 million and $10 millidracquisition and integration cost s incurred @12 and 201 3 , respectively, and $ 23 milliod & 1
million of interest expense in 2014 and 2013, reipely , related to the Bridge Facility ( asidefi below ). The Company currently expects ihwafll incur approximately $450 million of opeiaty expenses
and capital expenditures in total related to adtjoisand integration activities in 2015 and 2058aciated with the Verizon Transaction.

In connection with the 2010 Acquisition , the Comypén curred $82 million of costs related to intatipn activities during 2012. All integration adties related to the 2010 Acquisition were coetedl as of the
end of 2012.

Cash Flows used by Investing Activities

Capital Expenditures

In 201 4, 201 3 and 201 2 , our capital expeneiturere , respectively , $ 688 million, $635 imilland $803 million (including $ 116 mill ion ar&d54 million , respectively, of integration-relatedpital
expenditures in 201 4 for the Connecticut Acdigisiand in 2012 for the 2010 Acquisition ) . Fr@012 through 2014 , Frontier received a tots2 million from the first round of Connect Amiea Fund
(CAF) Phase | and $6 1 million related to the secaund of CAF Phase | to support broadband depémyrim unserved and underserved high-cost areasldition to the capital expenditures mention eovab
network expans ion funded by the previously reati@AF funds amounted to $ 5 6 million, $ 33 milliand $5 million in 201 4 , 201 3 and 2012 , resipely , enabling and/or upgrading 164,000 houkiho
with broadband during that three year period . aifécipate capital expenditur es for businessatjirs to in crease in 201 5 as a result of then@cticut Acquisition to approximately $ 650 it to $ 700
million , as compared to $ 572 million in 201 4 .

Acquisitions
On October 24, 2014, the Company acquired the iv&rgdroperties of AT&T in Connecticut for a purchgsice of $2 billion in cash, excluding adjustngefar working capital. Frontier now owns and opesahe
wireline business and statewide fiber network
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that provides services to residential, commeraial wholesale customers in Connecticut. After intigdvorking capital adjustments of $ 18 millionettotal purchase price for the Connecticut Acioisitvas $
2,018 miillion.

Cash Flows used tand provided fronfrinancing Activities

DebtFinancings

Einancing the Connecticut Acquisition

On September 17, 2014, the Company completed ateegil debt offering of $775 million aggregate @ipal amount of 6.250% senior unsecured notes @& and $775 million aggregate principal amount of
6.875% senior unsecured notes due 2025. We receegroceeds, after deducting underwriting fe€s$19519 million from the offering. The Company dsthe net proceeds from the offering of the notes,
together with borrowings of $350 million under 2@14 CoBank Credit Agreement, as defined below,casth on hand to finance the Connecticut Acquisitimt closed on October 24, 2014.

During 2014, we also entered into secured finarectotaling $11 million with four year terms and stated interest rate for certain equipment purchase

The 2024 Notes

On April 10, 2013, the Company completed a registesffering of $750 million aggregate principal ambof 7.625% senior unsecured notes due 20242@2é Notes) , issued at a price of 100% of their
principal amount. We received net proceeds of $mdlfon from the offering after deducting undertingy fees. The Company used the net proceeds thensale of the notes, together with cash on hend,
finance the April 2013 debt tender offers diseakiselow.

The 2021 Notes

On May 17, 2012, the Company completed a registeffeding of $500 million aggregate principal amoofi9.250% senior unsecured notes due 2021 (tB& Rtes), issued at a price of 100% of their ppiaic
amount. We received net proceeds of $490 milliemfthe offering after deducting underwriting feesl @ffering expenses. The Company also commendedder offer to purchase the maximum aggregate
principal amount of its 8.250% Senior Notes due42(ifhe 2014 Notes) and its 7.875% Senior Notes2®1& (the April 2015 Notes and, together with tbé4£2 Notes, the Notes) that it could purchase fotoup
$500 million in cash (the 2012 Debt Tender Offer).

The 2023 Notes

On August 15, 2012, the Company completed a registeffering of $600 million aggregate principal @mt of 7.125% senior unsecured notes due 20232@R28 Notes), issued at a price of 100% of their
principal amount. We received net proceeds of $688on from the offering after deducting undervimig fees and offering expenses. The Company usedehproceeds from the sale of the notes to répsecor
retire existing indebtedness in 2013.

On October 1, 2012, the Company completed a regibteffering of $250 million aggregate principal@mt of the 2023 Notes, issued at a price of 1M2@6f their principal amount. We received net peatseof
$256 million from the offering after deducting umaeiting fees and offering expenses. The notesaaradditional issuance of, are fully fungible wéthd form a single series voting together as orgsakath the
$600 million aggregate principal amount of the 20&8es issued by the Company on August 15, 2018.Gdmpany used the net proceeds from the saleafdtes to repurchase or retire existing indebtsiire
2013

Debt Reduction
During 201 4 , 201 3 and 2012 , we retired arregage principal amount of $ 260 million , $@3 million and $757 million , respectively, of detonsisting of $ 257 million , $ 1,563 milliomé $756
million , respectively, of senior unsecured delit &l million in each period , of rural utilitiesrsice loan contracts, as discussed below. Additignwe retired $ 2 million of other secured dehting 2014.

On April 10, 2013, the Company accepted for puret71 million aggregate principal amount of itaise notes tendered for total consideration of $68ffion, consisting of $194 million aggregate pipal
amount of the Company’s 6.625% senior notes du& 2 March 2015 Notes), tendered for total ccersition of $216 million, and $277 million aggregaténcipal amount of the Company’s 7.875% senior
notes due 2015 (the April 2015 Notes), tendereddtal consideration of $316 million. On April 22013, the Company accepted for purchase $1 mitiggregate principal amount of the March 2015 Notes
tender ed for total consideration of $1 million, @illion of the April 2015 Notes, tender ed forabtonsideration of $1 million, and $225 milliongaggate principal amount of the Company'’s 8.2508seotes
due 2017 (the 2017 Notes), tendered for total ctmation of $268 million. The repurchases in tebtdender offers for the senior notes resulteal livss on the earl y extinguishment of debt of $dion ($65
million or $0.06 per share after tax).
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Additionally, in 20 13, the Company repurchased%#dllion of the 2017 Notes in a privately negati@ttransaction, along with $17 million of its 8.#25enior notes due 2018 and $79 million of its 8%0
senior notes due 2020 in open market repurchaiesse transactions resulted in a loss on the eattiyguishment of debt of $55 million ($34 millian $0.04 per share after tax).

Pursuant to the 2012 Debt Tender Offer, the Compaugpted for purchase $400 million aggregate jp@@mount of 2014 Notes, tendered for total adesit ion of $446 million, and $50 million aggregat
principal amount of April 2015 Notes, tendered timtal consideration of $54 million. The Companydipeoceeds from the sale of its May 2012 offerifi@s00 million of the 2021 Notes , plus cash onchan
purchase the Notes.

The repurchases in the 2012 Debt Tender Offetf@2014 Notes resulted in a loss on the early gutiinment of debt of $69 million . We also recoguitosses of $2 million during the second quart&0d.2 for
$78 million in total open market repurchases of @@5% Senior Notes due 2013.

On October 1, 2012, the C ompany purchase d $Aménd $59 million aggregate principal amounthe April 2015 Notes and the 2017 Notes, respdgtiie open market repurchases for total considiemnatf
$155 million. The repurchases resulted in a lostherearly retirement of debt of $19 million ($18liwn or $0.01 per share after tax).

We may from time to time make additional repurckasfeour debt in the open market, through tendiarsf exchanges of debt securities, by exercisgigs to call or in privately negotiated transantio We may
also refinance existing debt or exchange existety br newly issued debt obligations .

Capital Resources

We believe our operating cash flows, existing daelances, and existing revolving credit facilityllvsie adequate to finance our working capital reemients, fund capital expenditures, make requisdd mhterest
and principal payments, pay taxes, pay dividendsutostockholders, and support our short-term angd-term operating strategies for the next twehemtins . However, a number of factors, including mot
limited to, losses of customers, pricing pressuoenfincreased competition, lower subsidy and switichccess revenues, and the impact of economidticorsdmay negatively impact our cash generatethfro
operations. In addition, based on information akdé to us, we believe that the financial insténg syndicated under our revolving credit faciitguld be able to fulfill their commitments to usjtlh is could
change in the future. As of December 31, 201 4 had$298 million and $383 million of debt maturing2015 and 2 01 6 , respectively.

Bridge Facility
On December 16, 2013, we signed a commitment l&dtea bridge loan facility (the Bridge Facilityd finance the Connecticut Acquisition and recogadigerest expense related to this commitment 28$
million and $ 1 million during the years ended Deber 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively .

On July 16, 2014, the Bridge Facility was reducgd850 million following execution of the 2014 CaBaCredit Agreement, as defined below. On SeptertiBeR014, the Bridge Facility, which was undrawn,
was terminated upon consummation of the registéedd offering referred to above.

Bank Financing

On June 2, 2014, the Company entered into a agdiiement with CoBank, ACB, as administrative ageatl arranger and a lender, and the other lemdetg thereto, for a $350 million senior unsecwlethyed
draw term loan facility (the 2014 CoBank Credit Agment). The facility was drawn upon closing of @@nnecticut Acquisition with proceeds used toiplytfinance the acquisition. The maturity datéistober

24, 2019 . Repayment of the outstanding principédtce will be made in quarterly installments ia #mount of $9 million, commencing on March 31 120 with the remaining outstanding principal bakamo

be repaid on the maturity date. Borrowings under2814 CoBank Credit Agreement bear interest basettie margins over the Base Rate (as definedeir2@14 CoBank Credit Agreement) or LIBOR, at the
election of the Company. Interest rate margins utiue facility (ranging from 0.875% to 2.875% foage Rate borrowings and 1.875% to 3.875% for LIB®@Rowings) are subject to adjustments based on the
Total Leverage Ratio of the Company, as such terdefined in the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement. ifierest rate on this facility at December 31, 2@&4 LIBOR plus 3.3 75%.

The Company has a credit agreement with CoBank, ,A@8Badministrative agent, lead arranger and aleaehd the other lenders party thereto, for a $86illfon senior unsecured term loan facility witHinal
maturity of October 14, 2016 (the 2011 CoBank GrAdireement). The entire facility was drawn upoe@xtion of the 2011 CoBank Cre dit Agreement inoBet 2011. Repayment of the outstanding principal
balance is made in quarterly installments of $1Hiani which commenced on March 31, 2012, with temaining outstanding principal balance to be rbjai the final maturity date. Borrowings under 2041
CoBank Credit Agreement bear interest based omidigins over the Base Rate (as defined in the ZidBank Credit Agreement) or LIBOR, at the electafrthe Company. Interest rate margins under the
facility (ranging from 0.875% to
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2.875% for Base Rate borrowings and 1.875% to 35 LIBOR borrowings) are subject to adjustmenmtsed on the Total Leverage Ratio of the Companguah term is defined in the 2011 CoBank Credit
Agreement. The interest rate on this facility @Bmber 31, 2014 was LIBOR p lus 2.875 %.

Revolving Credit Facility

On June 2, 2014, the Company entered into a neolviey credit agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, Nas administrative agent, the lenders partyetioeand the other parties named therein (the Rl
Credit Agreement), for a $750 million revolving diefacility (the Revolving Credit Facility) with acheduled termination date of May 31, 2018 annhiteated its existing revolving credit facility (tHerior
Revolving Credit Facility) under the Credit Agreemhedated as of May 3, 2013, among the Company,ci§adh Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agest)ehders party thereto and the other parties named
therein (the Prior Revolving Credit Agreement). @fsDecember 31, 2014, the Revolving Credit Faciligs fully available and no borrowings had been ertiéreunder. Associated commitment fees under the
Revolving Credit Facility will vary from time tortie depending on the Company’s debt rating (as eéfin the Revolving Credit Agreement) and were 0%5er annum as of December 31, 2014. During the
term of the Revolving Credit Facility, the Compangy borrow, repay and reborrow funds, and may nHeiters of credit, subject to customary borrowdogditions. Loans under the Revolving Credit Facil

will bear interest based on the alternate baseoratiee adjusted LIBO Rate (each as determinetiérRevolving Credit Agreement), at the Companyésbn, plus a margin based on the Company’s deistg
(ranging from 0.50% to 1.50% for alternate base batrrowings and 1.50% to 2.50% for adjusted LIB&eRborrowings). The interest rate on t his fac#it December 31, 2014 would have been 1.50% c0%.5
respectively, as of December 31, 2014. Lettersreditissued under the Revolving Credit Facilitylwiso be subject to fees that vary dependinghenGompany’s debt rating. The Revolving Credit Fgcis
available for general corporate purposes but mapeased to fund dividend payments.

Covenants

The terms and conditions contained in our indestufee 2011 CoBank Credit Agreement, the 2014 CkRzZnedit Agreement and the Revolving Credit Agreptriaclude the timely payment of principal and
interest when due, the maintenance of our corpasittence, keeping proper books and records iordance with U.S. GAAP, restrictions on the incooe of liens on our assets securing indebtednessam
subsidiaries’ assets , restrictions on the irenge of indebtedness by our subsidiaries andetsiis on asset sales and transfers, mergers hadajtanges in corporate control subject to impoiaalifications
and exceptions . We are not subject to restrictmnthe payment of dividends either by contradg ar regulation, other than that imposed by thegsal Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. idoer, we
would be restricted under the 2011 CoBank CredieAment, the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement and éwRing Credit Agreement from declaring dividernfdan event of default occurred and was continuing
at the time or would result from the dividend deatin.

The 2011 CoBank Credit Agreement , the 2014 CoRamekdit Agreement and the Revolving Credit Agreengzth contain a maximum leverage ratio covenardetthose covenants, we are required to maintain
a ratio of (i) total indebtedness minus cash arsth esjuivale nts in excess of $50 million to (iipsolidated adjusted EBITDA (as defined in the agrets) over the last four quarters not to excedd ta 1.

C ertain inde ntures for our senior unsecured debgations limit our ability to create liens onroassets securing indebtedness and our subsidiasigsts or merge or consolidate with other comgsaniour
subsidiaries’ ability to borrow funds and to engagehange of control transaction s , subject tpdrtant exceptions and qualifications.

As of December 31, 201 4, we were in compliandé @il of our debt and credit facility covenants.

Dividends

We currently intend to continue to pa y regularrégrdy dividends. Our ability to fund a regular quealy dividend will be impacted by our ability generate cash from operations. On December 11,, 20t4
Board of Directors approved a 5% increase ove2@et dividend rate in the planned quarterly casfdeid rate, commencing with the dividend for thstfquarter of 2015. On an annual basis, this ptanld
increase the dividend from $0.40 to $0.42 ghewe . The declarations and payment of futurieleinds is at the discretion of our Board of Dicest and will depend upon many factors, including financial
condition, results of operations, growth prospefcisding requirements, applicable law, restrictionagreements governing our indebtedness and fatbirs our Board of Directors deem relevant.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not maintain any off-balance sheet arrangé&mnémansactions, obligations or other relationshiith unconsolidated entities that would be expeédb have a material current or future effect upan
financial statements.
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Future Contractual Obligations and Commitments

A summary of our future contractual obligations aochmercial commitments as of December 31, 20124 fllows:

$ in thousands Payments due by period
Total 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter

Long-term debt obligations,

excluding interes $ 9,780,73€$ 297,622% 383,24E$ 645,156% 619,035% 644,565% 7,191,11C
Interest on lon-term debt 6,525,132 718,108 720,305 683,732 657,902 593,191 3,151,894
Operating lease obligations 132,08C 59,833 11,716 5,951 3,725 4,803 46,052
Capital lease obligations 33,581 3,245 3,300 3,357 3,415 3,474 16,790
Financing lease obligatior 100,211 7,043 7,225 7,418 7,632 7,838 63,055
Purchase obligatior 62,348 28,401 17,011 16,906 30 - -
"Take or pay" contract obligations 140,80C 140,800 - - - - -
Liability for uncertain tax positions 19,662 2,521 504 6,680 9,957 - -

Total $ 16,794,558 1,257,573 1,143,30¢$ 1,369,20(8 1,301,697 1,253,871% 10,468,901

At December 31, 201 4, we had outstanding perfoo®detters of credit totaling $ 47 million .

In our normal course of business we have obligatiomer certain non-cancelable arrange ments foices. During 2012 , we entered into a “take of’marangement for the purchase of future longatise and
carrier services. Our remaining commitment under aflrangement is  $141 million for the year enddegember 31, 2015. As of December 31, 201 4 , xpec to utilize the services included within the
arrangement and no liability for the “take or paybdvision has been recorded.

As of December 31, 2014, all capital investment matment requirements of the three state regulatorgmissions in connection with the 2010 Acquisitiad been satisfied . A Il funds had been redel #om
escrow accounts and the Company had no restrietgurelated to escrow accounts.

T he FCC and certain state regulatory commissionspnnection with granting their approvals the @@kcquisition , specified certain capital expenditand operating requirements for the territoriegued in
the 2010 Acaquisition for specified periods of ¢irpost-closing. These requirements focus primanilycertain capital investment commitments to expamadband availability to at least 85% of the ledwdds
throughout the territories acquired in the 2010 #isiion with minimum download speeds of 3 Mbpsthe end of 201 3 . We are required to providemload speeds of 4 Mbps to at least 75%, 80% and&5%
the households throughout the territories acquirgtle 2010 Acquisition by the end of 2013, 2@hdl 2015, respectively . As of December 31, 2@&2met our FCC requirement to provide 4 Mbps cagerto
75% and 80% of the households in the territoriegumed in the 2010 Acquisition by the end of 2Gk8 2014, respectively. As of December 31, 2018ai80 met our FCC requirement to provide 3 Mbps
coverage to 85% of the households in the terrisosiequired in the 2010 Acquisition by the end 0f20As of December 31, 2014, we expanded broadbsaibility in excess of 4 Mbps to 84.5 % of the
households throughout the territories acquiredié2010 Acquisition .

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
The preparation of our financial statements reguinanagement to make estimates and assumptioff$iere are inherent u ncertainties with respesutth estimates and assumptions ; accordingly,dossible
that actual results could differ from those estsand changes to estimates could occur in thetexear The estimates which require the most sicanit judgment are listed below.

T hese critical accounting estimates have beerewad with our independent registered public acéngrfirm and with the Audit Committee of our Boaod Directors . For a discussion of these and other
accounting policies, see Note 1 of the Notes tosBhidated Financial Statements.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts dase our estimate of our ability to collect accaurgceivable . Our estimates are based on assamspnd other considerations, including paymertolyis
customer financial performance, carrier billingpdiges and aging analysis. Our estimation procesades general and specific reserves and varieustpmer segment. In 201 4 and 201 3 , we hddnteal
estimates” related to bankruptcies of communicatimompanies or any other significant customers\8ges 1 and 4 of the Notes to Consolidated Firsi&tatements for additional discussion.
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Indefinite-lived Intangibles

Our indefinite - lived intangibles consist of godthand trade name, which resulted from the purehafdLEC properties. We test for impairment aésh assets annually as of December 31, or mayeeindly, as
circumstances warrant using a two-step procesdise fifst step in the goodwill impairment test comgsathe carrying value of net assets of the rempmuiit to its fair value. If the fair value exceettie carrying
value, no further testing is required. Howeveth# fair value is less than the carrying valueinaiication of impairment exists and a second &eqgerformed. These tests are performed at thartiep unit level,
which for us is our five regional operating segrsent

We use a market multiples approach to determimesédile. Marketplace company comparisons and anadpsrts have historically support ed a rangeasfialues of multiples between 5.5 x and 7.5 xuatined
EBITDA. For the purpose of the goodwill impairmeast we define 2014 EBITDA as operating income, afeacquisition and integration costs, non-cashspe and OPEB costs, and severance costs, plus
depreciation and amortization. We estimated therprise fair value using a multiple of 6.25 x IEBA . Once determined, this estimate of enterpfésevalue is then allocated to the reporting siiased upon
each unit’s relative share of consolidated EBITDAe result of this first step indicated that faatwes of each reporting unit exceed their carryiniges. As a result, the second step of the gobamplairment test
was not required . Had we reduced the EBITDA mldtip 5.75x EBITDA, there still would be no indicatof impairment. For more informatio n on goodwsee Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated Financia
Statements.

The Company monitors relevant circumstances, inetudeneral economic conditions, enterprise valBETBA multiples for other rural ILEC properties,glfCompany’s overall fina ncial performance, thekagr
prices for the Company’s common stock, and thenti@iempact that changes in such circumstancesintigve on the valuation of the Company’s goodavilbther intangible assets .

Depreciation and Amortization

The calculation of depreciation and amortizatiopense is based upon the estimated useful livebeofinderlying property, plant and equipment anahtiiable finite - lived intangible assets. Depegion
expense is principally based on the composite groegihod for substantially all of our property, gland equipment assets. The estimates for remalivies of the various asset categories are detemremnually,
based on an independent study. Among other corgides, these studies include models that consicteial usage, replacement history and assumpttans éechnology evolution for each category of aisEee
latest study was completed in the fourth quarte2@f4 and did not result in any significant changesemaining lives for any of our asset categoridsone year decrease in the estimated usefu$ bfeour
property, plant and equipment would result in acréase of approximately $100 million to depreaiaexpense.

Our finite - lived intangibles consist principallf customer base; $2.5 billion from the 2010 Asijion and $590 million from the recently compkt€onnecticut Acquisition . These customer baseseing
amortized on an accelerated method because thiothetost closely resembles the projected underlsgmgnue streams. In assigning lives, which rang® between nine and 12 years, a separate evaiuatih
determination is made for residential and busicessomers.

See Notes 5 and 6 of the Notes to ConsolidatechBiabStatements for additional discussion.

Asset Impairment s

We review long-lived assets to be held and usetiiding customer lists, and long-lived assets talisposed of for impairment at least annually oeméver events or changes in circumstances indicatehe
carrying amount of such assets may not be recoleerRecoverability of assets to be held and usedeasured by comparing the carrying amount of #setato the estimated fair value, which is basethen
future undiscounted net cash flows expected toemegted by the asset. Recoverability of assetsfbebale is measured by comparing the carryinguanof the assets to their estimated fair markéte If any
assets are considered to be impaired, the impairimeneasured by the amount by which the carryimgunt of the assets exceeds the estimated faievaliso, we periodically reassess the useful livesur

tangible and intangible assets to determine whethgichanges are required .

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

We sponsor a defined benefit pension plan coveaisggnificant number of our current and former esgpks as well as other postretirement benefit pilaasprovide medical, dental, life insurance atiteo
benefits for covered retired employees and theiefieciaries and covered dependents. As of Decebe2014, the unfunded benefit obligation for éhptans recorded on our consolidated balance sheet
1.3 billion . During 2014, we contributed $95 nulii to these plans and recorded $74 million of egpdrefore capitalization. P ension and other pirgineent benefit costs and obligations are dependeon
various actuarial assumptions , the most significinvhich are the discount rate and the expeciag-term rate of return on plan assets.
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Our discount rate assumption is determined annwaillly assistance from our actuaries based on titerpaof expected future benefit payments and tiewailing rates available on long-term, high qualit
corporate bonds with durations approximate to tfiadur benefit obligation. As of December 31, 20and 201 3 , we utilized an estimation technidua s based upon a settlement model (Bond:Lin&) th
permits us to closely match cash flows to the etquepayments to participants. This rate can chénoge year-to-year based on market conditions tffatcorporate bond yields.

We are utilizing a discount rate of 4.10 % as ot&mber 31, 201 4 for our qualified pension plampared to rates of 4.90 % and 4.00 % in 201 3 &1d22, respectively. The discount rate for poseetent
plans as of December 31, 201 4 was a range 0f%4.104.20 % compared to a range of 4.90% to %.20201 3 and 4.0 0 % to 4.20 % in 201 2 .

In the following table, we show the estimated si@risi of our pension and other postretirement Higqdan liabilities to a 25 basis point changetie discount rate as of December 31, 2014:

(8 in millions) Increase in Discount Rate of 25 t Decrease in Discount Rate of 25 |

Pension plans
Projected benefit obligation $ 79 $ 84

Other postretirement plans
Accumulated postretirement benefit obligat $ @27 % 29

In developing the expected long-term rate of reagsumption, we considered published surveys afaeg market returns, 10 and 20 year actual retfraarious major indices, and our own historicaiear, 10
year an d 20 year investment returns. The expdotegterm rate of return on plan assets is baseahoasset allocation assumption of 35% to 55%xiedfincome securities, 35% to 55% in equity sei@sriand
5% to 15% in alternative investments. We review asset allocation at least annually and make changeen considered appropriate. Our asset retsumgstion is made at the beginning of our fiscalryda
201 2,201 3 and 2014 , our expected long-terenafiteturn on plan assets was 7.75% , 8.00% at&%3., respectively. Our actual return on plaresis 201 4 was 11.9 %. For 201 5, we will assamate of
return of 7.75 %. Our pension plan assets are dadtéair value as of the measurement date.

We expect that our pension and other postretirefneméfit expenses for 201 5 will be approximateB5million to $ 105 million before amounts cagitell into the cost of capital expenditures . \Wpeet to
make contributions to our pension plan of approxéiya$ 100 million in 2015 .

For additional information regarding our pensiod ather postretirement benefits see Note 16 tiNthtes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Income Taxes

We file a consolidated federal income tax returre illize the asset and liability method of acctnmfor income taxes. Under the asset and liabiligthod, deferred income taxes are recorded faatheffect of
temporary differences between the financial staterbasis and the tax basis of assets and liabilit&ng tax rates expected to be in effect whernetmporary differences are expected to reversaiagh@icome
taxes could vary from these estimates due to futha®ges in governing law or review by taxing atitfes.

We use a “more likely than not” threshold to theognition and derecognition of uncertain tax posisi either taken or expected to be taken in thep@oyis income tax returns. The total amount of gness tax
liability for tax positions that may not be sustinunder a “more likely than not” threshold amouotss 19.7 million as of December 31, 201 4 inahgdinterest of $ 0.4 million. For additional infoation
regarding our accounting for income taxes see Nbtef the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement

Business Combinations

We allocate the total cost of an acquisition to whelerlying net assets based on their respectiiaaied fair values. As part of this allocation gess, we identify and attribute values and estichies to the
intangible assets acquired. These determinatiorsvie significant estimates and assumptions abeutral highly subjective variables, including figuwrash flows, discount rates, and asset lives.eTaer also
different valuation models for each component, sbkection of which requires considerable judgménir estimates and assumptions may be based, ingmathe availability of listed market prices ohet
transparent market data. These determinationsaffétt the amount of amortization expense recoghizéuture
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periods. We base our fair value estimates on assomspwve believe are reasonable, but recognizettiesassumptions are inherently uncertain. Depenainthe size of the purchase price of a particatguisition
and the mix of intangible assets acquired, thelage price allocation could be materially impadig@pplying a different set of assumptions andess.

The Company allocated $ 2.0 b illion in totahsideration to the “fair market value” of th e etssand liabilities acquired in the Connecticut hisition . The estimates of the fair values assigiweproperty,
plant and equipment , customer list and goodwite enore fully described in Note 3 of the Nae€onsolidated Financial Statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
See Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Finand&kSents included in Part IV of this report fodiidnal information related to recent accountiitgrhture .

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosuresabout Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk in the normal coofseur business operations due to ongoing investimgj funding activities, including those assocthtith our pension plan assets. Market risk referthe
potential change in fair value of a financial instient as a result of fluctuations in interest rares equity prices. We do not hold or issue dekreanstruments, derivative commodity instrument®iher financial
ins truments for trading purposes. As a resultda@ot undertake any specific actions to coverexposure to market risks, and we are not partyyonaarket risk management agreements other théreinormal
course of business. Our primary market risk expestrom interest rate risk and equity price risk as follows:

Interest Rate Exposure

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interats relates primarily to the interest-bearingipo of our pension investment portfolio and rethbbligations, as well as our floating rate inéebess. As of
December 31, 201 4, 92 % of our long-term delok fixed interest rates . We had no interestsaig agreements related to our fixed rate dedfféct at December 31, 201 4 and 201 3 . The Coynpelieves
that its exposure to interest rate changes is naihim

Our objectives in managing our interest rate rigkta limit the impact of interest rate changessamings and cash flows and to lowe r our ovemitdwing costs. To achieve these objectives, oril$$$ million
of our outstanding borrowings at December 31, 2(iave floating interest rates. In addition, our nameh $750 million revolving credit facility has erest rates that float with the LIBO Rate , as rosfi
Consequently, we have limited material future eagsior cash flow exposures from changes in interates on our debt. An adverse change in inteaéss would increase the amount that we pay ovanisble
rate obligations and could result in fluctuationghe fair value of our fixed rate obligations. Bdsupon our overall interest rate exposure at Dbeer1, 201 4 , a near-term change in interess nateild not
materially affect our consolidated financial pasiti results of operations or cash flows.

At December 31, 201 4 , the fair value of our ldegn debt was estimated to be approximately $ @i, based on our overall weighted average hweimg rate of 7.62 % and our overall weighted averag
maturity of approximately eight years . As of Betber 31, 201 4, there has been no significamgghin the weighted average maturity applicablewoobligations since December 31, 201 3 .

Equity Price Exposure

Our exposure to market risks for changes in ecqéturity prices as of December 31, 201 4 is limigedur pension plan assets. We have no otherigemvestments of any significant amount.

The Company’s pension p lan assets in creased $ran217 million at December 31, 201 3 to $ 1,678ioni at December 31, 201 4 , an in crease of $ @fibon, or 38 %. This in crease is a result afsset
transfers from the AT&T pension plan trusts of 83Hillion related to the Connecticut Acquisitiomgluding approximately $ 35 million that represeatreceivable of the P lan as of December 31, J@4dsltive

investment returns of $ 140 million and cash contions of $ 83 million , partially offset by befit payments of $ 110 million . Our 2014 t otahtributions reflect the impact of the extensiorfusfding relief
included in the Highway and Transportation Fundieg of 2014. We expect that we will make contrilou to our pension plan of approximately $ 100iaonilin 2015 .
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The following documents are filed as part of thepBrt:

1. Financial Statements - See Index on page F-1.

2. Supplementary Data - Quarterly Financial Daiadtuded in the Financial Statements (see 1. gbove

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Rancial Disclosure

None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
(i) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedure

(i)

We carried out an evaluation, under the shgien and with the participation of our managem including our principal executive officer apdncipal financial officer, regarding the effaiess of
our disclosure controls and procedures (as defim&lles 13a—15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Seufiixchange Act of 1934, as amended). Based thmevaluation, our principal executive officerdan
principal financial officer concluded, as of thedesf the period covered by this report, December2B1 4 , that our disclosure controls and procesiurere effective.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
(a) Management's annual report on intecoalrol over financial reporting
Our management report on internal control ovenfaia reporting appears on page F-2.
(b) Report of registered public accounfiing
The report of KPMG LLP, our independent registepatilic accounting firm, on internal control ovemdincial reporting appears on page F-4.
Changes in internal control over finaheeporting
We reviewed our internal control over financial @giing at December 31, 201 4 .

(c

There have been no changes in our internal coowl financial reporting identified in an evaluatithereof that occurred during the last fiscal tgranf 201 4 that materially affected, or is reasup likely to
materially affect, our internal control over finaaaeporting.

In May 2013, the Committee of Sponsoring Organdizratiof the Treadway Commission (COSO) issued itiatgu Internal Control — Integrated Framework @0&3 Framework) and related illustrative
documents. The original COSO Framework was publishe.992 and was recognized as the leading guétoralesigning, implementing and conducting iné¢ontrols over external financial reporting and
assessing its effectiveness. The 2013 Framewaekpiscted to help organizations design and impleriméeitnal control in light of many changes in besis and operating environments since the issudnce o
the original Framework, broaden the applicatioimtgrnal control in addressing operations and r@ppobjectives, and clarify the requirements fetedmining what constitutes effective internal cohtwWe
adopted the 2013 Framework during 2014, which dichave a significant impact on the Company .

Item 9B.  Other Information

None.
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PART Il
ltem 10 . _Directors, Executive Officers and Qmorate Governance

Certain of the information required by this Iteririsorporated by reference from our definiti veyyrstatement for the 2015 Annual Meeting of Stod#brs to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regatati4A
within 120 days after December 31, 201 4 .

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Our Executive Officers as of February 1 3, 201e5ew

Name Age Current Position and Office
Kathleen Q. Abernath 58 Executive Vice President, External Affa
Donald Daniels 47 Senior Vice President arController
John M. Jurelle 55 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
Daniel J. McCarthy 50 President and Chief Operating Offiand a Directo
Cecilia K. McKenney 52 Executive Vice President, Human Resources and Aidtrative Service
Mark D. Nielsen 50 Senior Vice Presidel, General Counstand Secretar
Mary Agnes Wilderotte 60 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi

There is no family relationship between the dioesor executive officers. The term of office otkaf the foregoing officers of Frontier will contie until the next annual meeting of the Board iwé€ors and
until a successor has been elected and qualified.

KATHLEEN Q. ABERNATHY joined Frontier's managemetgam in March 2010, after serving as a member ohtigr's Board of Directors from April 2006 to Mar@010. She is currently Executive Vice
President, External Affairs. Previously, she wédse€Legal Officer and Executive Vice PresidentgRlatory and Government Affairs from March 2010Jtme 2012. From October 2008 to March 2010, Ms.
Abernathy was a partner at the law firm of Wilkind®arker Knauer, LLP. Prior to that time, she \&gsartner at the law firm of Akin Gump Strauss Hatd-eld LLP from March 2006 to October 2008. From
June 2001 to December 2005, she served as a Coimmeisat the Federal Communications Commission.

DONALD DANIELS joined Frontier in July 2014 as SeniVice President and Controller. From October2@® July 2014 he held various positions with JeeBRirways Corporation, including Corporate
Controller, Chief Accounting Officer, Vice Presideand Controller, Assistant Controller, and Direadd Financial Reporting. Prior to that Mr. Darsidleld various positions of increasing responsjbii Delta
Air Lines and Deloitte and Touche, LLP. Mr. Dasi@ a veteran of the United States Army and afigelpublic accountant.

JOHN M. JURELLER joined Frontier in January 2013Ea®cutive Vice President and Chief Financial Qffi€lect and became Chief Financial Officer on Baby 27, 2013. Mr. Jureller was Senior Vice
President, Finance & Operations for the Resoureesisof General Atlantic LLC from April 2008 to Qdter 2012. Previously, he was Chief Financial éffiof WestPoint International, Inc. from March 8a6
March 2008. Prior to that, Mr. Jureller was a memtif the Corporate Turnaround & Restructuring ficacof AlixPartners, LLC from April 2003 to Febmya2006. Before joining AlixPartners, LLC, Mr. &lier
was Chief Financial Officer of Trans-Resources,,|8enior Vice President, Corporate Developme@atner, Inc. and Senior Vice President, Finance@arporate Development at Caribiner Internatidnel

DANIEL J. McCARTHY has been with Frontier since Rewber 1990. He has served as a Director of Frositiee May 2014. He is currently Presiden t ance€Bperating Officer. Previously, he was Executive
Vice President and Chief Operating Officer fromukay 2006 to April 2012 and Senior Vice Presidéie/d Operations from December 2004 to Decembeb2@8ior to that, he was Senior Vice President ,
Broadband Operations from January 2004 to Dece?®@4, President and Chief Operating Officer of Eled.ightwave from January 2002 to December 2@®sident and Chief Operating Officer, Public
Services Sector from November 2001 to January 20122, President and Chief Operating Officer, Pullliervices Sector from March 2001 to November 20@d \dce President, Citizens Arizona Energy from
April 1998 to March 2001.

CECILIA K. McKENNEY has been with Frontier sincelifaary 2006. She is currently Executive Vice Rtest, Human Resources and Administrative Servi€esviously, she was Executive Vice President,
Human Resources and Sales Operations from May @0d&nuary 2013, Executive Vice President, HumasoRees and Call Center Sales & Service from Fepr2@08 to May 2012 and Senior Vice President,
Human Resources from February 2006 to February .200®r to joining Frontier, she was Group Viceesident, Headquarters Human Resources, of The Msting Group (PBG) from 2004 to
2005. Previously at PBG Ms. McKenney was Vice ieg, Headquarters Human Resources from 2000a4.20
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MARK D. NIELSEN joined Frontier in March 2014 asrier Vice President, General Counsel, and Secret@rior to this, he was Associate General CouasélChief Compliance Office for Praxair Inc. From
2007 to 2009, he was Vice President and Assistamefa | Counsel of Raytheon Co mpany . Before tat Nielsen served as Chief Legal Counsel, amah tBhief of Staff, to Massachusetts Governor Mitt
Romney (2004-2007).
MARY AGNES WILDEROTTER has been with Frontier sindevember 2004. She is currently Chairman of tearB and Chief Executive Officer. She was ele@eesident and Chief Executive Officer in
November 2004 and Chairman of the Board in Decerib8b. She was President of Frontier until Apfill2. Prior to joining Frontier, she was Senioré/Rresident - Worldwide Public Sector of Microsoft
Corp. from February 2003 to November 2004 and 3eviite President - Worldwide Business Strategy afrisoft Corp. from 2002 to 2004. Before that shes President and Chief Executive Officer of Wink
Communications from 1997 to 2002.

Iltem 11. _Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item is incorpachby reference from our definitive proxy statemfenthe 201 5 Annual Meeting of Stockholders tdfitesl with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A witthi20
days after December 31, 201 4 .

Iltem 12. _Security Ownership of Certain Beneficil Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Meers

The information required by this Item is incorpediby reference from our definitive proxy statenfenthe 201 5 Annual Meeting of Stockholders tdfite with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A witthi20
days after December 31, 201 4 .

Item 13. _Certain Relationships and Related Trasactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this Item is incorpethby reference from our definitive proxy statenmfenthe 201 5 Annual Meeting of Stockholders tdfitezl with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A witth20
days after December 31, 201 4 .

Iltem 14. _Principal Accountant Fees and Servise

The information required by this Item is incorpediby reference from our definitive proxy statenfenthe 201 5 Annual Meeting of Stockholders tdfitel with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A witth20
days after December 31, 201 4 .
PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
List of Documents Filed as a Part of This Report:
(1) Index to Consolidated Financial Statements:
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfiing
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 314 26 201 3
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years@icember 31, 201 4 , 201 3 and 201 2
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomssjlfor the years ended December 31, 201 4 3201 201 2
Consolidated Statements of Equity for the yearedrdlecember 31, 201 4, 201 3 and 201 2
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the ye@aled December 31, 201 4, 201 3 and 201 2
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

All other schedules have been omitted becauseetiigred information is included in the consolidafiedncial statements or the notes thereto, obtsapplicable or not required.
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(2) Index to Exhibits:

All documents referenced below were filed pursuarthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934 by the Cargpile number 001-11001, unless otherwise indidat

Exhibit Description

No.

2.1 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Decemb@018, by and between AT&T Inc. and the Compangdfihs
Exhibit 2.1to the Compar’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on December 17, 2013

2.2 Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as afiégh5, 2015, by and between Verizon Communicatioe. and
the Company (filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Comf’s C urrent Report on Form-K filed on February 5, 2015

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation (filedExhibit 3.200.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Reporf-orm 10-Q for
the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 20*

3.2 Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificatdraforporation, effective July 31, 2008 (filed ashibit 3.1 to
the Compan'’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 20 °

33 Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificatérmforporation, effective June 28, 2010 (filed ahiBit 99.2 to
the Compan'’s Current Report on Forn-K filed July 1, 2010)

3.4 By-laws, as amended February 6, 2009 (fileBxdsbit 99.1 to the Company’s Current Report omnr&-K filed
on February 6, 2009"

4.1 Indenture of Securities, dated as of August 15118@tween the Company and JPMorgan Chase Bank, (Bls

successor to Chemical Bank), as Trustee (the “Aut@81 Indenture”) (filed as Exhibit 4.100.1 to Bempany’s
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 1¢

4.2 Fourth Supplemental Indenture to the Augustlldenture, dated October 1, 1994, between thepa@oy and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to CheBarat), as Trustee , with respect to 7.68% Debestdue
2034(filed as Exhibit 4.100.7 to the Comp:'s Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 3, 1995

43 Fifth Supplemental Indenture to the Augustll88ienture, dated as of June 15, 1995, betwee@dnepany and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to CheBaat), as Trustee , with respect to 7.45% Debestdue
2035 (filed as Exhibit 4.100.8 to the Company’si@nt Report on Form 8-K filed on March 29, 1996 (tMarch
29, 1996 -K"))."

4.4 Sixth Supplemental Indenture to the Augustl1B@lenture, dated as of October 15, 1995, betwleeiCompany
and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to iChleBank), as Trustee , with respect to 7% Debrestdue
2025(filed as Exhibit 4.100.9 to the March 29, 19¢K).

4.5 Seventh Supplemental Indenture to the Augé@1 Indenture, dated as of June 1, 1996, betwee@dmpany and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to Chemaa), as Trustee , with respect to 6.8% Debestdre
2026 (filed as Exhibit 4.100.11 to the Company'shAal Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Decerslie
1996 (the*1996 1(-K™)).

4.6 Eighth Supplemental Indenture to the August 19@eiture, dated as of December 1, 1996, betwee@ahgany
and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to iChleBank), as Trustee , with respect to 7.05% Déalbes
due 204¢(filed as Exhibit 4.100.12 to the 1996-K).

4.7 Indenture, dated as of August 16, 2001, betweerCtirapany and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as suaces
The Chase Manhattan Bank), as Trustee , with respe% Senior Notes due 2031 (including the forimate
attached thereto) (filed as Exhibit 4.1 of the Camy's Current Report on Forn-K filed on August 22, 2001"

4.8 Indenture, dated as of December 22, 2006,dstvthe Company and The Bank of New York, as Teusteith
respect to 7.875% Senior Notes due 2027 (incluttiegform of note attached thereto) (filed as Exhbi to the
Compan's Current Report on Forn-K filed on December 29, 200¢

49 Indenture dated as of March 23, 2007 by anaden the Company and The Bank of New York wittpees to the
6.625% Senior Notes due 2015 (including the formswth note attached thereto) (filed as Exhibit t.xhe
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on March 27, 2007 (tr“March 27, 2007 -K")).*

4.10 Indenture dated as of March 23, 2007 by atdden the Company and The Bank of New York witipeet to the
7.125% Senior Notes due 2019 (including the forrsumh note attached thereto) (filed as Exhibittd.the March
27, 2007 +K). "

4.11 Indenture dated as of April 9, 2009, betw#enCompany and The Bank of New York Mellon, asstee (the

“April 2009 Indenture”) (filed as Exhibit 4.1 toehCompany’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on iA@r 2009
(the“April 9, 2009 ¢K"))."

412 Second Supplemental Indenture to the AfR@RIndenture, dated as of October 1, 2009, betweerCompany
and The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee , wibpect to 8.125% Senior Notes due 2018 (inclutlirgorm
of note attached thereto) (filed as Exhibit 4.1Hte Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed octdber 1,
2009)."

413 Third Supplemental Indenture to the April 200Indenture, dated as of May 22, 2012, between thep2ay anc
The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee , with respto 9.25% Senior Notes due 2021 (filed as ExHilii to
the Compan'’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on May 22, 2012 (th“May 22, 2012 -K")). *
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE

Form of Senior Note due 2021 (filed as Exhibit th 2he May 22, 2012-K). *

Fourth Supplemental Indenture to the ApBild® Indenture, dated as of August 15, 2012, betwiee Company
and The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee , wiéspect to 7.125% Senior Notes due 2023 (the “Rourt
Supplement to April 2010 Indenture”) (filed as Eaibi4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8l¢d on
August 15, 2012 (th*August 15, 2012-K")). "

Form of Senior Note due 2023 (filed as Exhibit th2he August 15, 2012-K).

First Amendment to the Fourth Supplementpail 20 09 Indenture, dated as of October 1, 20i&ween the
Company and The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustegth respect to 7.125% Senior Notes due 2028d(fas
Exhibit 4.1 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K filed on October 1, 2012°

Fifth Supplemental Indenture to the Aprib2andenture, dated as of April 10, 2013, betwdenGompany and
The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee , with respto 7.625% Senior Notes due 2024 (filed as BxHilh to
the Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on April 10, 2013 (th¢ April 10, 2013 K")."

Sixth Supplemental Indenture dated as ofebeipér 17, 2014 between Frontier Communications @atjpn and
The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee (includithg form of 6.250% Senior Notes due 2021) (filedEabibit
4.1 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K filed on September 17, 2014 (the September 174 2-K")). "
Seventh Supplemental Indenture dated aspiéSéer 17, 2014 between Frontier Communicationp@ation
and The Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee , wiéispect to 6.875% Senior Notes due 2025 (inclutlieg
form of notes attached there) (filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the September 17, 20-K).

Form of Senior Note due 2024 (filed as Exhibit #thzhe April 10, 2013 -K). *

Indenture, dated as of April 12, 2010 (“April 2010 Indentur”), as amended, between Spinco and The Bai
New York Mellon, as Trustee (including the formsraftes attached thereto) (filed as Exhibit 4.225pnco’s
Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on April 2010 (File No. 0C-53950) (the“Spinco Form 1"))."

First Supplemental Indenture to the April 2010 Imuee, dated as of July 1, 2010, between the Coynpad The
Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee , with respec.875% Senior Notes due 2015, 8.25% Senior Naities
2017, 8.5% Senior Notes due 2020, and 8.75% Seétutes due 2022 (filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Company
Registration Statement on Forr-4 filed on July 2, 2010 (File No. 3-167962)).

Indenture, dated as of January 1, 1994, dmtviFrontier North Inc. (formerly GTE North Incorpted) and Bank
of New York Mellon (as successor to The First NagloBank of Chicago), as Trustee (the “Frontier tNor
Indenture”) (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Compan@sarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quaetieded June
30, 2010)"

First Supplemental Indenture to the Frontier Nénttenture, dated as of May 1, 1996, between FroNeth Inc.
(formerly GTE North Incorporated) and Bank of Newrk Mellon (as successor to The First National Bahk
Chicago), as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.2 to tlemPany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thedisguarter
ended June 30, 201(

Form of Debenture under the Frontier North Indemiffited as Exhibit 4.24 to the Comp#¢s Annual Report o
Form 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 “2011 1(-K")). "

Credit Agreement, dated as of October 14, 2011 ngntlee Company, as the Borrower, and CoBank, AGBhe
Administrative Agent, the Lead Arranger and a Lended the other Lenders referred to therein (fdsdExhibit
10.1 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K filed on October 17, 2011°

Credit Agreement, dated as of June 2, 2014, byaamohg the Company, as the Borrower, and the Lenuety
thereto and CoBank, ACB, as Administrative Ageitedfas Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly &empn
Form 1(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2014)“June 30, 2014 -Q")."

Credit Agreement, dated as June 2, 2014, amongthe Company, the Lenders party thereto and JPMc
Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent (filedEaghibit 10.1 to the Company's current Report omnr&-K
filed on June 2, 1012 "

Tax Sharing Agreement, dated as of May 13, 200@rz/among Verizon Communications Ir“Verizor”), New
Communications Holdings Inc. (“Spinco”) and the Gumy, (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Cotre
Report on Form-K filed on May 15, 2009}

Agreement Regarding Intellectual Property Matteeged as of March 23, 2010, among the Company c8ind
Verizon (filed as Exhibit 10.12 to the Spinco Fatf)."

Non-Employee Directors' Deferred Fee Equity Plan, asrated and restated December 29, 2008 (filed asbfE:
10.7 to the Compar's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2008 “2008 1(-K")."
Non-Employee Directors’ Equity Incentive Plas amended and restated December 29, 2008 &flé&ckhibit 10.8
to the 2008 1-K). *

Separation Agreement between the Company and Ledraw effective July 10, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 2@ of
the Compan’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 20°

1996 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and resi¢edmber 29, 2008 (filed as Exhibit 10.11 to tBe&1(-K).

2013 Frontier Bonus Plan (filed as Appendix A te Bompan’s Proxy Statement dated March 25, 2013
“2013 Proxy Stateme”)). "
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Amended and Restated 2000 Equity Incentiar, Rs amended and restated December 29, 2088 & Exhibit
10.13 to the 2008 -K).

2009 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Appendix Atfte Compan’'s Proxy Statement dated April 6, 20C

2013 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Appendix Bttte 2013 Proxy Statemen’

Offer of Employment Letter, dated January 200, between the Company and Kathleen Aberndileg as
Exhibit 10.35 to the Spinco Form 11

Amendment, dated May 31, 2012, to Offer wipbyment Letter, dated January 20, 2010, betwieerCompany
and Kathleen Q. Abernathy (filed as Exhibit 10.%te Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fer filkcal
quarter ended June 30, 2012 (“June 30, 2012 -Q"))."

Offer of Employment Letter, dated Decemb®r 2012, between the Co mpany and John M. Jurgfiled as
Exhibit 10.21 to the Company’s Annual Report onrfrdr0-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 (tigd.22
16-K"))."

Change in Control Letter Agreement, datpd|®7, 2012, between the Company and Daniel Xatthy (filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Compa’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 20"

Offer of Employment Letter, dated January 13, 20B6fween the Company and Cecilia K. McKen
(“McKenney Offer Letter”) (filed as Exhibit 10.1 tilne Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fer fiscal
quarter ended March 31, 200°

Amendment, dated May 31, 2012, to OffeEwmiployment Letter, dated January 13, 2006, betvieerCompany
and Cecilia K. McKenney (filed as Exhibit 10.5 ketJune 30, 2012 -Q).”

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datexf &arch 8, 2013, between the Company and N
Agnes Wilderotter (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Quamy's Current Report on Forn-K filed on March 13, 2013"
Offer of Employment Letter, dated January2l8.4, between the Company and Mark D. Nielséed(fas Exhibit
10.1 to the June 30, 2014-Q)."

Offer of Employment Letter, dated June 9140 between the Company and Donald W. Daniels(filzd as
Exhibit 10.3 to theJune 30, 2014 -Q)."

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for CEO (filsdexhibit 10.32 t«Compan’s Annual Report on Form -K
for the year ended December 31, 2009 “2009 1-K") ."

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for ndeeecutive officers other than CEO (filed as Eihil).33 to the
2009 1(-K). *

Form of LTIP Agreenent for CEO (filed as Exhibit 10.32 to the 201:-K). *

Form of LTIP Agreement for named ecutive officers other than CEO (filed as exhil}taB to the 201: 1C-K).

Summary of No-Employee Directo/ Compensation Arrangements Outside of Formal F.

Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed rgjess (this item is included herein for the solepmse of incorporation
by reference)

Subsidiaries of the Registre.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourfing .

Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuao Rule 13-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1
(the“1934 Ac”).

Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursutato Rule 13-14(a) under the 1934 Ac

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdto8e906 of
the Sarban«Oxley Act of 2002“SOXA") .

Certification of Chief Financial Officer puemnt to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursog®ection 906 of
SOXA.

XBRL Instance Documen

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docume

XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Docum:

XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Docume

XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Docume

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhe

Exhibits 10.€through 10.27are managemeicontracts or compensatory plans or arrangem

* Incorporated by referenc
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&i(t)e Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registhas duly caused this report to be signedsoeihalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATIO!
(Registrant

By: /s/ Mary Agnes Wilderotte
Mary Agnes Wilderotte
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi

February 24, 2015
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpthe following persons on behalf of the registrand in the capacities indicated on the'24
of February 201 5.

Signature Title
/s/ Leroy T. Barnes, J Director
(Leroy T. Barnes, Jr
/s/ Peter C. B. Byno Director
(Peter C. B. Bynoe
/s/ Donald Daniel: Senior Vice President & Controller
(Donald Daniels (Principal Accounting Officer
/s/ Diana S. Fergusc Director
(Diana S. Fergusol
/s/ Edward Fraiol Director
(Edward Fraioli)
/s/ John M. Jurelle Executive Vice President and Chief Financiali€aif
(John M. Jureller (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ Daniel McCarthy Director and President and Chief Operating @ffic
(Daniel McCarthy)
/s/ Pamela D.A. Ree\ Director
(Pamela D.A. Reevt
/s/ Virginia P. Ruesterho Director
(Virginia P. Ruesterhol:
/s/ Howard L. Schrot Director
(Howard L. Schrott
/s/ Larraine D. Seg Director
(Larraine D. Segil
/s/ Mark Shapirc Director
(Mark Shapiro’
/s/ Myron A. Wick Il Director
(Myron A. Wick 1)
/s/ Mary Agnes Wilderotte Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Office

(Mary Agnes Wilderotter (Principal Executive Officer)
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Managements Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Frontier Communications Corporation:

The management of Frontier Communications Corpmmaaind subsidiaries is responsible for establishimgjmaintaining adequate internal control ovearfiial reporting, as such term is defined in ExgleaAct
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f).

Under the supervision and with the participatioroaf management, we conducted an evaluation oéffleetiveness of our internal control over finaheporting based on the framework in Internal Golt
Integrated Framework ( 2013 ) issued by the Cotemibf Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway @@sion (COSO). Based on our evaluation, our mamet concluded that our internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of DecemberZl 4 .

Our independent registered public accounting fiBMG LLP, has audited the consolidated financiatesnents included in this report and, as part eif taudit, has issued their report, included heremthe
effectiveness of our internal control over finahceporting.

/sl Mary Agnes Wilderotter [s/ John M. Jureller
Mary Agnes Wilderotte John M. Jurelle
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office

Stamford, Connecticut
February 24 , 201 5
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Report Of Independent Reaistered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Frontier Communications Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsheets of Frontier Communications Corporatiahsubsidiaries as of December 31, 201 4 and 204n8 the related consolidated statements of incgome
comprehensive income (loss) , equity and cash flfmwgach of the years in the three-year periodedridecember 31, 201 4 . These consolidated finstEigements are the responsibility of the Company’
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statementsas our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighaflo(United States). Those standards require teaplan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statemeatses of material misstatement. An audit inclueeamining, on a test basis, evidence supportinguheunts and disclosures in the financial statesnéut audit
also includes assessing the accounting principdes! wnd significant estimates made by managementell as evaluating the overall financial statetgmesentation. We believe that our audits provade
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all materapects, the financial position of Frontier Coumications Corporation and subsidiaries as of Déeeri1, 201 4
and 201 3, and the results of their operationstheid cash flows for each of the years in theahyear period ended December 31, 201 4 , in corifpmuith U.S. generally accepted accounting prifesp

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdzf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blo@nited States), Frontier Communications Corponaand subsidiaries’ internal control over finaici

reporting as of December 31, 201 4 , based orrieriéstablished in Internal Control—Integrated Fearork ( 2013 ) issued by the Committee of Spongo@nganizations of the Treadway Commission (CQSO)
and our report dated February 24, 201 5 expremseshqualified opinion on the effectiveness of@mnpany’s internal control over financial repogtin

/sl KPMG LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
February24, 2015



Report Of Independent Reaistered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Frontier Communications Corporation:

We have audited Frontier Communications Corporagioth subsidiaries’ internal control over finaneigborting as of December 31, 201 4 , based orrierigstablished in Internal Control—Integrated Fearark
(2013 ) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Gimgaions of the Treadway Commission (COSO). feorCommunications Corporation’s management ipoesible for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting and for its assessmerthefeffectiveness of internal control over finahegporting, included in the ac companying Managet'seReport O n Internal Control Over Financial Bejng.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion onGenpany’s internal control over financial reportingsed on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statslof the Public Company Accounting Oversight lBo@nited States). Those standards require thaplae and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal comwel financial reporting was maintained in all miterespects. Our audit included obtaining an usidading of internal control over financial repog;, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, anchgestind evaluating the design and operating effexéss of internal control based on the assesdedXis audit also included performing such othexcpdures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We&¢hat our audit provides a reasonable basisdo opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableasssuregarding the reliability of financial repogt and the preparation of financial statementsefdernal
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduaticg principles. A company’s internal control o¥imancial reporting includes those policies amdgedures that (1) pertain to the maintenanceaxfrds that,

in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refliet transactions and dispositions of the assetiseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurancdrtratactions are recorded as necessary to perepiagation of
financial statements in accordance with generatlyepted accounting principles, and that receipts expenditures of the company are being made enbccordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabbkurance regarding prevention or timely detectfaunauthorized acquisition, use, or dispositiéthe company’s assets that could have a matffiedt on

the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detaisstatements. Also, projections of any evatuabf effectiveness to future periods are subjethe risk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance Withpolicies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Frontier Communications Corporatand subsidiaries maintained, in all material retpeeffective internal control over financial refieg as of December 31, 201 4 , based on critsiablished
in Internal Control — Integrated Framework ( 2018sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bloédnited States), the consolidated balance shefefontier Communications Corporation and

subsidiaries as of December 31, 201 4 and 2018l tfze related consolidated statements of incom@mprehensive income (loss) , equity and cash fifmwsgach of the years in the three-year periodednd
December 31, 201 4, and our report dated Febr@dry201 5 expressed an unqualified opinion osefemnsolidated financial statements.

Isl KPMG LLP

Stamford, Connectict
February 24,2015



FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 201 4 AND 201 3
($ in thousands , except for share amounts )

2014 2013
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 682,134 $ 880,03¢
Accounts receivable, less allowance$71,571and$71,362, respectively 614,164 479,21C
Prepaid expens¢ 60,598 68,573
Income taxes and other current as 129,196 191,017
Total current asse 1,486,092 1,618,83¢
Property, plant and equipment, | 8,566,04¢ 7,255,762
Goodwill 7,205,357 6,337,71¢
Other intangibles, n¢ 1,499,864 1,214,932
Other asset 216,669 208,232
Total asset $ 18,974,03C $ 16,635,48¢
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Long-term debt due within one ye $ 297,622 $ 257,91€
Accounts payabl 379,255 327,25€
Advanced billings 179,058 137,31¢
Accrued other taxe 80,090 66,276
Accrued interes 214,226 188,63¢
Pension and other postretirement ben: 123,794 111,713
Other current liabilitie: 238,031 212,46€
Total current liabilities 1,512,07¢ 1,301,587
Deferred income taxe 2,938,907 2,417,10¢
Pension and other postretirement ben: 1,140,677 725,333
Other liabilities 239,078 262,30¢
Long-term deb 9,485,61F 7,873,667
Equity:
Common stock$0.25par value (1,750,000,00(authorized share
1,002,469,00(and999,462,00(outstanding, respectively, a
1,027,986,00lissued, at December 31, 2014 and 2( 256,997 256,997
Additional paic-in capital 3,990,16( 4,321,05¢
Retained earning 108,754 76,108
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net o (404,328 (260,530
Treasury stocl (293,906 (338,150
Total equity 3,657,677 4,055,481
Total liabilities and equit' $ 18,974,03C $ 16,635,48¢

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oetl@nsolidated Financial Statements.
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Revenue

Operating expense
Network access expens
Network related expens
Selling, general and administrative exper
Depreciation and amortizatic
Pension settlement co:
Acquisition and integration cos
Total operating expens:

Gain on sale of Mohave partnership inte
Operating incom:
Investment and other income, |

Losses on early extinguishment of d
Interest expens

Income before income tax
Income tax expens

Net income
Less: Income attributable to the noncontroll
interest in a partnersh

Net income attributable to common shareholi
of Frontier

Basic net income per common share attribut
to common shareholders of Front

Diluted net income per common share attributi
to common shareholders of Front

Net income

Pension settlement costs, net of tax (see Notesd3.6)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax Kéate 13)
Comprehensive income (los

Less: Income attributable to t
noncontrolling interest in a partnersl|

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to theroom
shareholders of Frontis

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 201 4, 201 3 AN201 2
($ in thousands, except for per-share amounts)

CONSOLIDATED STA TEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (L OSS)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 201 4, 201 3 AN[201 2

($ in thousands)

2014 2013 2012

$ 4772490 $ 4,761,57¢ 5,011,852

465,395 431,073 441,588

1,118,427 1,083,55¢ 1,133,69:

1,088,18C 1,057,51¢ 1,100,861

1,138,942 1,169,50( 1,266,807

- 44,163 -

141,605 9,652 81,737

3,052,54¢ 3,795,45¢ 4,024,68¢

- 14,601 -

819,941 980,721 987,168

38,996 9,177 20,132

- 159,780 90,363

695,500 667,398 687,985

163,437 162,720 228,952

30,544 47,242 75,638

132,893 115,478 153,314

- 2,643 16,678

$ 132,893 $ 112,835 136,636

$ 013 $ 0.11 0.14

$ 013 $ 0.11 0.13
2014 2013 2012

132,892 $ 115,47¢ 153,314

- 27,381 -

(143,798 195,665 (96,613

(10,905 338,524 56,701

- 2,643 16,678

(10,905 $ 335,881 40,023

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oetl@msolidated Financial Statements.
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Balance December 31, 20
Stock plan:
Dividends on common stoc
Net income
Other comprehensive loss, |
of tax
Distributions
Balance December 31, 20
Stock plans
Dividends on common stoc
Net income
Pension settlement costs, net of
Other comprehensive income, |
of tax
Distributions
Sale of Mohave partnership inter
Balance December 31, 20
Stock plan:
Dividends on common stoc
Net income
Other comprehensive loss, 1
of tax
Balance December 31, 20

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 201 4, 201 3 AN[201 2

($ and shares in thousands)

Equity of Frontier

Accumulatec

Additional Other
Common Stoc! Paic-In Retainec c Treasury Stoc Total
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Loss Shares Amount Interest Equity
1,027,986 $ 256,997 $ 4,773,38: $ 226,721 (386,963 (32,858 $ (415,001 ¢ 13,997 § 4,469,13¢
- - (34,582 - - 3,282 46,408 - 11,826
- - (99,238 (300,152 - - - - (399,390
- - - 136,63€ - - - 16,678 153,314
- - - - (96,613 - - - (96,613
- - - - - - - (19,000 (19,000
1,027,98¢ 256,997 4,639,56% 63,205 (483,576 (29,576 (368,593 11,675 4,119,271
- - (18,671 - - 1,052 30,443 - 11,772
- - (299,836 (99,932 - - - - (399,768
- - - 112,83¢ - - - 2,643 115,47¢
- - - - 27,381 - - - 27,381
- - - - 195,665 - - - 195,665
- - - - - - - (6,400 (6,400
- - - - - - - (7,918 (7,918
1,027,98€ 256,997 4,321,05¢ 76,108 (260,530 (28,524 (338,150 - 4,055,481
- - (30,251 - - 3,007 44,244 - 13,993
- - (300,645 (100,247 - - - - (400,892
- - - 132,893 - - - - 132,893
- - - - (143,798 - - - (143,798
1,027,98¢ $ 256,997 $ 3,990,16( §$ 108,754 (404,328 (25517 § (293,906 $ - § 3,657,671

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oeti@msolidated Financial Statements.
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Cash flows provided by (used in) operating acti
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by
operating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Losses on early extinguishment of d
Pension settlement cos
Pension/OPEB cos
Stock based compensation expe
Gains on sale of ass¢
Other nor-cash adjustmen
Deferred income taxe
Change in accounts receival
Change in accounts payable and other liabil
Change in prepaid expenses, income taxes and@itrent asset
Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows provided from (used by) investing atts:
Cash paid for the Connecticut Acquisiti
Capital expenditure- Business operatior
Capital expenditure- Integration activitie:
Network expansion funded by Connect America F
Grant funds received for network expansion from iGan
America Func
Proceeds on sale of ass
Cash transferred from escrc
Other
Net cash used by investing activit

Cash flows provided from (used by) financing adigs:
Long-term debt borrowing
Financing costs pai
Long-term debt paymen
Premium paid to retire de
Dividends paic
Other
Net cash provided from (used by) financing acts

(Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equive
Cash and cash equivalents at Janua

Cash and cash equivalents at Decembe

Supplemental cash flow informatia
Cash paid during the period f
Interest
Income taxes, ne

Nor-cash investing and financing activiti¢
Capital lease obligatior

Financing obligation for contributions of real pesty to pension pla

Reduction of pension obligatic
Increase (decrease) in capital expenditures dokange:
in accounts payab

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 201 4, 201 3 AN201 2
($ in thousands)
2014 2013 2012
$ 132,893 $ 115478 $ 153,314
1,138,942 1,169,50C 1,266,807
- 159,780 90,363
- 44,163 -
(18,026 37,243 28,087
23,462 16,932 16,775
(37,041 (14,601 -
32,129 11,065 10,319
(77,876 (7,510, 80,501
(61,528 50,487 43,813
89,666 (6,507 (148,906
47,451 (80,403 11,400
1,270,072 1,495,627 1,552,47¢
(2,017,787 - -
(572,443 (634,685 (748,407
(115,653 - (54,097
(56,453 (32,748 (4,830
3,748 63,636 65,981
38,636 17,755 -
11,411 31,249 102,020
32,820 12,300 4,394
(2,675,721 (542,493 (634,939
1,911,12¢ 750,000 1,360,62¢
(40,496 (19,360 (27,852
(259,935 (1,563,022 (756,953
- (159,429 (72,290
(400,892 (399,768 (399,390
(2,058 (8,048 (21,236
1,207,744 (1,399,627 82,904
(197,905 (446,493 1,000,43¢
880,039 1,326,532 326,094
$ 682,134 $ 880,039 $ 1,326,532
$ 655,531 $ 667,753 $ 636,485
$ 70,390 $ 94,161 $ 4,715
$ -8 - 8 26,596
$ -8 23422 % -
$ -8 (23,422 $ -
$ (15,271 $ 39,847 $ 9,802

The accompanying Notes are an integral part okti@msolidated Financial Statements



FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(1) Description of Business and Summary of Sigaift Accounting Policies
(a) Description of Business

(b

(©)

¢

)

Frontier Communications Corporation (Frontier) isanmunications company providing services maiolyural areas and small and medium-sized townscéies as an incumbent local exchange
carrier (ILEC). Frontier was incorporated in 1988iginally under the name of Citizens Ultilities i8pany and was known as Citizens Communications @agpntil July 31, 2008. Frontier and its
subsidiaries are referred to as “we,” “us,” “ouifFrontier,” or the “Company” in this report.

Effective October 24, 2014, Frontier’s scope ofrafiens and balance sheet capitalization changedrially as a result of the completion of the Catiwait Acquisition , as described in Note 3 -
Acquisitions . Historical financial data presenfed Frontier is not indicative of the future finaakcposition or operating results for Frontier, @ndludes the results of the Connecticut o perati@as
defined in Note 3 — Acquisitions, from the dateaojuisition on October 24, 2014.

Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements have beepapeel in accordance with accounting principles galyeaccepted in the United States of America (GBAP). Certain reclassifications of amounts
previously reported have been made to conformeathrent presentation , as described in Note-1{})saggregation of Network R elated Expenses aillih§, General and Administrative Expenses .
All significant intercompany balances and transactihave been eliminated in consolidation.

Frontier had a 33% controlling general partner interest in a pathgr entity, the Mohave Cellular Limited Partnepsfi¥iohave). Mohave's results of operations ancied sheet were included in our
consolidated financial statements through its datdisposal on April 1, 2013. The minority intere$ the limited partners was reflected in the adidsted balance sheet as “Noncontrolling intenest
partnership” and in the consolidated statemenisazfme as “Income attributable to the noncontrgllinterest in a partnership.” On April 1, 2013¢ tBompany sold its partnership interest in Mohave
and received proceeds of $ 18 million . The Corgpagognized a gain on sale of approximately $ iom before taxes in 2013.

For our financial statements as of and for thequeended December 31, 201 4 , we evaluated subseeuents and transactions for potential recogmitindisclosure through the date that we filed this
annual report on Form 10-K with the Securities Brdhange Commission (SEC).

The preparation of our financial statements in oomfty with U.S. GAAP requires management to makingates and assumptions that affect (i) the regoamounts of assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements, (i) the disclosurecofitingent assets and liabilities, and (iii) teparted amounts of revenue and expense s duringpleeting period. Actual results ma y differ fradhose
estimates. Estimates and judgmen ts are used wivenrating for the allowance for doubtful accoumisset impairment s, indefinite - lived intangilsl, depreciation and amortization, income taxes,
business combinations , and pension and othérgpiosment benefits, among others.

Cash Equivalents
We consider all highly liquid investments with amginal maturity of three months or less to be ceghivalents.

Revenue Recognitian

Revenue is recognized when services are providetzhen produc ts are delivered to customers. Revémateis billed in advance includes: monthly remgrnetwork access services (including data
services), special access services and monthlyriegwoice, video and related charges. The ureghiportion of these fees is initially deferredaasomponent of “Advanced billings” on our
consolidated balance sheet and recognized as revarer the period t hat the services are proviiR=ienue that is billed in arrears includes: nonsmgeg network access services (including data
services), switched access services, non-recunvoitg and video services. The earned but unbgtetion of these fees is recognized as revenuericansolidated statements of income and accrued in
accounts receivable in the period t hat the sesvize provided. Excise taxes are recogniz ed ibifity when billed. Installation fees and theglated direct and incremental costs are initiaéjedred

and recognized as revenue and expense over thegavierrm of a customer relationship. We recogaszeurrent period expense the portion of instalfatiosts that exceeds installation fee revenue.
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As required by law, the Company collects variougesafrom its customers and subsequently remitsethees es to governmental authorities. Substantalllyf these taxes are recorded through the
consolidated balance sheet and presented on asistib our consolid ated statements of incom&'e also collect Universal Service Fund (USF) surgls from customers (primarily federal USF) that
we have recorded on a gross basis in our consetidstatements of income and included within “Reeérand “ Network related expenses” of $ 125 nwiili$ 118 million and $ 120 million for the
years ended December 31, 201 4, 201 3 and 2@dspectively .

(e) Property, Plant and Equipment

(9

(h

(0]

0]

)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at ofligiost, including capitalized interest, or fair iair value as of the date of acquisition for acqliipeoperties. Maintenance and repairs are chaed
operating expenses as incurred. The gross book edloutine prop erty, plant and equipment retiats is charged against accumulated depreciation.

Goodwill and Other Intangibles

Goodwill represent s the excess of purchase priee the fair value of identifiable tangible andaingible net assets acquired. We undertake stunlidstermine the fair values of assets and liagditi
acquired and allocate purchase prices to assetsadiidies, including property, plant and equipntegoodwill and o ther identifiable intangibleseVinnua Ily as of December 31 , or more frequeasly,
circumstances warrant , examine the carrying vafueur goodwill and trade name to determine whethere are any impairment loss es. We test for gidbinpairment at the “operating segment”
level, as that term is defined in U.S. GAAP. In @mr 2014, and as a result of the completion ofQtbenecticut Acquisition , t he Company reorganiized f ive regional operating segments . Our
operating segments consist of the following regi@entral, East, Mid-Atlantic, National and WesurQegional operating segments are aggregatecimaeportable segment. In conjunction with the
reorganization of our operating segments, we rgassigoodwill using a relative fair value allocat@pproach.

The Company amortizes finite-lived intangible assmter their estimated useful lives on the accatedr method of sum of the year s digits. We rewsesh intangible assets at least annually as of
December 31 to assess whether any potential impatrexists and whether factors exist that wouldessitate a change in useful life and a differerrgimation period.

Impairment of Lond ived Assets and Lonbived Assets to Be Disposed Of

We review long-lived assets to be held and useduding customer lists, and long-lived assets talisposed of for impairment whenever events or gharin circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of such assets may not be recoverable. Reatuility of assets to be held and used is meaqwedmparing the carrying amount of the asselédfiture undiscounted net cash flows expected to
be generated by the asset. Recoverability of absédsfor sale is measured by comparing the cagrgimount of the assets to their estimated fair etar&lue. If any assets are considered to be imgair
the impairment is measured by the amount by whiehcarrying amount of the assets exceeds the éstirfeir value. Also, we periodically reassessuseful lives of our tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether any changes are required.

Investments
Investments in entities that we do not control, where we have the ability to exercise significafiuence over operating and financial policieg accounted for using the equity method of accagnti

Income Taxes and Deferred Income Taxes

We file a consolidated federal income tax returre Milize the asset and liability method of accaumfor income taxes. Under the asset and liabitigthod, deferred income taxes are recorded for the
tax effect of temporary differences between tharirial statement basis and the tax basis of agsdtfiabilities using tax rates expected to beffeat when the temporary differences are expeated t
reverse.

Stock Plans

We have various stock-based compensation plansrdsaander these plans are granted to eligible efficmanagement employees, non-management emplaydason-employee directors. Awards
may be made in the form of incentive stock optiamm-qualified stock options, stock appreciatioghts, restricted stock, restricted stock units thieo stock-based awards, including awards with
performance, market and time-vesting conditions. Ou
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general policy is to issue shares from treasunynupe grant of restricted shares, earning of perémce shares and the exercise of options.

The compensation cost recognized is based on awkittsitely expected to vest. U.S. GAAP requireseitures to be estimated and revised, if necessaigubsequent periods if actual forfeitures diffe
from those estimates.

(K

Net Income Per Common Share Attributable ton@mn Shareholders

Basic net income per common share is computed ub&gveighted average number of common sharesaodlisg during the period being reported on, exdgdinvested restricted stock awards. The
impact of dividends paid on unvested restrictedkstwards have been deducted in the determinafibagic and diluted net income per common shariatable to common shareholders of Frontier.
Except when the effect would be antidilutive, ddiditnet income per common share reflects the déutifect of certain common stock equivalents, aiileed further in Note 12 — Net Income Per
Common Share.

(I) Disagareqgatiomf Network Related Expenses and Selling, Genem@aiministrative Expenses
Historically, the Company has included network tedeexpenses such as facility rent, utilities, reaiance and other costs, each related to the aperdtFrontier's communications network, as well a
salaries, wages and related benefits associatédpeisonnel who are responsible for the delivergesfiices as well as operation and maintenance abimmunications network, within the line item
"Other operating expenses" in its ConsolidatedeBtant s of Income . Effective with the year en@&tember 31, 2014, these network related expearsebeing reported separately as “Network
related expenses " in the Consolidated Statemehireome .

Additionally, the Company has historically includeelling, general and administrative expenses sscéalaries, wages and related benefits and thiedetosts of corporate and sales personnel, travel
insurance, non-network related rent, advertising aier administrative expenses, within the limenit‘Other operating expenses” in its Consolidatetetnent s of Income . Effective with the year
ended December 31, 2014, these selling, genera@mihistrative expenses are being reported sepraas “Selling, gene ral and administrativeenges " in the Consolidated Statement s of Income .

As a result of the above, the Company also revisecConsolidated Statements of Income  as follows:

($in thousands As Previously Reporte Adjustment Revised Reportin

Year ended December 31, 201

Other operating expens $ 2,141,068 $ (2,141,068 $ -
Network related expens - 1,083,55% 1,083,55¢
Selling, general and administrative expenses - 1,057,512 1,057,51¢
Total operating expens: 3,795,45¢ - 3,795,45¢€

Year ended December 31, 201
Other operating expenses $ 2,23455: $ (2,234553  $ -

Network related expens 1,133,692 1,133,692
Selling, general and administrative expenses - 1,100,861 1,100,861
Total operating expenses 4,024,68¢ - 4,024,68¢

The changes outlined above do not affect the Cogipgumeviously reported Consolidated Total Opegtitxpenses, Operating Income, Net Income or IncpeneShare in the Consolidated Statement s
of Income, or any items reported in the Consolidd&alance Sheets, Consolidated Statements of Ctvepsize Income (Loss) , Cash Flows or Changesack8bolders’ Equity.
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Recent AccountinBronouncements

Revenue Recognition
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting StandardsrBq&ASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ABD)2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Custonier$his standard requires companies to

recognize revenue to depict the transfer of prothgeods or services to customers in an amountréflects the consideration to which the companyeeipto be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. This new standard is effective for aniamal interim reporting periods beginning after Deber 15, 2016. Early adoption is not permitted. Ganies are permitted to either apply the requirésen
retrospectively to all prior periods presentedapply the requirements in the year of adoptiorguggh a cumulative adjustment. The Company is ctlyrewaluating the impact of adopting the new stard

but has not yet selected a transition method @roened the impact of adoption on its consoliddieancial statements.

Discontinued Operations

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-08, (RReting Discontinued Operations and Disclosure®isposals of Components of an Entity” which raigies threshold for a disposal to qualify as
discontinued operations and requires new disclssfoeindividually material disposal transactiohsttdo not meet the definition of a discontinue@ragion. Under the new standard, companies report
discontinued operations when they have a dispbsalrepresents a strategic shift that has or vaieha major impact on operations or financial tssdihis new standard will be applied prospectivaig

will be effective for the Company on January 1, 20This new standard is not expected to have ariakimpact on the Company's consolidated finansiatements.

Internal Control—Integrated Framework
In May 2013, the Committee of Sponsoring Organizetiof the Treadway Commission (COSO) issued itkatgul Internal Control — Integrated Framework @B&3 Framework) and related illustrative

documents. The original COSO Framework was puldishel992 and was recognized as the leading guétorcdesigning, implementing and conducting inatontrols over external financial reporting
and assessing its effectiveness. The 2013 Framewenpected to help organizations design and imeie internal control in light of many changes irsiness and operating environments since the issuan
of the original Framework, broaden the applicatéimternal control in addressing operations anbréng objectives, and clarify the requirementsdetermining what constitutes effecti ve interoaitrol.
We adopt ed the 2013 Framework during 2014, whidindt have a significant impact on the Company.

Acquisitions

TheConnecticut Acquisition

On October 24, 2014, pursuant to the stock @aselagreement dated December 16, 2013, as aménel€bmpany acquire d the wir eline properties &4 Inc. (AT&T) in Connecticut (the Connecticut
Acquisition ) for a purchase price of $ 2 billiancash, excluding adjustments for working capitabllowing the Connecticut Acquisition , Frontiesw owns and operate s the wireline business iaed f
optic network servicing residential, commercial amuble sale customers in Connecticut (the Conngctiperations) . The Company also acquire d th€& T U-verse® video and DISH satellite TV
customers in Connec ticut. Se e Note 7 for furthscussion related to financing the Connecticutuisitjon .

In connection with the Connecticut Acquisition, Bempany incurred $ 142 million of operating expEs)onsisting of $15 million and $127 millionaafquisition and integration costs, respectivety| &
116 million in capital expenditures related to @ennecticut Acquisition during 2014. The Companguimed $10 million of acquisition costs relatedtie Connecticut Acquisition during the fourth qeart
of 2013.

Our consolidated statement of income for the yeded December 31, 2014 includes $ 216 million génele and $ 38 million of operating in come relatethe results of the Connecticut operations from
the date of its acquisition on October 24, 2014.

The allocation of the purchase price of the Corioettoperations was based on the fair value oftassequired and liabilities assumed as of Octol#er2D14, the effective date of the Connecticut
Acquisition . Our assessment of fair value is pnéliary, and will be adjusted for information thatdurrently not available to us, primarily relatedthe tax basis of assets acquired, certain alscewal
contingencies, pension assets and liabilities, elbas other assumed postretirement benefit olidigat

The fair value amounts recorded for the allocatbthe purchase price as of October 24, 2014 asbngnary and certain items are subject to chanfge most significant items include: legal and tax
accruals; accounts receivable;



FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

property, plant and equipment; customer list inilaleg; other working capital “true-up” adjustmentigferred income tax assets and liabilities, pen@Mm&T providing us with tax values for the assatsl
liabilities of the Connecticut operations; and pensnd other postretirement liabilities, pendignpletion of actuarial studies and the relatedsfiemof pension assets.

The preliminary allocation of the purchase pricesented below represents the effect of recordiagtaliminary estimates of the fair value of assetjuired, liabilities assumed and related defeimedme
taxes as of the date of the Connecticut Acquisitibased on the total transaction consideratiod 2f 0 1 8 m illion . These preliminary estimatel be revised in future periods and the revisionay
materially affect the presentation of our consdédafinancial results. Any changes to the initisfimates of the fair value of the assets and It&sl will be recorded as adjustments to thosetasaed
liabilities and residual amounts will be allocatedyoodwill.

(8 in thousands

Current asset $ 73,631
Property, plant & equipmel 1,450,057
Goodwill 867,638
Other intangibles - customer list 590,000
Other asset 336
Current liabilities (101,590
Deferred income taxes (647,525
Other liabilities (214,760

Total net assets acquir $ 2,017,787

The total consideration exceeded the net estinfatedalue of the assets acquired and liabilitiesumed by $868 million, wh ich we recognized asdgolh This gooduwill is attributable to strategieiefits,
including enhanced financial and operational scalerket diversification and leveraged combined ek that we expect to realize . Of this amogrpdwill associated with the Connecticut Acquasiti
of $75 million is deductible for income tax purpsse

The securities purchase agreement provides forseqgimsing adjustment for working capital, pensl@bilities transferred and pension assets. Fromtied AT&T have not finalized the results of these
calculations. If an adjustment is made for the vraglcapital “true-up,” the purchase price allocatiaill be revised.

The following unaudited pro forma financial infortizm presents the combined results of operatiorfsraiitier and the Connecticut operations as if@banecticut A cquisition had occurred as of Jandary
2013. The pro forma information is not necessarnitiicative of what the financial position or resultf operations actually would have been had then€cticut A cquisition been completed as of Jandary
2013. In addition, the unaudited pro forma finahiriformation is not indicative of, nor does it port to project, the future financial position grevating results of Frontier. The unaudited pronfaffinancial
information excludes acquisition and integratiostsand does not give effect to any estimated atehfial cost savings or other operating efficieadhat could result from the Connecticut Acquositi
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(8 in millions, except per share amour (Unaudited)
For the year ended December
2014 2013
Revenue $ 5775 % 6,011
Operating income $ 985 $ 1,049

Net income attributable to comm
shareholders of Fronti $ 91 % 83

Basic and diluted net income per
common share attributable
common shareholders of Front $ 019 $ 0.08

(4) Accounts Receivable
The components of accounts receivable, net at Dieee81, 201 4 and 201 3 are as follows:

(8 in thousands 2014 2013

Retail and Wholesal $ 629,816 $ 498,717

Other 55,919 51,855

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (71,571 (71,362
Accounts receivable, n $ 614,164 $ 479,210

An analysis of the activity in the allowance foruttful accounts for the years ended December 314201 3 and 201 2 is as follows:

Charged (Credited) to Switched and
Nonswitched Revenue and Other

($.in thousand) Balance at beginning of Perii _Charged to Other Reven Accounts Write-offs and Recoverie Balance at end of Peric
2012 $ 107,048 $ 74,332 $ 14,396 $ (102,509 $ 93,267
2013 93,267 68,965 (3,203 (87,667 71,362
2014 71,362 61,138 (22) (60,907 71,571

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts daseour estimate of our ability to collect accaurgceivable. The provision for uncollectible amtsurwas $ 6 1 million, $ 6 6 million and $ 8 9 lioih
for the years ended December 31, 201 4, 201 2@he , respectively.
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(5) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment, net at Decembe2@LL 4 and 201 3 are as follows:

(8 in thousands Estimated Useful Live 2014 2013
Land N/A $ 147,044 $ 126,483
Buildings and leasehold improveme 4lyears 1,325,865 1,061,097
General suppo 5to 17 years 1,037,27¢ 977,941
Central office/electronic circuit equipment 5to 11 years 5,933,45( 5,222,92¢
Poles 49 years 671,931 549,322
Cable and wirt 15to 30years 6,973,23¢ 6,259,292
Conduit 60years 509,418 359,974
Other 12 to 30 years 46,485 43,144
Construction work in progress 301,189 250,516
Property, plant and equipme 16,945,89¢ 14,850,691
Less: Accumulated depreciati (8,379,847 (7,594,935
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 8,566,04¢ $ 7,255,762

Depreciation expense is principally based on thepmsite group method. Depreciation expense we5$1@ illion , $ 84 1 million and $ 84 5 millidor the years ended December 31, 201 4 , 201 3 and
201 2, respectively. As a result of our annudkjrendent study of the estimated remaining usifes lof our plant assets, we adopted new estimat@dining useful lives for certain pl ant assetefas
October 1, 2014 , with an i nsignificant | mpaztdepreciation expense. In addition, we commissiareindependent study to determine the estimatefiillives for assets acquired during the Conpetti
Acquisition . These new lives were adopted effectctober 24, 2014.

(6) Goodwill andOther Intangibles
The components of goodwill by the reporting uniteffect as of December 31, 201 4 and 2013 afellass:

(8 in thousands 2014 2013
Central $ 1,81549% $ 1,815,49¢
East 1,711,061 2,003,574
Mid-Atlantic 1,160,151 -
National 1,218,11¢ 1,218,112
West 1,300,534 1,300,534
Total Goodwill $ 7,205357 $ 6,337,71¢

The components of other intangibles at Decembe2@1 4 and 201 3 are as follows:

(8 in thousands 2014 2013

Gross Carrying Amour Accumulated Amortizatiol Net Carrying Amoun Gross Carrying Amour Accumulated Amortizatiol Net Carrying Amoun

Other Intangibles:

Customer bas $ 3,017,646 $ (1,640,324 $ 1377,32¢ $ 2,427,648 $ (1,336,852 $ 1,090,79€
Trade name and license 122,540 - 122,54C 124,13€ - 124,136
Total other intangibles $ 3,140,18¢ $ (1,640,324 $ 1,499,86¢ $ 2,551,78¢ $ (1,336,852 $ 1,214,932

Amortization expense was $ 30 3 million , $&=nillion and $ 42 2 million for the years endedcBmber 31, 201 4 , 201 3 and 201 2 , respectiVilyortization expense mainly represents the
accelerated amortization of our customer base eedjais a result of the Connecticut Acquisition andcquisition of certain Verizon Communications. lproperties in 2010 (the
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2010 Acquisition) based on a useful life of nirte 12 years . Amortization expense for 201 @uded $ 3 8 million for amortization associateith certain software licenses that were acquirethe
2010 Acquisition and are no longer required forrafiens as a result of the co mpleted systems ceiores and $1 1 million for amortization assaeihivith certain properties, each of which wereyfull
amortized in 201 2 . Amortization expense, basedwrncurrent estimate of useful lives, is estimatete a pproximately $ 345 million in 201 5, 280 million in 201 6, $ 235 million in 201 7 $ 180
million in 201 8 and $ 125 million in 201 9 .

(7) LongTerm Debt
The activity in our long-term debt from December 3@1 3 to December 31, 201 4 is summarized asvislt|

Year Ended
December 31, 201 Interest
Rate a
December 31, Payments New December 31, December 31,
(8 in thousands) 2013 and Retirement Borrowings 2014 2014 *
Senior Unsecured De $ 8,107,06€ $ (257,500 ¢ 1,900,00C ¢ 9,749,56€ 7.63%
Other Secured Del 13,550 (2,019 11,125 22,656 3.77%
Rural Utilities Service Loan Contracts 8,930 (416 - 8,514 6.15%
Total Long-Term Debt $ 8,129,54¢ ¢ (259,935 ¢ 1,911,128 $ 9,780,73¢ 7.62%
Less: Debt (Discount)/Premiu 2,037 2,501
Less: Current Portion (257,916 (297,622
$ 7,873,667 $ 9,485,61¢

* Interest rate includes amortization of debt issoe costs and debt premiums or discounts. Theestteates at December 31, 201 4 represent a weityjaverage of multiple issuances.
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Additional information regarding our Senior UnsemliDebt at December 31, 201 4 and 201 3 is asAfsilo

($in thousands 2014 2013

Principal Interest Principal Interest
Outstanding Rate Outstanding Rate

Senior Notes and Debentures Due:

5/1/2014 $ - - $ 200,00C 8.250%
3/15/2015 105,02¢ 6.625% 105,02¢ 6.625%
4/15/2015 96,872 7.875% 96,872 7.875%
10/14/2016 * 402,50C 3.045% (Variable) 460,00C 3.045% (Variable)
4/15/2017 606,874 8.250% 606,874 8.250%
10/1/2018 582,73¢ 8.125% 582,73¢ 8.125%
3/15/2019 434,00C 7.125% 434,00C 7.125%
10/24/2019 ** 350,00C 3.545% (Variable) = -
4/15/202C 1,021,508 8.500% 1,021,508 8.500%
71112021 500,00C 9.250% 500,00C 9.250%
9/15/2021 775,00C 6.250% = -
4/15/2022 500,00C 8.750% 500,00C 8.750%
1/15/2022 850,00C 7.125% 850,00C 7.125%
4/15/2024 750,00C 7.625% 750,00C 7.625%
1/15/2025 775,00C 6.875% - -
11/1/202& 138,00C 7.000% 138,00C 7.000%
8/15/202€ 1,739 6.800% 1,739 6.800%
1/15/2027 345,858 7.875% 345,858 7.875%
8/15/2031 945,328 9.000% 945,328 9.000%
10/1/2034 628 7.680% 628 7.680%
7/1/2035 125,00C 7.450% 125,00C 7.450%
10/1/2046 193,50C 7.050% 193,50C 7.050%
9,499,56¢€ 7,857,06¢€
Subsidiary Debentures Du
2/15/2028 200,00C 6.730% 200,00C 6.730%
10/15/2029 50,000 8.400% 50,000 8.400%
Total $ 9,749,56¢€ 7.45% *** $ 8,107,06¢ 7.78% ***

*  Represents borrowings under the 2011 CoBaneklit Agreement , as defined below .
**  Represents borrowings under the 2014 CoBardd{f Agreement , as defined below .
** % |nterest rate represents a weighted averdgbestated interest rates of multiple issuances.

On June 2, 2014, the Company entered into a cagditement with CoBank, ACB, as administrative agead arranger and a lender, and the other lemdetg thereto, for a $350 million senior unsecured
delayed draw term loan facility (the 2014 CoBanlkdir Agreement). The facility was drawn upon clgsaf the Connecticut Acquisition with proceeds usegartially finance the acquisition. The maturity
date is the fifth anniversary of the draw date. &@pent of the outstanding principal balance willhbade in quarterly installments in the amount & @illion, commencing one full fiscal quarter aftae
draw date, with the remaining outstanding princlpelance to be repaid on the maturity date. Bomgwiunder the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement wilk liet@rest based on the margins over the Base Rate
(as defined in the 2014 CoBank Credit Agreement)IBOR, at the election of the Company. Interes¢ raargins under the facility (ranging from 0.878/2.875% for Base Rate borrowings and 1.875% to
3.875% for LIBOR borrowings) are subject to adjustits based on the Total Leverage Ratio of the Compes such term is defined in the 2014 CoBank i€fegteement. The interest rate on this facility at
December 31, 2014 was LIBOR plus 3.375% .
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On June 2, 2014 , the Company entered into a nealviag credit agreement with JPMorgan Chase B&hR.., as administrative agent, the lenders paréyeto and the other parties named therein (the
Revolving Credit Agreement), for a $75 0 milliorvedving credit facility (the Revolving Credit Faitil) with a scheduled termination date of May 3Q18 and terminated its existing revolving creddilfy

(the Prior Revolving Credit Facility) under the @iteAgreement, dated as of May 3, 2013, among then@any, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as adminisea&gent, the lenders party thereto and the other
parties named therein (the Prior Revolving Crediteement) . As of December 31, 201 4, the RéwglCredit Facility was fully available and no bmwmings had been made there under. Associated
commitment fees under the Revolving Credit Facililf vary from time to time depending on the Comp@a debt rating (as defined in the Revolving Créireement) and were 0.450% per annum as of
December 31, 2 014. During the term of the Revgl\@nedit Facility, the Company may borrow, repay agborrow funds, and may obtain letters of creglibject to customary borrowing conditions. Loans
under the Revolving Credit Facility will bear inést based on the alternate base rate or the atljul3© Rate (each as determined in the Revolvingd@rAgreement), at the Company’s election, plus a
margin based on the Company’s debt rating (ranfimm 0.50% to 1.50% for alternate base rate bomgwiand 1.50% to 2.50% for adjusted LIBO Rate hwairnigs). The current pricing on this facility
would have been 1.5 0% or 2. 5 0% , r espectivadypf December 31, 201 4 . Letters of credit issweter the Revolving Credit Facility will also bebgect to fees that vary depending on the Company’s
debt rating. The Revolving Credit Facility is awdile for general corporate purposes but may natbe to fund dividend payments. The terms of teeoRing Credit Facility are substantially simitarthe
terms of the Prior Revolving Credit Facility.

The Company has a credit agreement with CoBank, A€GBadministrative agent, lead arranger and aferathd the other lenders party thereto, for a%&llion senior unsecured term loan facility wih
final maturity of October 14, 2016 (the 2011 CoBd&riedit Agreement). The entire facility was draupon execution of the 2011 CoBank Credit Agreenme@ctober 2011. Repayment of the outstanding
principal balance is made in quarterly installmentthe amount of $1 4 million, which commenced\arch 31, 2012, with the remaining outstanding gipal balance to be repaid on the final maturitieda
Borrowings under the 2011 CoBank Credit Agreemesdrhinterest based on the margins over the Base (atdefined in the 2011 CoBank Credit Agreement).IBOR, at the election of the
Company. Interest rate margins under the facffiynging from 0.875% to 2.875% for Base Rate boimge/ and 1.875% to 3.875% for LIBOR borrowings) smbject to adjustments based on the Total
Leverage Ratio of the Company, as such term ineefin the 2011 CoBank Credit Agreement. The cupecing on this facility is LIBOR plus 2.875 % .

On September 17, 2014, the Company completed ateegdl debt offering of $775 million aggregate gipal amount of 6.250% senior unsecured notes @24,2and $775 million aggregate principal
amount of 6.875% senior unsecured notes due 2025€edéived net proceeds, after deducting undengrfges, of $1,519 million from the offering. Ther@pany used the net proceeds from the offering of
the notes, together with borrowings under the 20@Bank Credit Agreement, as defined above , ankd casand, to finance the Connecticut Acquisitiovhich closed on October 24, 2014. See Note 3 for
further discussion of the Connecticut Acquisition .

During 2014, we also entered into secured finarectotaling $11 million with four year terms and stated interest rate for certain equipment purchase

On April 10, 2013 , the Company completed a reggstalebt offering of $75 0 million aggregate prpraliamount of 7.625% senior unsecured notes dué 2&3ued at a price of 100% of their principal
amount. We received net proceeds of $73 7 milliomfthe offering after deducting underwriting fe€he Company used the net proceeds from the sdteeafotes, together with cash on hand, to finance
the cash tender offers discussed below.

On April 10, 2013, the Company accepted for puret®7 1 million aggregate principal amount of gsisr notes tendered for total consideration of $58illion, consisting of $19 4 million aggregate
principal amount of the Company's 6.625% senioesatue 2015 (the March 2015 Notes), tendered faf tonsideration of $216 million, and $27 7 miliaggregate principal amount of the Company’s
7.875% senior notes due 2015 (the April 2015 Notesidered for total consideration of $31 6 milli@n April 24, 2013 , the Company accepted for pase $ 1 million aggregate principal amount of the
March 2015 Notes, tendered for total consideratib 1 million, $ 1 million of the April 2015 Notesendered for total consideration of $ 1 milli@nd $22 5 million aggregate principal amount of the
Company’s 8.250% senior notes due 2017 (the 201téd)otendered for total consideration of $26 8ianil The repurchases in the debt tender offergHersenior notes resulted in a loss on the early
extinguishment of debt of $10 5 million, ($ 6 5 loih or $0.06 per share after tax) .

F-18



FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Additionally, during the second quarter of 2013 ompany repurchased $20 9 million of the 2017blat a privately negotiated transaction, alondn#it 7 million of its 8.125% senior notes due 2018
and $7 9 million of its 8.500% senior notes due®DBRopen market repurchases. These transactisnked in a loss on the early extinguishment ot @ék$5 5 million ($ 3 4 million or $0.04 per shaatter
tax) .

On May 17, 2012 , the Company completed a registefiering of $500 million aggregate principal amowof 9.250% senior unsecured notes due 2021 edsatia price of 100% of their principal amount.
We received net proceeds of $ 4 90 million from dffering after deducting underwriti ng fees anéedhg expenses. The Company also commenced arteffée to purchase the maximum aggregate
principal amount of its 8.250% Senior Notes due42Qthe 2014 Notes) and the April 2015 Notes (amgtioer with the 2014 Notes, the Notes) that it équirchase for up to $500 million in cash (the 2012
Debt Tender Offer).

Pursuant to the 2012 Debt Tender Offer, the Compangpted for purchase $400 million aggregate jmam@mount of 2014 Notes, tendered for total adersition of $44 6 million, and $ 50 million
aggregate principal amount of April 2015 Notesgdtsed for total consideration of $5 4 millionhefCompany used proceeds from the sale of its Mag ®ffering of $500 million of 9.250% Senior Notes
due 2021, plus cash on hand, to purchase the Notes.

In connection with the 2012 Debt Tender Offer aepurchase of the Notes, the Company recognizedsaob$6 9 million for the premium paid on the gaxtinguishment of debt during 2012. We also
recognized losses of $ 2 million during 2012 forgbillion in total open market repurchases of ®@5% Senior Notes due 2013.

On August 15, 2012 , the Company completed a regidtoffering of $600 million aggregate principaiaunt of 7.125% senior unsecured notes due 2022@&3 Notes), issued at a price of 100% of their
principal amount. We received net proceeds of &58illion from the offering after deducting undeitiig fees and offering expenses. The Company tisedet proceeds from the sale of the notes to
repurchase or retire existing indebtedness in 2013.

On October 1, 2012, the Company completed a regibdebt offering of $250 million aggregate priratipmount of the 2023 Notes, issued at a pricéddf260% of their principal amount. We received net
proceeds of $25 6 million from the offering afteddicting underwriting fees and offering expensé fiotes are an additional issuance of, are fuligible with and form a single series voting togetas
one class with the $600 million aggregate princgrabunt of the 2023 Notes issued by the Compamugust 15, 2012. The Company used the net prodeeutsthe sale of the notes to repurchase or retire
existing indebtedness in 2013.

On October 1, 2012 , the Company accepted for psel$7 6 million and $5 9 million aggregate priati@mount of the April 2015 Notes and the 2017 Nptespectively, in open market repurchases for
total consideration of $15 5 million. The repuraimsesulted in a loss on the early retirement bf dé$1 9 million.

As of December 31, 201 4, we were in compliandé il of our debt and credit facility financial\e@nants.

Our future principal payments are as follows aBe€ember 31, 201 4 :

Principal
(8 in thousands Payment:
2015 $ 297,622
2016 $ 383,248
2017 $ 645,156
2018 $ 619,035
2019 $ 644,565
Thereafte $ 7,191,11C

Other Obligations
During 20 1 3, the Company contributed four resthe properties to its qualified defined bene@ihgion plan. The pension plan obtained indepenapptaisals of the properties and, based on these
appraisals, the pension plan recorded the conipibsiat their fair value of $ 23 million. The Commgehas entered into leases for the contributedeptims with
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initial terms of 15 years at a combined aggregateual rent of approximately $ 2 million. The pedfes are managed on behalf of the pension plaaniindependent fiduciary, and the terms of thedsa
were negotiated with the fiduciary on an arm’s-kenigasis.

The contribution and leaseback of the properties tneated as a financing transaction and, accdsdittee Company continue s to depreciate the aagryalue of the properties in its financial statataeand
no gain or loss was recognized. An obligation &3$million was recorded in our consolidated balasdeeet within “Other liabilities” and the liabilit will be reduced annually by a portion of thesea

payments made to the pension plan.

During 201 2, the Company entered into a salelemseback arrangement for a facility in Everettsttagton and entered into a capital lease for feeaf fiber in the state of Minnesota. These agezgs
have lease terms of 12 and 23 years, respectiVbgse capital lease obligations are included incousolidated balance sheet within “Other lialgti and “Other current liabilities.”

Future minimum payments for finance lease obligatiand capital lease obligations as of Decembe2@lL 4 are as follows:

(8 in thousands Finance Lease Obligatiol Capital Lease Obligatior

Year ending December 3

2015 $ 7,043 $ 3,245
2016 7,225 3,300
2017 7,418 3,357
2018 7,632 3,415
2019 7,838 3,474
Thereaftel 63,055 16,790
Total future payment 100,211 33,581
Less: Amounts representing inter (56,951 (9,092
Present value of minimum lease payme $ 43,260 $ 24,489

(8) Investmenaind Othelncome, Net:
The components of investment and other income , floetthe years ended December 31, 201 4, 201d®81 2 are as follows:

($in thousand) 2014 2013 2012
Interest and dividend incon $ 1,493 $ 2,401 $ 3,753
Investment gail - 1,407 9,780
Gain on sale of Fairmount Cellular LL 25,000 - -
Gain on sale of 700 MHz spectrt 12,041 - -
Gain on expiration/settlement of customer adval 253 3,345 7,798
Split-dollar life insurance procee: - 2,263 -
Al other, net 209 (239 (1,199
Total investment and other income, $ 38,996 $ 9,177 $ 20,132

During 2014, we sold assets that were unrelatébet@Company’s operations and recognized a gair26frillion associated with the sale of our intefastairmount Cellular LLC and recognized a gafin
$ 12 million related to the sale of our 700 MHz ctpem .

During 201 3 and 201 2 , we recognized income $f3 million and $ 8 million, respectively, in coratien with certain retained liabilities that havarhinated, associated with customer advances for
construction from our disposed water properties.
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During 201 3 and 201 2 , we recognized investmairtgyof $ 1 million and $ 10 million, respectivelissociated with cash received in connection withpseviously written-off investment in Adelphia.

During 201 3 we recognized $2 million in the settént of a split-dollar life insurance policy fof@mer senior executive.

(9) _Capital Stock
We are authorized to issue up to 1,750,000,00@starcommon stock and 50,000,000 shares of peefstock. The amount and timing of dividends payalsl common stock are, subject to applicable law,
within the sole discretion of our Board of Director

(10) _Stock Plans
At December 31, 201 4 , we had six stock-based eosation plans under which grants were made anddawemained outstanding. No further awards magrbated under four of the plans: the 1996
Equity Incentive Plan (the 1996 EIP), the Amended Restated 2000 Equity Incentive Plan (the 200®),Bhe 2009 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2009 EIfR) the Non-Employee Directors’ Deferred Fee
Equity Plan (the Deferred Fee Plan). At Decemiie2B1 4 , there were 22,540,761 shares authofizegirant and 14,253,934 shares av ailable fontguader the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (the 20IB E
and together with the 1996 EIP, the 2000 EIP aed2009 EIP, the EIPs) and the Non-Employee Dirsttquity Incentive Plan (the Directors’ Equity RJaand together with the Deferred Fee Plan, the
Director Plans). Our general policy is to issuerehdrom treasury upon the grant of restrictedeshand the exercise of options.

1996, 2000, 2009 and 2013 Equity Incentive Plans

Since the expiration dates of the 1996 EIP, thédZB® and the 2009 EIP on May 22, 2006, May 14928td May 8, 2013, respectively, no awards have beenay be granted under the 1996 EIP, the 2000
EIP and the 2009 EIP. Under the 2013 EIP, awardsiotommon stock may be granted to eligible oficenanagement employees and non-management eraploythe form of incentive stock options,
non-qualified stock options, SARs, restricted sfqmrformance shares or other stock-based awasddistussed under the Non-Employee Directors’ Cosestéon Plans below, prior to May 25, 2006 non-
employee directors received an award of stock optimder the 2000 EIP upon commencement of service.

At December 31, 201 4, there were 20,000,000 sharthorized for grant under the 2013 EIP and 23982 shares available for grant. No awards mayréeted more than 10 years after the effective dat
(May 8, 2013) of the 2013 EIP plan. The exerciseepof stock options and SARs under the EIPs gdéipeaee equal to or greater than the fair marketi@af the underlying common stock on the date of
grant. Stock options are not ordinarily exercisabiethe date of grant but vest over a period oétjgenerally four years). Under the terms of thRsEbubsequent stock dividends and stock splits trey
effect of increasing the option shares outstandirigch correspondingly decrease the average exepeise of outstanding options.

Performance Shares

On February 15, 2012, the Company’s Compensatianrfiitiee, in consultation with the other non-managentirectors of the Company’s Board of Directansl gthe Committee’s independent executive
compensation consultant, adopted the Frontier LBergn Incentive Plan (the LTIP ). LTIP awards ararged in the form of performance shares. The Li$lurrently offered under the Company’'s 2009
EIP and 2013 EIP, and participants consist of sernée presidents and above. The LTIP awards haviepnance, market and time-vesting conditions.

Beginning in 2012, during the first 90 days of aeth-year performance period (a Measurement Perothrget number of performance shares are awaadedch LTIP participant with respect to the
Measurement Period. The performance metrics uheeTIP are (1) annual targets for operating dimsh based on a goal set during the first 90 ddysagch year in the three-year Measurement Peridd an
(2) an overall performance “modifier” set duringetfirst 90 days of the Measurement Period, basetherCompany’s total return to stockholders (ifegtal Shareholder Return or TSR) relative to the
Integrated Telecommunications Services Group (GI08e 50101020) for the three-year Measurement ®ef@perating cash flow performance is determintetieaend of each year and the annual results
will be averaged at the end of the three-year Memsent Period to determine the preliminary numbeshares earned under the LTIP award. The TSPopesnce measure is then applied to decrease or
increase payouts based on the Company’s threergiedive TSR performance. LTIP awards, to the exéamned, will be paid out in the form of commoacst shortly following the end of the three-year
Measurement Period.
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In 2012, the Compensation Committee granted apprately 979,000 performance shares under the LTtPsahthe operating cash flow performance goatHerfirst year in the 2012-2014 Measurement
Period and the TSR modifier for the three-year Me@snent Period. In 2013, the Compensation Comengtanted approximately 1,12 4,000 performaneeeshunder the LTIP and set the operating cash
flow performance goal for 2013, which applies te first year of the 2013-2015 Measurement Periatithe second year of the 2012-2014 Measuremenvdedin February 17, 2014, the Compensation
Committee granted approximately 1,028,000 perfooaashares under the LTIP and set the operating ftashperformance goal for 2014, which applies he first year in the 2014-2016 Measurement
Period, the second year of the 2013-2015 Measureferod and the third year of the 2012-2014 Mezment Period. The number of shares of common stacked at the end of each three-year
Measurement Period may be more or less than théeuaf target performance shares granted as & mfseperating ¢ ash flow and TSR performance. Aecetive must maintain a satisfactory performance
rating during the Measurement Period and must hgayrad by the Company at the end of the three-yesasurement Period in order for the award to veEte Compensation Committee will determine the
number of shares earned for each three year MaasuateéPeriod in February of the year following tinel ®f the Measurement Period.

The following summary presents information regagdifTIP target performance shares as of Decembe2@14 and changes with regard to LTIP shares adandder the 2009 EIP and the 2013 EIP :

Number of
Shares

Balance at January 1, 2012 -
LTIP target performance shares grar 979,000

LTIP target performance shares forfeited -
Balance at December 31, 2012 979,000
LTIP target performance shares grar 1,124,00C
LTIP target performance shares forfeited (354,000
Balance at December 31, 20 1,749,00C
LTIP target performance shares granted 1,037,00C
LTIP target performance shares forfei (104,000
2,682,00C

Balance at December 31, 20

The Company recognized an expense of $ 4 midlimh $ 1 million during 201 4 and 201 3, retipety, for the LT IP .
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The following summary presents information regagdimvested restricted stock as of December 314241d changes with regard to restricted stock utie2009 EIP and the 2013 EIP:

Weightec
Average
Number of Grant Date Aggregate
Shares Fair Value Fair Value
Balance at January 1, 20 4,847,000 $ 8.40 $ 24,962,00(
Restricted stock granted 3,976,000 $ 4.18 $ 17,017,00C
Restricted stock veste (1,387,00c $ 8.78 $ 5,937,00C
Restricted stock forfeited (387,000 $ 5.99
Balance at December 31, 20 7,049,000 $ 6.08 $ 30,169,000
Restricted stock granted 3,360,00C & 4.10 $ 15,626,00(
Restricted stock veste (3,097,000 $ 6.78 $ 14,403,00¢
Restricted stock forfeited (1,078,00C $ 5.26
Balance at December 31, 2C 6,234,00C $ 4.80 $ 28,988,00(
Restricted stock granted 4,314,00C $ 4.91 $ 28,778,000
Restricted stock veste (2,372,00c $ 5.22 $ 15,821,00C
Restricted stock forfeited (369,000 & 4.55
Balance at December 31, 2014 7,807,00C § 4.75 $ 52,074,00(

For purposes of determining compensation expehsdatr value of each restricted stock grant isvested based on the average of the high and lowenarice of a share of our common stock on the dat
grant. Total remaining unrecognized compensatist associated with unvested restricted stock awaird@ecember 31, 201 4 was $ 2 4 million andwieéhted average period over which this cost is

expected to be recognized is approximately 1.efrg .

We have granted restricted stock awards to empfoyeehe form of our common stock. None of therietd stock awards may be sold, assigned, pledgeatherwise transferred, voluntarily or
involuntarily, by the employees until the resticts lapse, subject to limited exceptions. The irt&ins are time-based. Compensation expense, memtjin “ Selling, general and administrative exges”,

of $16 million, $ 1 4 million and $ 1 6 milliorfor the years ended December 31, 201 4, 20d281 2 , respectively, has been recorded in atiumewith these grants.
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The following summary presents information regagdiutstanding stock options as of December 31420dnd changes with regard to options under tRsEl

Weightec
Average
Option Price
Per Share

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

Shares
Subject tc
Option
Balance at January 1, 20 895,000
Options granted
Options exercised -
Options canceled, forfeited or lapsed (355,000
Balance at December 31, 20 540,000
Options granted
Options exercised -
Options canceled, forfeited or lapsed (457,000
Balance at December 31, 2C 83,000
Options granted -
Options exercise
Options canceled, forfeited or lapsed -
Balance at December 31, 20 83,000

The number of options exercisable at December @142, 201 3 and 201 2 were 83,000, 83 ,000640 ,000 , with a weighted average exercise fi¢13.23 , $13.23 and $ 10.99 , respectively.
There were no stock options granted or exerciseidg201 4 ,

NonEmployee DirectorsCompensation Plans

Prior to October 1, 2010, non-employee directocgired stock options upon joining the Board of Bioes. These options were awarded under the Dir€dEquity Plan commencing May 25, 2006. Prior
thereto, these options were awarded under the EI®0 Options awarded to directors under the 2000Ee included in the above tables.

Prior to October 1, 2013, each non-employee diregss entitled to receive an annual retainer ofs@3,000 in cash, which he or she had the rigkteot to receive in the form of stock units, anp%25,000
in the form of stock units. In addition, the LeBétector, the chair of the Audit Committee and tteir of the Compensation Committee each receie@ @nnual stipend of $20,000 , the chair of the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee veaian annual stipend of $10,000 and the chalr@Retirement Plan Committee receive d an annipairsl of $7,500 .

Beginning October 1, 2013, we revised our non-egg#adirector compensation program in accordande bést practices. Each non-employee director v ewtitled to receive an annual retainer of (1)
$90,000 in cash, which he or she has the righteot o receive in the form of stock units, as diéstl below, and (2) $90,000 in the form of stoclts) in each case payable in advance in quarterly
installments on the first business day of each tquaitn addition, the Lead Director and the ctafithe Audit Committee each receives an additiamaual cash stipend of $25,000 , the chair of the
Compensation Committee receives an additional droash stipend of $20,000 , the chair of the Nonimgaand Corporate Governance Committee receivesditional annual cash stipend of $15,000 and
the chair of the Retirement Plan Committee receareadditional annual cash stipend of $10,000 clviti each case he or she may elect to receiveeiform of stock units. The annual stipend paith&o
Lead Director and each of the committee chairsjsple in arrears in equal quarterly installmemtshe last business day of each quarter. Eachtdirés required to irrevocably elect by Decembko8the

prior year whether to receive the cash portioni®fh her retainer and/or his or her stipend iclstnits.
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201 3 and 2012. There is no remginimrecognized compensation cost associated witestied stock options at December 31, 201 4 .
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As of October 1, 2013, s tock units are creditetheodirector’s account in an amount that is deitleeshas follows: the total cash value of the femgaple to the director is divided by the closinges of
Frontier common stock on the grant date of thesunfrior to October 1, 2013, stock units were iceeldto the director's account in an amount thas watermined as follows: the total cash value effées
payable to the director divided by 85% of the aigsprices of Frontier common stock on the grang @dithe units. Units are credited to the diréstaccount quarterly. Directors must also eleatdovert
the units to either common stock (convertible @ma -to-one basis) or cash upon retirement or death

Dividends are paid on stock units held by direcairthe same rate and at the same time as we piguiis on shares of our common stock. Dividendstock units are paid in the form of additionalcit
units.

The number of shares of common stock authorizedsgarance under the Directors’ Equity Plan is 2,880 , which includes 540,761 shares that werdableifor grant under the Deferred Fee Plan on the
effective date of the Directors’ Equity Plan. Indétbn, if and to the extent that any “plan unititstanding on May 25, 2006 under the Deferredfaa are forfeited or if any option granted under t
Deferred Fee Plan terminates, expires, or is chattel forfeited, without having been fully exeris shares of common stock subject to such “plats™uor options cancelled shall become availabldarmn
the Directors’ Equity Plan. At December 31, 201tHere were 811,002 shares available for gramerd were 12 directors participating in the Diregt®lans during all or part of 201 4 . T he tqikan
units earned were 237,607 , 374,383 and 306162814, 2013 and 2012 , respectively . Optionstgraprior to the adoption of the Directors’ Equitian were granted under the 2000 EIP. At December 3
201 4, 105,000 options were outstanding andcésadsle under the Director Plans at a weightedemesexercise price of $ 12.10 .

To the extent directors elect to receive the distion of their stock unit account in cash, they eonsidered liability-based awards. To the exténectors elect to receive the distribution of thetbck unit
accounts in common stock, they are consideredyehaged awards. Compensation expense for stock tat are considered equity-based awards is laséie market value of our common stock at the
date of grant. Compensation expense for stock thntsare considered liability-based awards is thasethe market value of our common stock at thieafreach period.

In connection with the Director Plans, compensatiosts associated with the issuance of stock wete $ 4 million, $ 2 million and $ 1 milfioin 201 4 , 201 3 and 201 2 , respectively. Cash
compensation associated with the Director Plans$&ausillion in 201 4, 201 3 and 201 2, respei. These costs are recognized in “ Selling, gelrend administrative expenses” .

(11) _Income Taxes
The following is a reconciliation of the provisifor income taxes computed at federal statutorysratehe effective rates for the years ended Deee®ib, 201 4, 201 3 and 201 2:

2014 2013 2012

Consolidated tax provision at federal statutorg 35.0 % 35.0 % 35.0 %
State income tax provisions, net of federal inct

tax benefit 1.6 @7 2.4
Noncontrolling interes - (0.6, (2.5)
Tax reserve adjustme 6.9 1.1 (5.4
Domestic production activities deducti 8.7) - -
Changes in certain deferred tax balar (14.1, 4.0 3.1
IRS audit adjustmen - 3.2 -
Federal research and development ci (3.3 (3.2 -
Non-deductible transaction cos 1.0 2.0 -
All other, net 0.3 0.4 0.4
Effective tax rate 18.7 % 29.0 % 33.0 %
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Income taxes for 2014 include the impact of a $8ilion benefit from the reduction in deferred tiabilities arising primarily from the inclusion ¢he Connecticut operations in the state unitdiyg, a
$14 million benefit from the domestic productiortigities deduction and a $ 5 million benefit froederal research and development credits, partéfthet by the impact of a charge of $11 millionuiésg
fr om an increase in tax reserves and a charge2ah#lion resulting from non-deductible transaaticosts.

Income taxes for 2013 reflect the impact of a $illian net benefit resulting from the adjustmentdsfferred tax balances, a $ 5 million beneinf federal research and development credits #h@ a
million benefit from the net reversal of reserves tincertain tax positions, partially offset by thgpact of a charge of $ 5 million resulting frohetsettlement of the 2010 IRS audit, and a chafg@%
million resulting from non-deductible transactiowsts.

Income taxes for 2012 include the net reversalkesérves for uncertain tax positions for $1 2 millio Deferred tax balances were increased in 20X¥2flect changes in estimates and changes ia stat
effective rates and filing methods.

The components of the net deferred income taxlifpifasset) at December 31 are as follows:

($.in thousand) 2014 2013
Deferred income tax liabilitie:
Property, plant and equipment basis differer $ 2,451,231 $ 1,950,72C
Intangibles 1,076,45¢€ 885,661
Other, ne 23,926 25,954
$ 3,551,61: $ 2,862,33%
Deferred income tax asse
Pension liability 247,490 216,890
Tax operating loss carryforwa 162,085 130,733
Employee benefit 304,044 161,493
State tax liability (642, (642,
Accrued expense 54,813 26,223
Allowance for doubtful accoun 16,078 11,957
Other, ne 40,016 42,915
823,884 589,569
Less: Valuation allowanc (139,937 (112,671
Net deferred income tax as: 683,947 476,898
Net deferred income tax liabilit $ 2,867,666 $ 2,385,437

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflectethé following
captions on the consolidated balance st

Deferred income taxe $ 2,938,907 $ 2,417,10¢
Income taxes and other current as (71,241 (31,671
Net deferred income tax liabilit $ 2,867,666 $ 2,385,437

O ur state tax operating loss carryforward as ot®mber 31, 201 4 is estimated at $ 3 billion. Atipa of our state loss carryforward will continteeexpire annually through 203 4 , unless otherwised .
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The provision (benefit) for federal and state ineoraxes, as well as the taxes charged or crediteduity of Frontier, includes amounts both payaibleently and deferred for payment in future pésias
indicated below:

($.in thousand) 2014 2013 2012
Income tax expens
Current:
Federa $ 98,288 $ 54,915 $ (3,824
State 10,132 (163 (1,039
Total Curren 108,420 54,752 (4,863
Deferred:
Federa (34,205 12,699 53,642
State (43,671 (20,209 26,859
Total Deferrec (77,876 (7,510 80,501
Total income tax expen: 30,544 47,242 75,638
Income taxes charged (credited) to equity of Fesn
Utilization of the benefits arising from restrictetbck 472, 1,910 2,937
Deferred income taxes (benefits) arising from #n@gnition
of additional pension/OPEB liabilit (90,410 132,432 (58,551
Total income taxes charged (credited) to equitfrohtier (90,882 134,342 (55,614
Total income taxe $ (60,338 $ 181,584 $ 20,024

U.S. GAAP requires applying a “more likely than hibireshold to the recognition and derecognitiorun€ertain tax positions either taken or expeoteblet taken in the Company’s income tax returns. The
total amount of our gross tax liability for tax jtamns that may not be sustained under a “mordylikean not” threshold amounts to $ 20 milliondDecember 31, 201 4 including interest of $nillion.

The amount of our uncertain tax positions for whioh statutes of limitations are expected to exginéng the next twelve months and which would etffeur effective tax rate is $ 3 million as ofde@enber
31,2014 .

The Company’s policy regarding the classificatidrinberest and penalties is to include these anmasta component of income tax expense. This tegatof interest and penalties is consistent witfopr
periods. We are subject to income tax examinati@reerally for the years 2012 forward for federad 00 8 forward for state filing jurisdictions. Vééso maintain uncertain tax positions in variousest
jurisdictions.

The following table sets forth the changes in tioenPany’s balance of unrecognized tax benefitsHferyears ended December 31, 201 4 and 201 3 :

(8 in thousands 2014 2013

Unrecognized tax benefits - beginning of year $ 8759 % 11,487
Gross increases - current year tax positions 12,878 4,554
Gross decreast expired statute of limitatior (2,379 (7,282
Unrecognized tax benefi- end of yea $ 19,258 $ 8,759

The amounts above exclude $ 1 million of accruéer@st as of December 31, 201 4 and 201 3 , reégphcthat we have recorded and would be payafbellsl the Company’s tax positions not be sustained.
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(12) NetlIncome Per Common Share
The reconciliation of the net income per commorreitalculation for the years ended December 31420401 3 and 201 2 is as follows:

($ and shares in thousands, except per share am)

2014 2013 2012

Net income used for basic and diluted earn

per common shart
Net income attributable to common shareholdersroffer $ 132,893 $ 112,835 $ 136,636
Less: Dividends paid on unvested restricted saweards (3,043 (2,531 (2,901
Total basic and diluted net income attributabledmmon

shareholders of Frontis $ 129,850 $ 110,304 § 133,735
Basic earnings per common she
Total weighted average shares and unvested restistock

awards outstandin- basic 1,001,812 999,126 997,665
Less: Weighted average unvested restricted stwekds (7,394 (6,467 (7,128
Total weighted average shares outstan- basic 994,418 992,659 990,537
Basic net income per share attributable to com

shareholders of Frontit $ 013 $ 011 § 0.14
Diluted earnings per common she
Total weighted average shares outstan- basic 994,418 992,659 990,537
Effect of dilutive share 3,744 1,338 1,263
Total weighted average shares outstan- diluted 998,162 993,997 991,800
Diluted net income per share attributable to com

shareholders of Fronti $ 013 $ 011 § 0.13

Stock Options

For the years ended December 31, 201 4, 201 2@be , options to purchase 83,000, 83 ,00@ 0 ,000 shares, respectively, issuable undefogeg compensation plans were excluded from the
computation of diluted earnings per share (EPS)Hose periods because the exercise prices weaitegtban the average market price of our commueksind, therefore, the effect would be antidiletivn
calculating diluted EPS, we apply the treasurylstoethod and include future unearned compensatiqraet of the assumed proceeds.

Stock Units

At December 31, 201 4 , 201 3 and 201 2, we ha@ 2,995, 1,238,542 and 864,114 stock uresspectively, issued under the Director Plans. &fsesurities have not been included in the diluted
income per share of common stock calculation bexthesr inclusion would have an antidilutive effect
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(13 ) _Comprehensive Inconfeoss):
Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net incanteother gains and losses affecting shareholidemsstment and pension/postretirement benefit (OQREBIlities that, under U.S. GAAP, are excluded
from net income.

The components of accumulated other comprehenssge het of tax at December 31, 201 4, 201 3 @ad22 and changes for the years then ended, dodiass:

Deferred taxes on pension &

($ in thousands Pension Cost OPEB Costt OPEB costt All other Total
Balance at January 1, 20 $ (575,163 $ (41811 $ 230,161 $ (150, $ (386,963
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassiins (152,402 (29,922 68,871 - (113,453
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comgmstve income (los: 29,691 (2,531 (10,320 - 16,840
Net curren-period other comprehensive income (Ic (122,711 (32,453 58,551 - (96,613
Balance at December 31, 2C (697,874 (74,264 288,712 (150; (483,576
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassiins 205,341 67,289 (100,951 2 171,681
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comgmsive income (los¢ 36,938 1,745 (14,699 - 23,984
Recognition of net actuarial loss for pension eatént cost 44,163 - (16,782 - 27,381
Net curren-period other comprehensive income (Ic 286,442 69,034 (132,432 2 223,046
Balance at December 31, 2C (411,432 (5,230 156,28C (148, (260,530
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassi€ins (140,832 (112,525 97,534 148 (155,675
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comgmelve income (los¢ 19,996 (995, (7,124 - 11,877
Net curren-period other comprehensive income (Ic (120,836 (113,520 90,410 148 (143,798
Balance ¢ December 31, 201 $ (532,268 $ (118,750 $ 246,69C $ -3 (404,328
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The significant items reclassified from each congrarof accumulated other comprehensive loss foy¢laes ended December 31, 201 4, 201 3 and 264 &sdollows:

$ in thousands Amount Reclassified fror
Accumulated Other Comprehensive L

Details about Accumulated Other Comprehensive Gmrsponent: 2014 2013 2012 Affected Line Item in the Statement Where Net InedsmPresente
Amortization of Pension Cost lter”
Prior-service cost $ @5 s ® s 199
Actuarial gains (losse: (19,951 (36,930 (29,890
Pension settlement cot - (44,163 -
(19,996 (81,101 (29,691  Income (loss) before income tay
Tax impac! 7,497 30,818 11,282 Income tax (expense) bene
$ (12,499 $ (50,283 $ (18,409  Net income (loss
Amortization of OPEB Cost Iten
Prior-service cost $ 3,911 $ 6,101 $ 10,068
Actuarial gains (losse: (2,916 (7,846 (7,537,
995 (1,745 2531  Income (loss) before income tay
Tax impaci @73 663 (962 Income tax (expense) bene
$ 622 $ (1,082 $ 1,569

Net income (loss

(a) Amounts in parentheses indicate losses.
(b) These accumulated other comprehensive loss @oemgs are included in the computation of net piigipension and OPEB cost s (see Note 1 6 - Reginelans for additional details).

(14 ) _Seament Informatian

We operate in one reportable segment. Frontierighes both regulated and unregulated voice, dadavateo services to residential, business and velatdecustomers and is typically the incumbent voice
services provider in its service areas.

As permitted by U.S. GAAP, we have utilized the rggtion criteria to combine our operating segmeetsause all of our properties share similar ecaonaimaracteristics, in that they provide the same
products and services to similar customers usimgpewable technologies in all of t he states in Whie operate. The regulatory structure is genesifhyjilar. Differences in the regulatory regimeaof
particular state do not significantly impact thememic characteristics or operating results of éi@dar property.

(15) Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

(8 in thousands, except per share amou

014 First Quartel Second Quarte Third Quartel Fourth Quarte Total Year
Revenue $ 1,154,046 $ 1,147,265 $ 1,140,874 $ 1,330,30¢ $ 4,772,49C
Operating incom: 226,025 224,342 197,031 172,543 819,941
Net income attributable to comm

shareholders of Frontit 39,274 37,680 41,993 13,946 132,893

Basic net income per common sh
attributable to common sharehold

of Frontier $ 004 $ 004 $ 004 $ 001 $ 0.13

013 First Quartel Second Quarte Third Quartel Fourth Quarte Total Year
Revenue $ 1,205,39% $ 1,190,53: $ 1,185,27¢ $ 1,180,36¢ $ 4,761,57¢
Operating incom: 250,824 266,156 206,172 257,569 980,721
Net income (loss) attributable to comm

shareholders of Frontier 48,140 (38,460 35,400 67,755 112,835

Basic net income (loss) per common st
attributable to common sharehold
of Frontier $ 005 $ 0.04, $ 004 $ 007 $ 0.11
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The quarterly net income per common share amoungsraunded to the nearest cent. Annual net incperecommon share may vary depending on the effestich rounding. The change in revenue,
operating income, net income and net income peeghaing the fourth quarter of 2014 reflects tHditional results of operations related to the Gamticut Acquisition , as described further in N8te

We recognized $ 11 million ( $ 7 million or $ @.Qer share after tax ), $20 million ( $1 Blion or $0.01 pe r share after tax ), $4 2 il ($2 7 million or $0.03 per share after taxand $ 70
million ('$ 44 million or $ 0.04 per share aftex fa of acquisition and integration costs durihg first, second, third and fourth quarter s of£20fespectively .

We recognized $ 10 million ( $ 6 million or $0.pér share after tax ) of acquisition costs dutire fourth quarter of 2013.
We recognized $4 0 million ( $2 5 million or $0.p8r share after tax) and $ 4 million ( $ 2 millaiter tax) of pension settlement costs in the thitd fourth quarters of 2013, respectively.
We recognized $ 160 million ( $9 9 million or $0.per share after tax ) of losses on early gutshment of debt during the se cond quarter 08201

(16) _Retirement Plans
We sponsor a noncontributory defined benefit penplan covering a significant number of our forraad current employees and other postretirementfib@fens that provide medical, dental, life insuce
and other benefits for covered retired employeeistheir beneficiaries and covered dependents. Eheflis are based on years of service and finabgeepay or career average pay. Contributions aem
in amounts sufficient to meet ERISA funding reqoiemts while considering tax deductibility. Planetssare invested in a diversified portfolio of @guand fixed-income securities and alternative
investments.

The accounting results for pension and other pirgneent benefit costs and obligations are depemndpan various actuarial assumptions applied indérmination of such amounts. These actuarial
assumptions include the following: discount raegyected long-term rate of return on plan assetsyd compensation increases, employee turnoveithicare cost trend rates, expected retirement age,
optional form of benefit and mortality. We revielhese assumptions for changes annually with oupierdgent actuaries. We consider our discount rateeapected long-term rate of return on plan ageets
be our most critical assumptions.

The discount rate is used to value, on a presdneé\zasis, our pension and other postretiremergfitebligations as of the balance sheet date.sHmee rate is also used in the interest cost cormpafi¢he
pension and postretirement benefit cost deternundir the following year. The measurement dated usethe selection of our discount rate is the be¢asheet date. Our discount rate assumption is
determined annually with assistance from our indepet actuaries based on the pattern of expectetefbenefit payments and the prevailing ratesl@viai on long-term, high quality corporate bondst th
approximate the benefit obligation.

As of December 31, 201 4, 201 3 and 2012 , \#ized an estimation technique that is based upsatéement model (Bond:Link) that permits us tsely match cash flows to the expected payments to
participants . This rate can change from yearearyased on market conditions that affect corpdrand yields.

As a result of the technique described above, Foist utilizing a discount rate of 4.10 % as oftPmber 31, 201 4 for its qualified pension plampared to rates of 4. 9 0% and 4. 00 % in 201 2&id2 ,
respectively. The discount rate for postretirenggans as of December 31, 201 4 was a range 6f%.1o 4.20 % co mpared to a range of 4. 9 0%5t020 % in 201 3and 4.00% to 4.20 % itk 20

The expected long-term rate of return on plan asiseapplied in the determination of periodic pensand postretirement benefit cost as a reductiadhe computation of the expense. In developing the
expected long-term rate of return assumption, wesicered published surveys of expected marketrietdi0 and 20 year actual returns of various miagtices, and our own historical 5 year, 10 year 20d
year investment returns. The expected long-termahteturn on plan assets is based on an asseadin assumption of 35% to 55% in fixed incomeusiies, 35% to 55% in equity securities and 5% to
15% in alternative investments . We review oweasllocation at least annually and make chandemnveonsidered appropriate. Our pension assestimest allocation decisions are made by the
Retirement Investment & Administration CommittedAR), a committee comprised of members of manageénpemsuant to a delegation of
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authority by the Retirement Plan Committee of thea of Directors. The RIAC is responsible foragjng its actions to the Retirement Plan Committésset allocation decisions take into account
expected market return assumptions of various atasses as well as expected pension benefit paysterams. When analyzing anticipated benefit paysjenanagement considers both the absolute
amount of the payments as well as the timing achquayments. In 201 4, 201 3 and 201 2, our erddong-term rate of return on plan assets was %78.00% and 7 . 75%, respectively. For 201 &, w
will assume a rate of return of 7.75 % . Our p@Emglan assets are valued at fair value as ofrtbasurement date. The measurement date used toidet@ension and other postretirement benefit oreas

for the pension plan and the postretirement bepkfit is December 31.

During 2014, the Society of Actuaries releasedr@esef updated mortality tables resulting fromengicstudies conducted by them measuring mortaditysrfor various groups of individuals. The updated
mortality tables reflect improved trends in longgwand therefore have the effect of increasingesimate of benefits to be received by plan paicts. At December 31, 2014 we updated our martalit
assumptions by taking into consideration the newdyied mortality tables as well as our own histdrexperience, which increased our pension benbfigation by $66 million and our postretirement
benefit obligation by $24 million.

Pension Benefits

The following tables set forth the pension plaprsjected benefit obligations, fair values of pssets and the pension benefit liability recognaeaur consolidated balance sheets as of Decedib@01
4 and 201 3 and the components of total periodisipa benefit cost for the years ended Decembe2@L 4 , 201 3 and 201 2 :

($.in thousand) 2014 2013

Change in projected benefit obligation (PF

PBO at beginning of ye: $ 1,668,72¢ $ 1,944,731
PBO for plans of the Connecticut operations atremtéd discount rai 342,667 -

Actuarial adjustment to PBO for plans of the Cortitet operation: 4,933 -

Service cos 41,649 47,651
Interest cos 80,476 75,812
Actuarial (gain)/los: 182,074 (180,709
Benefits paic (110,237 (54,151
Settlement: - (164,608
PBO at end of yez $ 2,210,28¢ $ 1,668,72¢
Change in plan asse

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of y $ 1,216,52¢ $ 1,253,66€
Fair value of plan assets for the Connecticut djmra as of acquisition da 342,667 -

Actual return on plan asse 140,514 119,328
Employer contribution 83,238 62,290
Benefits paic (110,237 (54,151
Settlement: - (164,608
Fair value of plan assets at end of y $ 1,672,707 $ 1,216,528
Funded statu $ (537,581 $ (452,201
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balancet

Pension and other postretirement beni- current (101,557 (100,205
Pension and other postretirement ben- noncurren (436,024 (351,996
Accumulated other comprehensive i 532,268 411,432

In connection with the completion of the Connedtigaquisition , certain employees were transfemethe Frontier Communications Pension Plan (tl)Péffective October 2 4, 2014. Assets of $ 34 3
million, including a receivable of $ 3 5 millionane transferred into the Plan during the fourthrgwaof 2014.
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Expected ir

($.in thousand) 2015 2014 2013 2012
Components of total periodic pension benefit «

Service cos $ 41,649 $ 47,651 $ 43,688
Interest cost on projected benefit obligat 80,476 75,812 78,027
Expected return on plan ass (99,273 (94,695 (95,777
Amortization of prior service cost /(cred $ 45 45 8 (199
Amortization of unrecognized lo 27,773 19,951 36,930 29,890
Net periodic pension benefit cc 42,848 65,706 55,629
Pension settlement co: - 44,163 -
Total periodic pension benefit cc $ 42,848 $ 109,86S $ 55,629

Our pension plan contains provisions that providgain employees with the option of receiving lusypn payment upon retirement. The Company’s acaoginolicy is to record these payments as a
settlement only if, in the aggregate, they excémdsum of the annual service and interest costshéoplan’s net periodic pension benefit cost. Byr201 3 , lump sum pension settlement payments to
terminated or retired individuals amounted to $%1@illion, which exceeded the settlement thresludifl 12 5 million. As a result, the Company wasuieed to recognize a non-cash settlement char§d4f
million during 201 3. The non-cash charge waglired to accelerate the recognition of a portibthe previously unrecognized actuari al lossethinpension plan. This non-cash charge reduced our
recorded net income and retained earnings, witbffaet to accumulated other comprehensive loskaneholders’ equity of Frontier.

We capitalized $ 1 5 million, $ 1 9 million agd1 6 million of pension and OPEB expense into¢hst of our capital expenditures during the yeaded December 31, 201 4 , 201 3 and 201 2 ,
respectively, as the costs relate to our engingen plant construction activities.

Based on current assumptions and plan asset valeesstimate that our 201 5 pension and OPEB eggenil be approximately $ 85 million to $ 105 rith before amounts capitalized into the cost of
capital expenditures and the impact of pensioteseént costs, if any.

The plan’s weighted average asset allocations e¢ber 31, 201 4 and 201 3 by asset category dodi@ss:

2014 2013
Asset category:
Equity securities 45% 42%
Debt securitie: 47% 44%
Alternative investments 6% 13%
Cash and other 2% 1%
Total 100% 100%
The plan’s expected benefit payments over the b@éxtears are as follows:
(8 in thousands Amount
2015 $ 129,826
2016 135,899
2017 138,216
2018 141,248
2019 144,486
202(-2024 750,181
Total $ 1,439,85€
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We made total cash contributions to our pensiom plaring 201 4 of $ 83 million . Our 2014 totaintributions reflect the impact of the extensionfarfiding relief included in the Highway and
Transportation Funding Act of 2014.

During 2013, the Company contributed four realtespeoperties to its qualified defined benefit penglan. The pension plan obtained independentaéggls of the properties and, based on these ispfsia
the pension plan recorded the contributions at fa&ivalue of $2 3 million. The Company has eateinto leases for the contributed properties wiifial terms of 15 years at a combined aggregateual
rent of approximately $ 2 million. The properties sanaged on behalf of the pension plan by ampimi#ent fiduciary, and the terms of the leases wegetiated with the fiduciary on an arm’s-lengésis.

We made total contributions to our pension plarimduP013 of $62 million, consisting of cash paynseot $3 9 million and the contribution of real pesfy with a fair value of $23 million, as described
above.

We made total net cash contributions to our penglan for 2012 of $2 9 million . These pensiontecibutions reflect the positive impact of fundirage changes contained in the Highway InvestmehbAc
2012 and guidance from the IRS on August 16, 2@lated to valuation rates, and on September 12, &flated to lump sum methodologies.

The accumulated benefit obligation for the plan %&509 4 million and $1, 56 0 million at DecemBg, 201 4 and 201 3, respectively.

Assumptions used in the computation of annual pensbsts and valuation of the year-end obligativese as follows:

2014 2013 2012
Discount rate- used at year end to value obligat 4.10% 4.90% 4.00%
Discount rate - used to compute annual cost 4.90% 4.00% 4.50%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 7.75% 8.00% 7.75%
Rate of increase in compensation ley 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%
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Postretirement Benefits Other Than PensiehOPEB'

The following tables set forth the OPEB plan’s Hérabligations, fair values of plan assets andpbstretirement benefit liability recognized on @onsolidated balance sheets as of December 314 aadl
201 3 and the components of net periodic postreére benefit cost for the years ended Decembe2@l14 , 201 3 and 201 2 .

($.in thousand)

Change in benefit obligatic

Benefit obligation at beginning of ye

Benefit obligation for the Connecticut operatiossoéacquisition dat
Service cos

Interest cos

Plan participants' contributiol

Actuarial (gain)/los:

Benefits paic

Plan chang

Benefit obligation at end of ye

Change in plan asse

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of y
Actual return on plan asse

Plan participants' contributiol

Employer contributior

Benefits paic

Fair value of plan assets at end of y

Funded statu

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balancet:
Pension and other postretirement ben« current
Pension and other postretirement ben- noncurren
Accumulated other comprehensive i

($.in thousand)

Components of net periodic postretirement beneft
Service cos

Interest cost on projected benefit obligat

Expected return on plan ass

Amortization of prior service cost /(cred
Amortization of unrecognized lo:

Net periodic postretirement benefit ¢

2014 2013
385,623 $ 438,550
210,732 -
10,799 12,533
21,739 17,241
5,010 4,293
114,997 (67,547
(19,310 (19,447
(2,627 -
726,963 $ 385,623
2,307 $ 5,055
(104, (122,
5,010 4,293
12,170 12,528
(19,310 (19,447
73 $ 2,307
(726,890 $ (383,316
(22,237 (11,508
(704,653 (371,808
118,750 5,230
Expected in
2015 2014 2013 2012
$ 10,799 $ 12,533 $ 10,812
21,739 17,241 17,842
(50) (136 172,
$ (4,205 (3,911 (6,101 (10,068
10,819 2,916 7,846 7,537
31,493 $ 31,383 $ 25,951
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Assumptions used in the computation of annual OP&fs and valuation of the year-end OPEB obligatisere as follows:

Discount rate - used at year end to value obligatio
Discount rate - used to compute annual cost
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets

2014

2013

2012

4.10%- 4.20%
4.90% -5.20%
3.00% -4.00%

The OPEB plan’s expected benefit payments ovendixe 10 years are as follows:

4.90%- 5.20%
4.00% -4.20%
3.00% -4.00%

4.00%- 4.20%
4.50% -4.75%
3.00% -4.00%

(8 in thousands Gross Benefi Medicare Part D Subsic Total

2015 $ 22,7181  $ 11 $ 22,770
2016 26,472 18 26,454
2017 29,983 32 29,951
2018 33,148 46 33,102
2019 35,902 67 35,835
202(-2024 209,484 904 208,58C
Total $ 357,77C  $ 1078 $ 356,692

For purposes of measuring year-end benefit obtigatiwe used, depending on medical plan coveraggifferent retiree groups, a 7.00 % annual ratenofease in the per-capita cost of covered medical
benefits, gradually decreasing to 5.00 % in the 2849 and remaining at that level thereafter. &tiect of a 1% increase in the assumed medicaltoesti rates for each future year on the aggregfates
service and interest cost components of the tatsfrgtirement benefit cost would be $ 1 milliardahe effect on the accumulated postretiremenéfitenbligation for health benefits would be $ 3 5
million. The effect of a 1% decrease in the assumedical cost trend rates for each future yeatheraggregate of the service and interest cost coemts of the total postretirement benefit cost wdaé

$( 1) million and the effect on the accumulatedtptirement benefit obligation for health benefitsuld be $( 30 ) million .

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensivetiasshiave not yet been recognized as componemistgferiodic benefit cost at December 31, 201201 3 are as follows:

($.in thousand) Pension Plal OPEB
2014 2013 2014 2013
Net actuarial los $ 531,958 $ 411,076 $ 143,07C $ 30,835
Prior service cost/(credi 310 356 (24,320 (25,605
Total $ 532,26 $ 411,432 $ 118,75C $ 5,230
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The amounts recognized as a component of accurdudateprehensive loss for the years ended Decendh@03 4 and 201 3 are as follows:

($.in thousand) Pension Plai OPEB
2014 2013 2014 2013

Accumulated other comprehensive los

beginning of yea $ 411,432 $ 697,874 $ 5230 $ 74,264
Net actuarial gain (loss) recognized during (19,951 (36,930 (2,916 (7,846
Prior service (cost) credit recognized during y (45) 8) 3,911 6,101
Net actuarial loss (gain) occurring during y 140,832 (205,341 112,52& (67,289
Settlement costs recognized during y - (44,163 - -
Net amount recognized in comprehensive inc

(loss) for the yea 120,83€ (286,442 113,52C (69,034
Accumulated other comprehensive los

end of yea $ 532,268 $ 411,432 $ 118,75C $ 5,230

401(k) Savings Plans

We sponsor employee retirement savings plans useleion 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Threnplcover substantially all full-time employees.déen certain plans, we provide matching
contributions. Employer contributions were $ 2 1lioi, $ 2 1 million and $2 3 million for 201,401 3 and 201 2 , respectively.

(17 ) _Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Fair value is defined under U.S. GAAP as the eriitepassociated with the sale of an asset or teamdfa liability in an orderly transaction betwemarket participants at the measurement date. Vafua
techniques used to measure fair value under U.ARGHuUst maximize the use of observable inputs aimihmze the use of unobservable inputs. In addjtidrS. GAAP establishes a three-tier fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in meng fair value.

The three input levels in the hierarchy of fairuemeasurements are defined by the FASB genesaflyllaws:

InputLevel Descriptionf Input

Level 1 Observable inputs suslyaoted prices in active markets for identicabtss

Level 2 Inputs other than quagpeides in active markets that are either direstljndirectly observable.
Level 3 Unobservable inputs inieh little or no market data exists.
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The following tables represent the Company’s penplan assets measured at fair value on a recusesiy as of December 31, 201 4 and 201 3 :

($.in thousand)

Cash and Cash Equivalel

U.S. Government Obligatior

Corporate and Other Obligatio

Common Stocl

Common/Collective Trusi

Interest in Registered Investment Compa

Interest in Limited Partnerships a
Limited Liability Corporations

Insurance Contrac

Other

Total investments at fair valt

Receivable for plan assets of |
Connecticut operatior

Receivable for earnings on plan asset
the Connecticut operatiol

Interest and Dividend Receivat

Due from Broker for Securities Sa

Receivable Associated with Insurance Cont

Due to Broker for Securities Purchas

Total Plan Assets, at Fair Val

($.in thousand)

Cash and Cash Equivalel
U.S. Government Obligatior
Corporate and Other Obligatio
Common Stocl
Commingled Fund
Interest in Registered Investment Compa
Interest in Limited Partnerships a
Limited Liability Corporations
Insurance Contrac
Other
Total investments at fair valt
Interest and Dividend Receivat
Due from Broker for Securities Sa
Receivable Associated with Insurance Cont
Due to Broker for Securities Purchas
Total Plan Assets, at Fair Val

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, &

Total

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

$ 32,152 $
31,632
283,234
170,312
958,91¢
65,590

103,19¢
519
2,297

32,152

170,312

65,590

$

31,632
283,234

958,91¢

519
2,297

$

103,19€

$ 1,647,847 $

268,054

1,276,597

103,196

34,267

3,893
31,703
7,715

153,084

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, ©

Total

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

$ 8,503 $
26,070
235,723
120,801
604,97¢
80,221

129,27¢
629
1,660

8,503

120,801

80,221

$

26,070
235,722

571,531

33,444

129,276

$ 1,207,85¢ $

209,52¢

162,72C

10,125

There have been no reclassifications of investiieetiween Levels 1, 2 or 3 assets during the yeatsceDecember 31, 201 4 or 201 3.
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The table s below set forth a summary of changésarfair value of the Plan’s Level 3 assets ferykars ended December 31, 201 4 and 201 3 :

($.in thousand)

Balance, beginning of ye
Realized gain
Unrealized losse

Sales

Balance, end of ye:

($.in thousand)

Balance, beginning of ye
Realized gain
Unrealized gain
Contributed asse

Sales

Balance, end of yei

2014

Interest in Limited Partnerships and
Limited Liability Corporations

Commingled Fund

$ 129,276 33,444
12,101 5,283

(4,800 (5,079

(33,381 (33,648

$ 103,196 -

2013
Interest in Limited Partnerships and
Limited Liability Corporations Commingled Fund

$ 101,67€ 39,814
10,835 975

18,033 2,656

23,422 -

(24,692 (10,001

$ 129,27€ 33,444
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The following table provides further informatiorgeeding the redemption of the Plan’s Level 3 inwesits as of December 31, 201 4 :

($.in thousand)

Redemption
Fair Value Redemption Frequenc Notice Perioc _ Liquidation Perioi
Interest in Limited Partnerships and Limit
Liability Corporations

Morgan Stanley Institutional Cayman Fund © $ 306 Quarterly 60 days NA
Through liquidation o

MS IFHF SVP LP Cayma® 2,010 underlying investment None 2 years
Through liquidation of

MS IFHF SVP LP Alph® 1,091 underlying investment None 2 years
Through liquidation o

RII World Timberfund, LLC® 6,056 underlying investment None 10 years
Through liquidation of

100 Comm Drive, LLC® 8,689 underlying investment None NA
Through liquidation o

100 CTE Drive, LLC® 6,942 underlying investment None NA
Through liquidation of

6430 Oakbrook Parkway, LL® 24,953 underlying investment None NA
Through liquidation o

8001 West Jefferson, LL® 29,553 underlying investment None NA
Through liquidation of

1500 MacCorkle Ave SE, LL(* 16,219 underlying investment None NA
Through liquidation o

400 S. Pike Road West, LL® 1,093 underlying investment None NA
Through liquidation of

601 N US 131, LL(@ 1,062 underlying investment None NA
Through liquidation o

9260 E. Stockton Blvd., LL( 5,222 underlying investment None NA

Total Interest in Limited Partnerships and Limi
Liability Corporations $ 103,196

(a) The fund's investment objective is to genetatey-term capital appreciation with relatively lowlatility and a low correlation with traditionalquity and fixed-income markets. The fund seeks to
accomplish this objective by allocating its asgeisarily among a select group of experienced pidfmanagers that invest in a variety of markeither through the medium of investment funds cough
discretionary managed accounts.

(b) The partnerships’ investment objective is ¢elscapital appreciation principally through invegtin investment funds managed by third party stwent managers who employ a variety of alternative
investment strategies.

(c) The fund's objective is to realize substaritalg-term capital appreciation by investing inttienland properties primarily in South America, Néealand and Australia.

(d) The entity invest s in commercial real esfateperties that are leased to the Company. Theeseare triple net, whereby the Company is resplengor all expenses, including but not limited to,
insurance, repairs and maintenance and paymemopégy taxes.
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The following table represents the Plan’s Leveiharicial instruments for its interest in certaimiied partnerships and limited liability corporati the valuation techniques used to measure thealae of
those financial instruments as of December 31,£204nd the significant unobservable inputs andearof values for those inputs:

Significant Input
Instrument Property Fair Value Principal Valuation Technique Significant Unobservable Inputs Values
Direct Capitalizatior Capitalization Rat: 8.50%
100 Comm Drive, LLC $ 8,689 Discountec Discount Rat¢ 8.00%
Cash Flon Duration (years 12
Direct Capitalizatior Capitalization Rat: 8.50%
100 CTE Drive, LLC $ 6,942 Discountec Discount Rat¢ 8.00%
Cash Flon Duration (years 12
Direct Capitalizatior Capitalization Rat: 8.50%
6430 Oakbrook Parkway, LL $ 24,953 Discountec Discount Rate 8.00%
Cash Flow Duration (years 12
Interest in Direct Capitalizatior Capitalization Rat: 8.50%
Limited Partnership 8001 West Jefferson, LL $ 29,553 Discountec Discount Rate 8.00%
and Limited Cash Flow Duration (years 12
Liability Corporations Direct Capitalizatior Capitalization Rat 8.85%
1500 MacCorkle Ave SE, LL! $ 16,219 Discountec Discount Rat¢ 8.00%
Cash Flow Duration (years 14
Direct Capitalizatior Capitalization Rat 10.50%
400 S. Pike Road West, LL $ 1,093 Discountec Discount Rat¢ 8.00%
Cash Flow Duration (years 14
Direct Capitalizatior Capitalization Rat 10.00%
601 N US 131, LLC $ 1,062 Discountec Discount Rat¢ 8.00%
Cash Flow Duration (years 14
Direct Capitalization Capitalization Rat 9.00%
9260 E. Stockton Blvd., LL¢ $ 5,222 Discountec Discount Rat¢ 8.00%
Cash Flow Duration (years 14

The fair value of our OPEB plan assets, which #mmeasured using Level 1 inputs, was $ 2 millisroaDecember 31, 20 13 .

The following table summarizes the carrying amouants estimated fair values for long-term debt atédeber 31, 201 4 and 201 3 . For the other firdmestruments including cash, accounts receivable,
long-term debt due within one year, accounts payaht other current liabilities, the carrying amtsiapproximate fair value due to the relativelyrsheaturities of those instruments.

$ in thousands 2014 2013

Carrying Carrying

Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Long-term deb $ 9,485,61¢ $ 10,034,09¢ $ 7,873,667 $ 8,191,744

The fair value of our long-term debt is estimateddrl upon quoted market prices at the reportirggfdathose financial instruments.
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(18) _Commitments and Contingencies
We anticipate total capital expenditures of apprately $ 650 million to $ 700 million for 201%®xcluding the expenditure of funds previously reedifrom the Connect America Fund program . Althoug
we from time to time make short-term purchasing eiments to vendors with respect to these experedifwe generally do not enter into firm, writtemtacts for such activities.

T he Federal Communications Commission ( FCC )aarthin state regulatory commissions, in conneatiith granting their approvals of the 2010 A caigsi , specified certain capital expenditure and
operating requirements for the territories acquirethe 2010 Acquisition for specified periodstiofie post-closing. These requirements focus pilgnan certain capital investment commitments tpaxd
broadband availability to at least 85% of the hbodds throughout the territories acquired in20&0 Acquisition with minimum download speeds ah8gabits per second (Mbps) by the end of 2013e W
are also required to provide download speeds ofbpdvto at least 75% , 80% and 85% of the houdsttbloughout the territories acquired in the@®tquisition by the end of 2013, 2014 and 2015,
respectively. As of December 31, 2012, we metRi€ requirement to provide 4 Mbps coverage to abf%h 80% of the households in the territories aeguirin the 2010 Acquisition by the end of 2013
and 2014, respectively. As of December 31, 2018 met our FCC requirement to provide 3 Mbps cowetag35% of the households in the territories aegui in the 2010 Acquisition by the end of 2013.
As of December 31, 201 4, we expanded broadbaaithaility in excess of 4 Mbps to 84.5 % of the keholds throughout the territories acquired in20&0 Acquisition .

As of December 31, 2014, all capital investment eoiment requirements of the three state regulatorymissions in connection with the 2010 Acquisiti@d been satisfied . A Il funds had been rektase
from escrow accounts and the Company had no restréash related to escrow accounts.

We are party to various legal proceedings (inclgdidividual, class and putative class actionsjimgiin the normal course of our business covesimgde range of matters and types of claims incgdbut
not limited to, general contracts, billing dispyteights of access, taxes and surcharges, consproggction, trademark and patent infringement, eyrplent, regulatory, tort, claims of competitors and
disputes with other carriers.

We accrue an expense for pending litigation whendetermine that an unfavorable outcome is probahte the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimdegal defense costs are expensed as
incurred. None of our existing accruals , aftensidering insurance coverage, for pending mattersdterial. We monitor our pending litigation fbe purpose of adjusting our accruals and revising
disclosures accordingly, when required. Litigatisn however, subject to uncertainty, and the au®f any particular matter is not predictable. Wi# vigorously defend our interests for pending
litigation, and as of this date, we believe that titimate resolution of all such matters, aftensidering insurance coverage or other indemniteshich we are entitled, will not have a materidverse
effect on our consolidated financial position, tesof operations, or our cash flows.

We conduct certain of our operations in leased fEesnand also lease certain equipment and othetsgssrsuant to operating leases. The lease amamge have terms ranging from 1 to 99 years and
several contain rent escalation clauses providingntreases in monthly rent at specific intervé#hen rent escalation clauses exist, we recordaneantal expense based on the total expectegagmients
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. @elgases also have renewal options. Renewal apttwat are reasonably assured are included inndietieg the lease term.
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Future minimum rental commitments for all long-temoncancelable operating leases as of Decemb@0314 are as follows:

Operating Lease

(8 in thousands

Year ending December 3

2015 $ 59,833
2016 11,716
2017 5,951
2018 3,725
2019 4,803
Thereaftel 46,052

$ 132,08C

Total minimum lease paymer

Total rental expense included in our consolidatatements of income for the years ended Decemhet(@14 , 201 3 and 201 2 was $ 100 million,4r8illion and $ 7 9 million, respectively.

In our normal course of business, we have obligationder certain non-cancelable arrangements fuices. During 2012, we entered into a “take oy’parangement for the purchase of future long
distance and carrier services. Our remaining commeitt under the arrangement is $14 1 million fer ylear ending December 31, 201 5. As of DecerBbe01 4 , we expect to utilize the services
included within the arrangement and no liability flee “take or pay” provision has been recorded.

We are party to contracts with several unrelated ldistance carriers. The contracts provide feeedan traffic they carry for us subject to minimmuonthly fees.

At December 31, 201 4, the estimated future paysfen obligations under our noncancelable longagiise contracts and service agreements are aw$ollo

(8 in thousands Amount

Year ending December 3

2015 $ 28,401
2016 17,011
2017 16,906
2018 30
2019 -
Thereaftel -
Total $ 62,348

We sold all of our utility businesses as of April2D04. However, we have retained a potential gaytrobligation associated with our previous eleattility activities in the State of Vermont. Thermont
Joint Owners (VJO), a consortium of 14 Vermontitig#, including us, entered into a purchase poaggeement with Hydro-Quebec in 1987. The agreememiins “step-up” provisions that state if any
VJO member defaults on its purchase obligation utite contract to purchase power from Hydro-Quetien the other VJO participants will assume resjility for the defaulting party’s share on a pro-
rata basis. Our pro-rata share of the purchasespobligation is 10% . If any member of the VJQadkéts on its obligations under the Hydro-Quebereament, then the remaining members of the VJO,
including us, may be required to pay for a subgliptarger share of the VJO's total purchase poulgigation for the remainder of the agreementi¢iwhiuns through 2015). U.S. GAAP rules requirat th
we disclose “the maximum potential amount of futpeyments (undiscounted) that the guarantor coeldelquired to make under the guarantee.” U.S. GAAEs also state that we must make such
disclosure “... even if the likelihood of the guamars having to make any payments under the guagdateemote...” As noted above, our obligation cafiges as a result of default by another VJO member

such as upon
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bankruptcy. Therefore, to satisfy the “maximumemial amount” disclosure requirement we must asstimt all members of the VJO simultaneously défar unlikely scenario given that all VIO
members are regulated utility providers with regedecost recovery. Despite the remote chancestiwit an event could occur, or that the State ofridat could or would allow such an event, assurtiag

all the members of the VJO defaulted on Januag01,5 and remained in default for the durationhef ¢ontract (another 1 year), we estimate thatindiscount ed purchase obligation through 2015 @oul
be approximately $14 4 million . In such a scematiie Company would then own the power and coekk 2o recover its costs. We would do this by sggko recover our costs from the defaulting
members and/or reselling the power to other utfityviders or the northeast power grid. Therenigetive market for the sale of power. We coulteptally lose money if we were unable to sell poaver

at cost. We caution that we cannot predict with degree of certainty any potential outcome.

At December 31, 201 4, we have outstanding pedioce letters of credit as follows:

(8 in thousands Amount

CNA Financial Corporation (CNA $ 45,659

All other 1,186
Total $ 46,845

CNA serves as our agent with respect to genetailitiaclaims (auto, workers compensation and othsured perils of the Company). As our agent, théminister all claims and make payments for claims
on our behalf. We reimburse CNA for such servigesnupresentation of their invoice. To serve asagent and make payments on our behalf, CNA reqtli@swe establish a letter of credit in their favo
CNA could potentially draw against this letter oédit if we failed to reimburse CNA in accordancigwthe terms of our agreement. The amount of ¢tterl of credit is reviewed annually and adjustasill

on claims history.

None of the above letters of credit restrict owshchalances.

(19) _Subseqguent Events
On February 5, 2015, we entered into an agreeméht\Werizon Communications Inc. (Verizon) to acquierizon’s wireline operations that provide seegido residential, commercial and wholesale

customers in California, Florida and Texas for achase price of $10.54 billion in cash (the VerizZmnsaction) , with adjustments for working ¢abi Upon completion of the Verizon Transaction,
Frontier will operate Verizon properties which indéd 3.7 million voice connections, 2.2 million adband connections, and 1.2 million FiOS video ections. Subject to regulatory approval, the

transaction is expected to close in the first 652016.

Frontier has received a commitment for bridge faiag from J.P. Morgan, Bank of America Merrill Lymand Citibank for 100 percent of the purchaseeprithe transaction is not subject to a financing
condition.
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CO RPORATION
NON -EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS’ COMPENSATION SUMMARY

(Effective January 1, 201 5)

QUARTERLY RETAINER FEE

Each non-employee director will receive an annatliner consisting of the following:

(1)  $95,000in cash, which the n-employee directomay elect to receivin the form of stock units; ar
(2) $120,000in the form of stock units

in each case payable in quarterly installments #isedfirst business day of eacbalendar quarter.

QUARTERLY STIPENDS

Each Committee Chair and the Lead Director wilbaksceive quarterly stipends as follows:

Non-Employee Director Stipends Quarte Annualized
rly

Lead Directol $6,250 $25,000

Audit Committee Chai $6,250 $25,000

Compensation Committee Ch, $5,000 $20,000

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee C $3,750 $15,000

Retirement Plan Committee Ch $3,750 $15,000

S tipends are paid on the last business day afatemdar quarter in which they were earned.

Each non-employee director may elect to receiyestls, when applicable, in cash or stock units.



VALUATION OF STOCK UNITS

Retainer/Stipends The number of units to be awarded to a direistdetermined as follows:

The cash value of the retainer and/or stipendshpaya the director are divided by the Fair Maratue (the closing price) of the Company’s common stockie
date the retainer or stipends were earned.

Dividends: As of the date of any payment of a stock divitlenstock split by the Company, a director’s Stblekt Account will be credited with Stock Units eajdo the
number of shares of Common Stock (including frawticshare entitlements) which are payable by thag2my with respect to the number of shares (inolydliactional
share entitlements) equal to the number of Stodkslénedited to the director’s Stock Unit Accoumtthe record date for such stock dividend or sgpik. As of the date of
any dividend in cash or property or other distributpayable to holders of Common Stock, the dirgst®tock Unit Account shall be credited with adatial Stock Units
equal to the number of shares of Common Stockudiey fractional share entitlements) that couldenbgen purchased at the Fair Market Value as &f gagment date with
the amount which would have been received as defid or distribution on the number of shares (idiclg fractional share entitlements) equal to theclUnits credited to
the director’s Stock Unit Account as of the recdade.

ELECTION RULES AND PROCEDURES

Each director must elect by December 31 of theqatiag year (or within 30 days after the individbatomes a director , in which case the electioli Bhaffective only
with respect to amounts that are earned for ses\peeformed after the date the election is delivgnehether he or she will receive the cash portibhis or her annual
retainer and stipends in cash or stock unit$.el&ttions made are irrevocable.

DISTRIBUTION UPON TERMINATION OF SERVICE

Upon termination of service as a director, a doeststock unit account shall be paid out in therf@f cash (valuing each stock unit at the Fairkéaivalue (the closing
price ) of a share of the Company’s common stockhertermination date) or Company common stockheelection of the director (one share of comntonksshall be
distributed for each stock unit in the directotsck unit account). Absent a valid election, stadis shall be paid out in common stock.



Pre-tax income from continuing operatio

(Income) or loss from equity investe

Pre-tax income from continuing operations bef
(income) or loss from equity investe

Fixed charge
Distributed income of equity investe
Interest capitalize

Income attributable to the noncontrolling inter
in a partnershi

Total earnings

Ratio of earnings to fixed charg

Frontier Communications Corporation
Statements of the Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charge

(Dollars in Thousands)

Exhibit 12 .1

(Unaudited)
Years Ended December ¢
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
$ 163,437 $ 162,72C $ 228,952 $ 245951 $ 270,716
- - 522 864 (367)
163,437 162,72C 229,474 246,81% 270,349
731,657 698,251 716,61¢ 697,00€ 541,750
- - - - 780
(2,968 (2,723 (2,203 (8,414 (3,749
- (2,643 (16,678 (7,994 (3,044
$ 892,12€ $ 855,605 $ 927,212 $ 927,413 $ 806,086
1.22 1.23 1.29 1.33 1.49

NOTE: The above calculation was performed in agance with Regulation S-K 229.503(d) Ratio of ezgsito fixed charges.




List of subsidiaries of Frontier Communications Corporation *

Entity Name

C-DON Partnership

Citizens Capital Ventures Corp.

Citizens Directory Services Company L.L.C.

Citizens Louisiana Accounting Company

Citizens Newcom Company

Citizens Newtel, LLC

Citizens Pennsylvania Company LLC

Citizens SERP Administration Company

Citizens Telecommunications Company Of California Inc.
Citizens Telecommunications Company Of Idaho

Citizens Telecommunications Company Of Illinois

Citizens Telecommunications Company Of Minnesota, LLC
Citizens Telecommunications Company Of Montana
Citizens Telecommunications Company Of Nebraska
Citizens Telecommunications Company Of Nebraska LLC
Citizens Telecommunications Company Of Nevada
Citizens Telecommunications Company Of New York, Inc.
Citizens Telecommunications Company Of Oregon

Citizens Telecommunications Company Of Tennessee L.L.C.
Citizens Telecommunications Company Of The Volunteer State LLC

Citizens Telecommunications Company Of The White Mountains, Inc.

Citizens Telecommunications Company Of Utah
Citizens Telecommunications Company Of West Virginia
Citizens Telecom Services Company L.L.C.

Citizens Utilities Capital L.P.

Citizens Utilities Rural Company, Inc.

Commonwealth Communication, LLC

Commonwealth Telephone Company LLC
Commonwealth Telephone Enterprises LLC
Commonwealth Telephone Enterprises LLC
Commonwealth Telephone Management Services, Inc.
CTE Holdings, Inc.

CTE Services, Inc.

CTE Telecom, LLC

CTS|, LLC

CU Capital LLC

CU Wireless Company LLC

Electric Lightwave NY, LLC

Evans Telephone Holdings, Inc.

Domestic Jurisdiction
Pennsylvania
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
California
Delaware
lllinois
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Nevada

New York
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
West Virginia
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Pennsylvania
Delaware
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
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Fairmount Cellular LLC

Frontier ABC LLC

Frontier Communications Corporate Services Inc.
Frontier Communications Corporation

Frontier Communications ILEC Holdings LLC
Frontier Communications - Midland, Inc.
Frontier Communications Northwest Inc.
Frontier Communications of Alabama, LLC
Frontier Communications Of America, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Ausable Valley, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Breezewood, LLC
Frontier Communications Of Canton, LLC
Frontier Communications Of Depue, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Fairmount LLC
Frontier Communications Of Georgia LLC
Frontier Communications Of lllinois, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Indiana, LLC
Frontier Communications Of lowa, LLC

Frontier Communications Of Lakeside, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Lakewood, LLC
Frontier Communications Of Lamar County, LLC
Frontier Communications Of Michigan, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Minnesota, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Mississippi LLC
Frontier Communications Of Mondovi, LLC
Frontier Communications Of Mt. Pulaski, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of New York, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Orion, Inc.

Frontier Communications Of Oswayo River LLC
Frontier Communications Of Pennsylvania, LLC
Frontier Communications Of Rochester, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Seneca-Gorham, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Sylvan Lake, Inc.
Frontier Communications of the Carolinas LLC
Frontier Communications Of The South, LLC
Frontier Communications Of The Southwest Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Thorntown, LLC
Frontier Communications Of Virginia, Inc.
Frontier Communications Of Viroqua, LLC
Frontier Communications Of Wisconsin LLC

Frontier Communications Online And Long Distance Inc.

Frontier Communications - Prairie, Inc.
Frontier Communications - Schuyler, Inc.

Georgia
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
lllinois
Washington
Alabama
Delaware
New York
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania
lllinois
Georgia
Georgia
lllinois
Indiana

lowa

lllinois
Pennsylvania
Alabama
Michigan
Minnesota
Mississippi
Wisconsin
lllinois

New York
lllinois
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania
Delaware
New York
New York
Delaware
Alabama
Delaware
Indiana
Virginia
Wisconsin
Wisconsin
Delaware
lllinois

lllinois




Frontier Communications Services Inc. Arizona

Frontier Communications - St. Croix LLC Wisconsin
Frontier Directory Services Company, LLC Delaware
Frontier Infoservices Inc. Delaware
Frontier Midstates Inc. Georgia
Frontier Mobile LLC Delaware
Frontier North Inc. Wisconsin
Frontier Security Company Delaware
Frontier Services Corp. Connecticut
Frontier Subsidiary Telco LLC Delaware
Frontier Techserv, Inc. Delaware
Frontier Telephone Of Rochester, Inc. New York
Frontier West Virginia Inc. West Virginia
GVN Services California
Navajo Communications Co., Inc. New Mexico
N C C Systems, Inc. Texas
Ogden Telephone Company New York
Phone Trends, Inc. New York
Rhinelander Telecommunications, LLC Wisconsin
Rhinelander Telephone LLC Wisconsin
Rib Lake Cellular For Wisconsin RSA #3, Inc. Wisconsin
Rib Lake Telecom, Inc. Wisconsin
SNET America Inc. Connecticut
The Southern New England Telephone Company Connecticut
Tele-Tec Contractors, Inc., New York

* All of these entities are director or indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of Frontier Communications Corporation.




Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Dir ectors and Share holders
Frontier Communications Corporation :

We consent to the incorp oration by reference e Registration Statements on Form S-3 (Nos. 338130333-181299, 333-158391 and 333-58044), anBoom S-8 (Nos. 333-
188440, 333-167932, 333-159508, 333-151248, 3324651333-151245, 333-142636, 333-91054, 333-71823,71597, 333-71029, 333-61432 , 33-51529 , 3B3&Mmd 33-42972),
of Frontier Communications Corporation and subsieé&aof our reports da ted February 2 4 , 2015th wéspect to the consolidated balance sheetsaoitiEr Communications Cor
poration as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , ancethted consolidated statements of operationspoeinensive income (loss), equity and cash flowsé&wh of the years in the three-
yea r period ended December 31, 2014 , and thetief@ess of internal control over financial r ejpay as of December 31, 2014 , which reports appe#ne December 31, 2014
annual report on Form 10-K of Frontier Communiaagi€orporation.

/sl KPMG LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
February 2 4, 2015



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
1, Mary Agnes Wilderotter, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report Form 10- K of Frontier Communications Corpamat;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescoatain any untrue statement of a material éaamit to state a material fact necessarynake the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under whiathsstatements were made, not misleading witheasp the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statets, and other financial information included this report, fairly present in all material pests the
financial condition, results of operations andtcliows of the registrant as of, and for, theqas presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying offi@nd | are responsible for establishing andntaaiing disclosure controls and procedures &med in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer financial reporting (as defined in ExcbarAct Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for thegistrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls pratedures, or caused such disclosure contralpatedures to be designed under our supervigiognsure that
material information relating to the registramgcluding its consolidated subsidiaries, is m&dewn to us by others within those entitiesrtipalarly during
the period in which this report is being prepiare

b) Designed such internal control oveaficial reporting, or caused such internal cordwer financial reporting to be designed under aupervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the nélfabi  of financial reporting and the preparati@f financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generabcepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thestegnt's disclosure controls and procedures @edented in this report our conclusions ableteffectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as oérideof the period covered by this report basedumh evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any changthim registrant's internal control over financggborting that occurred during the registrant'stmecent fiscal quarter
(the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the sea of an annual report) that has materially afficler is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internantol over financial reporting; and



5. The registrant's other certifying officeddrhave disclosed, based our most recent evaluation of internal control deaincial reporting, to th
registrant's auditors and the audit committé¢éhe registrant's board of directors (or passperforming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and maakweaknesses in the design or operation oériral control over financial reporting whicteaeasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant's ability toarl, process, summarize and report financial médion; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, ttiravolves management or other employees who hasigréficant role in the registrant's internal aohtover
financial reporting.

Date: February 24, 2015 /sl Mary Agnes Wilderotte
Mary Agnes Wilderotte
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
1, John M. Jureller , certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report Form 10- K of Frontier Communications Corpamat;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescoatain any untrue statement of a material éaadmit to state a material fact necessarynake the statements
made, in light of the ¢ ircumstances under whigthsstatements were made, not misleading witego the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statets, and other financial information included this report, fairly present in all material pests the
financial condition, results of operations andtcliows of the registrant as of, and for, theqas presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying offi@nd | are responsible for establishing andntaaiing disclosure controls and procedures &med in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer financial reporting (as defined in ExcbarAct Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for thegistrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls pratedures, or caused such disclosure corrmlprocedures to be designed under our superyisi@msure that
material information relating to the registramgcluding its consolidated subsidiaries, is m&dewn to us by others within those entitiesrtipalarly during
the period in which this report is being prepiare

b) Designed such internal control oveafiaial reporting, or caused such internal cormtvelr financial reporting to be designed undersupervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the féladii financial reporting and the preparatiaf financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generabcepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thestegnt's disclosure controls and procedures @edented in this report our conclusions ableteffectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as oéideof the period covered by this report basedumh evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any changdhia registrant's internal control over finahaieporting that occurred during the registrantsst recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarten the case of an annual report) that has materiadfjected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internantol over financial reporting; and



5. The registrant's other certifying officeddrhave disclosed, based our most recent evaluation of internal control deaincial reporting, to th
registrant's auditors and the audit committé¢éhe registrant's board of directors (or passperforming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and maakweaknesses in the design or operation oériral control over financial reporting whicteaeasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant's ability toarl, process, summarize and report financial médion; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, ttiravolves management or other employees who hasigréficant role in the registrant's internal aohtover
financial reporting.

Date: February 24, 2015 /s/ John M. Jurelle
John M. Jurelle
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the A nnual Report of Fronti€ommunications Corporation (the "Company") omnFd0- K for the year ended December 31 , 2014lex$ fith the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dateohéthe "Report"), I, Mary Agnes Wilderotter, &man and Chief Executive Officer of the Compacsrtify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopteslipat to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley AcD6P2that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requivents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S ecuriirshange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repfairly presents, in all material respectse financial condition and results of operatiohthe Company.

[s/ Mary Agnes Wilderotter

Mary Agnes Wilderotter

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
February 24,2015

This certification is made solely for purpose ofl&.C. Section 1350, subject to the knowledgedsdrd contained therein, and not for any othepqae.

A signed original of this written statement rigqd by Section 906, or other document authetitigaacknowledging, or otherwise adopting the atgre that appears
in typed form within the electronic version ofsthwritten statement required by Section 906, een provided to Frontier Communications Cafion and will be
retained by Frontier Communications Corporatind durnished to the Securities and Exchange i@ission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the A nnual Report of Fronti€ommunications Corporation (the "Company") omnFd0- K for the year ended December 31 , 2014lex$ fith the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dateohdthe "Report’), I, John M. Jureller , Chiein&ncial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuaot 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to $e@€6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requivents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitiesiange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repfairly presents, in all material respectse financial condition and results of operatiafdhe Company.
[s/ JohnM. Jureller
John M. Jureller

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
February 2 4, 2015

This certification is made solely for purpose ofll&.C. Section 1350, subject to the knowledgedstahcontained therein, and not for any other pgepo

A signed original of this written statement riggqd by Section 906, or other document authentigaticknowledging, or otherwise adopting the sigreathat appears in
typed form within the electronic version of thigitten statement required by Section 906, has)be®vided to Frontier Communications Corporatand will be
retained by Frontier Communications Corporatind durnished to the Securities and Exchange Casion or its staff upon request.



